
Contra Costa School of Performing Arts

Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time
Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM PDT

Location
This meeting will be held virtually.

Regular Board Meeting
Time: Apr 11, 2022 05:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83559548694?pwd=OU5aUW1ycEJteDZmVlBQRm5iWldlZz0
9
Meeting ID: 835 5954 8694
Passcode: 626895

The public may address the Board regarding any item within the jurisdiction of the Board
of Directors of ChartHouse Public Schools. To ensure an orderly meeting and an equal
opportunity for each speaker, persons wishing to address the Board must fill out a
speaker’s card. Cards should be turned into the Board Vice-chairperson prior to the Call
to Order. Speakers will be given three minutes for items on the agenda, and two minutes
for items not on the agenda. When translation services are utilized to support the
participation of a primary Speaker, the translator will be afforded the same duration of
time as the primary Speaker. Time may not be yielded to other speakers. In compliance
with the Brown Act, the Board may listen to comments from speakers and provide
direction to staff, but may not engage in discussion or take action on items that are not
already on the agenda.

All Board agendas and minutes will be published at cocospa.org. Any disclosable public
records related to an open session Board meeting agenda item and distributed by staff to
a majority of the Board of Directors shall be available for public inspection.

The Board of Directors will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with
disabilities planning to attend Board meetings so long as notice is provided one hour
prior to the start of the meeting by contacting the Executive Director’s Office at (925) 235-
1130.

Agenda
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Purpose Presenter Time

I. Opening Items 5:30 PM

Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests Deborah
Padberg

1 m

B. Call the Meeting to Order Deborah
Padberg

1 m

C. Approve Minutes Approve
Minutes

Deborah
Padberg

5 m

The Board will consider the approval of the minutes from the Regular Board of Directors
meeting held on March 21, 2022.

Approve minutes for Regular Board Meeting on March 21, 2022
D. Agenda Review and Adoption Vote Deborah

Padberg
5 m

The Board will review the agenda and adopt as presented or take action to change the
order of items.

II. Public Comments 5:42 PM

A. Items on the Agenda FYI Deborah
Padberg

6 m

B. Items Not on the Agenda FYI Deborah
Padberg

4 m

III. Standing Committees 5:52 PM

A. Finance Committee FYI David
Wendt

5 m

The Board will hear a report from the Finance Committee.

IV. Informational Items 5:57 PM

The Board will hear presentations and updates on salient matters.

A. A-G Grant Plan FYI Robert
Chalwell

5 m

The Board will hear a presentation on the proposed A-G Grant Plan.

V. ACTION ITEMS 6:02 PM

A. Revised Brown Act Requirements on
Teleconferencing Rules

Vote Dr. Robert
Chalwell

5 m

The Board will consider for approval the provision in AB 361 to continue using the bill's
exemption to the Brown Act teleconferencing rules for an additional 30 days.
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Purpose Presenter Time
B. Audit Report Approval Vote Robert

Chalwell
5 m

The Board will consider approval of the final 20-21 audit.

C. 21-22 Audit Engagement Vote Robert
Chalwell

5 m

The Board will review and consider approval of the audit engagement letter as presented.

D. Insurance Renewal Package Vote Robert
Chalwell

5 m

The Board will review and consider approval of the organization's insurance coverage plan
renewal.

VI. STAFF REPORTS 6:22 PM

A. Financial Report and Update from EdTec FYI EdTec
Client Mgr

10 m

The EdTec Client Manager will present to the Board the monthly financial reports and other
important updates.

B. Executive Director Report Discuss Dr. Robert
Chalwell

60 m

The Board will hear an update on school business from Dr. Chalwell in the form of a
targeted Study Session on Reorganization and Planning for the 2022-2023 school year.
Working Document.

VII. CLOSED SESSION 7:32 PM

The Board will move to Closed Session.

A. Public Employment FYI Robert
Chalwell

5 m

Title: Administration
Teachers
Classified

B. Public Employment FYI Robert
Chalwell

5 m

Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release

C. Public Employment FYI Heather
Vega

10 m

Employment

VIII. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 7:52 PM

A. Report Out FYI Deborah
Padberg

5 m

The Board will report out on actions taken in Closed Session, if any.
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Purpose Presenter Time

IX. Closing Items 7:57 PM

A. Adjourn Meeting Deborah
Padberg

1 m

4 of 4Powered by BoardOnTrack 4 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Approve Minutes

Section: I. Opening Items
Item: C. Approve Minutes
Purpose: Approve Minutes
Submitted by:
Related Material: Minutes for Regular Board Meeting on March 21, 2022

2022_03_21_board_meeting_minutes (1).pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 5 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



Contra Costa School of Performing Arts

Minutes

Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time
Monday March 21, 2022 at 5:30 PM

Location
This meeting will be held virtually.

Regular Board Meeting
Time: Mar 21, 2022 05:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83559548694?
pwd=OU5aUW1ycEJteDZmVlBQRm5iWldlZz09
Meeting ID: 835 5954 8694
Passcode: 626895

The public may address the Board regarding any item within the jurisdiction of the Board
of Directors of ChartHouse Public Schools. To ensure an orderly meeting and an equal
opportunity for each speaker, persons wishing to address the Board must fill out a
speaker’s card. Cards should be turned into the Board Vice-chairperson prior to the Call
to Order. Speakers will be given three minutes for items on the agenda, and two minutes
for items not on the agenda. When translation services are utilized to support the
participation of a primary Speaker, the translator will be afforded the same duration of
time as the primary Speaker. Time may not be yielded to other speakers. In compliance
with the Brown Act, the Board may listen to comments from speakers and provide
direction to staff, but may not engage in discussion or take action on items that are not
already on the agenda.

All Board agendas and minutes will be published at cocospa.org. Any disclosable public
records related to an open session Board meeting agenda item and distributed by staff to
a majority of the Board of Directors shall be available for public inspection.

The Board of Directors will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with
disabilities planning to attend Board meetings so long as notice is provided one hour
prior to the start of the meeting by contacting the Executive Director’s Office at (925) 235-
1130.
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Directors Present
D. Padberg (remote), D. Wendt (remote), F. Bani-Taba (remote), H. Vega (remote), M.
Gil (remote)

Directors Absent
None

Ex Officio Members Present
R. Chalwell (remote)

Non Voting Members Present
R. Chalwell (remote)

Guests Present
J. Flaner (remote), K. Aozasa (remote), M. Muppidi (remote)

I. Opening Items

D. Padberg called a meeting of the board of directors of Contra Costa School of
Performing Arts to order on Monday Mar 21, 2022 at 5:34 PM.

D. Wendt made a motion to approve the minutes from Regular Board Meeting on
02-15-22.
M. Gil seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
F. Bani-Taba Aye
D. Padberg Aye
M. Gil Aye
H. Vega Aye
D. Wendt Aye

H. Vega made a motion to approve the agenda as written.
D. Wendt seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
D. Wendt Aye
F. Bani-Taba Aye
D. Padberg Aye
H. Vega Aye
M. Gil Aye

Record Attendance and GuestsA.

Call the Meeting to OrderB.

Approve MinutesC.

Agenda Review and AdoptionD.

2 of 5Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday March 21, 2022 at 5:30 PM

7 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



II. Public Comments

No public comments made at this meeting.

No public comments made at this meeting.

III. Standing Committees

Chairman Wendt apprised the Board that the Finance Committee met recently to
review recent financial developments that impact the bond covenants and budget
projections. Specific details will follow during this meeting.

IV. Informational Items

The Board listened to a presentation by Dr. Chalwell on this agenda item,
providing them with the background and the focus of the upcoming SPA Family
Presentations taking place this month. Dr. Chalwell took questions during the
presentation.

The Board and Dr. Chalwell will schedule a Special Study Session to delve into a
deep review of the reorganizational plans and growth areas. Dr Chalwell will be
providing the Board with a report and organizational charts to assist in the review
and prioritization prior to this session.

Dr. Chalwell provided the Board with an update on the plans for the staggered
transition of mask wearing based on the results of a parent survey. SPA is
currently in Phase I of this plan. Weekly Covid testing continues. Each week the
plan will be recessed to afford the opportunity to adjust the plan as necessary.

V. ACTION ITEMS

H. Vega made a motion to approve the provision in AB 361 to continue using the
bill's exemption to the Brown Act teleconferencing rules for an additional 30 days.
D. Wendt seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
D. Padberg Aye
M. Gil Aye
F. Bani-Taba Aye
H. Vega Aye
D. Wendt Aye

Items on the AgendaA.

Items Not on the AgendaB.

Finance CommitteeA.

Reorganization Plans for SY 2022-2023A.

Mask Mandate TransitionB.

Revised Brown Act Requirements on Teleconferencing RulesA.

2nd Interim ReportB.
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M. Gil made a motion to approve the 2nd Interim Budget/Report as presented.
D. Wendt seconded the motion.
Dr. Chalwell announced to the Board that a major concern has been addressed
through diligent work around the budget and bond covenants. Edtec managers
Madhu Muppidi and Kendall Aozasa delivered a detail 2nd Interim Budget report,
including the monthly financial report. Questions and concerns from the Board
were discussed.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
D. Wendt Aye
H. Vega Aye
D. Padberg Aye
F. Bani-Taba Aye
M. Gil Aye

VI. STAFF REPORTS

Dr. Chalwell's report focuses on enrollment. To offer insight on the efforts taken,
Director Lisa Kingsbury joined the meeting to present details on the specific work
undertaken and to field questions and comments from the Board.

This agenda item was included earlier in the meeting under item V, B - 2nd Interim
Report.

VII. CLOSED SESSION

Re: Title - Administration, Teachers, Classified

The Board entered into Closed Session.

Re: Employment

The Board entered into Closed Session.

VIII. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

The Board reentered open session. Chairman Padberg reported out that the
Board took unanimous action on accepting the release of the following positions:

ID 891195 - Coordinator of Administrative Services
ID 855946 - Instructional Assistant
ID 627197 - Instructor

IX. Closing Items

Executive Director ReportA.

Financial Report and Update from EdTecB.

Public EmploymentA.

Public EmploymentB.

Report OutA.

A.
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There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:13 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
D. Padberg

Documents used during the meeting

• 2022_02_15_board_meeting_minutes.pdf
• Revised_Brown_Act_Requirements_on_Teleconferencing_Rules.pdf
• CCSPA 20-21 2nd Interim Narrative of Changes.docx
• CCSPA 6787 Jan22.pdf
• CCSPA January Financials (March Board Meeting) 3.11.22 (1).pdf
• CCSPA LCFF-Calculator 2nd Interim 3.8.22.xlsx
• CCSPA March Board Meeting (January Financials).pdf
• Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 2021-22 2nd Interim Report.xlsx
• GeneralLedger420.xlsx
• IncomeStatement-171.xlsx
• ReconciliationSummary-9121-76787CashinBa...hecking76787(main)335.xls

Adjourn Meeting
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts

Minutes

Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time
Monday March 21, 2022 at 5:30 PM

Location
This meeting will be held virtually.

Regular Board Meeting
Time: Mar 21, 2022 05:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83559548694?
pwd=OU5aUW1ycEJteDZmVlBQRm5iWldlZz09
Meeting ID: 835 5954 8694
Passcode: 626895

The public may address the Board regarding any item within the jurisdiction of the Board
of Directors of ChartHouse Public Schools. To ensure an orderly meeting and an equal
opportunity for each speaker, persons wishing to address the Board must fill out a
speaker’s card. Cards should be turned into the Board Vice-chairperson prior to the Call
to Order. Speakers will be given three minutes for items on the agenda, and two minutes
for items not on the agenda. When translation services are utilized to support the
participation of a primary Speaker, the translator will be afforded the same duration of
time as the primary Speaker. Time may not be yielded to other speakers. In compliance
with the Brown Act, the Board may listen to comments from speakers and provide
direction to staff, but may not engage in discussion or take action on items that are not
already on the agenda.

All Board agendas and minutes will be published at cocospa.org. Any disclosable public
records related to an open session Board meeting agenda item and distributed by staff to
a majority of the Board of Directors shall be available for public inspection.

The Board of Directors will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with
disabilities planning to attend Board meetings so long as notice is provided one hour
prior to the start of the meeting by contacting the Executive Director’s Office at (925) 235-
1130.
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Directors Present
D. Padberg (remote), D. Wendt (remote), F. Bani-Taba (remote), H. Vega (remote), M.
Gil (remote)

Directors Absent
None

Ex Officio Members Present
R. Chalwell (remote)

Non Voting Members Present
R. Chalwell (remote)

Guests Present
J. Flaner (remote), K. Aozasa (remote), M. Muppidi (remote)

I. Opening Items

D. Padberg called a meeting of the board of directors of Contra Costa School of
Performing Arts to order on Monday Mar 21, 2022 at 5:34 PM.

D. Wendt made a motion to approve the minutes from Regular Board Meeting on
02-15-22.
M. Gil seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
D. Padberg Aye
D. Wendt Aye
F. Bani-Taba Aye
H. Vega Aye
M. Gil Aye

H. Vega made a motion to approve the agenda as written.
D. Wendt seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
D. Wendt Aye
D. Padberg Aye
F. Bani-Taba Aye
M. Gil Aye
H. Vega Aye

Record Attendance and GuestsA.

Call the Meeting to OrderB.

Approve MinutesC.

Agenda Review and AdoptionD.
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II. Public Comments

No public comments made at this meeting.

No public comments made at this meeting.

III. Standing Committees

Chairman Wendt apprised the Board that the Finance Committee met recently to
review recent financial developments that impact the bond covenants and budget
projections. Specific details will follow during this meeting.

IV. Informational Items

The Board listened to a presentation by Dr. Chalwell on this agenda item,
providing them with the background and the focus of the upcoming SPA Family
Presentations taking place this month. Dr. Chalwell took questions during the
presentation.

The Board and Dr. Chalwell will schedule a Special Study Session to delve into a
deep review of the reorganizational plans and growth areas. Dr Chalwell will be
providing the Board with a report and organizational charts to assist in the review
and prioritization prior to this session.

Dr. Chalwell provided the Board with an update on the plans for the staggered
transition of mask wearing based on the results of a parent survey. SPA is
currently in Phase I of this plan. Weekly Covid testing continues. Each week the
plan will be recessed to afford the opportunity to adjust the plan as necessary.

V. ACTION ITEMS

H. Vega made a motion to approve the provision in AB 361 to continue using the
bill's exemption to the Brown Act teleconferencing rules for an additional 30 days.
D. Wendt seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
M. Gil Aye
H. Vega Aye
D. Padberg Aye
F. Bani-Taba Aye
D. Wendt Aye

Items on the AgendaA.

Items Not on the AgendaB.

Finance CommitteeA.

Reorganization Plans for SY 2022-2023A.

Mask Mandate TransitionB.

Revised Brown Act Requirements on Teleconferencing RulesA.

2nd Interim ReportB.
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M. Gil made a motion to approve the 2nd Interim Budget/Report as presented.
D. Wendt seconded the motion.
Dr. Chalwell announced to the Board that a major concern has been addressed
through diligent work around the budget and bond covenants. Edtec managers
Madhu Muppidi and Kendall Aozasa delivered a detail 2nd Interim Budget report,
including the monthly financial report. Questions and concerns from the Board
were discussed.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call
D. Wendt Aye
D. Padberg Aye
F. Bani-Taba Aye
M. Gil Aye
H. Vega Aye

VI. STAFF REPORTS

Dr. Chalwell's report focuses on enrollment. To offer insight on the efforts taken,
Director Lisa Kingsbury joined the meeting to present details on the specific work
undertaken and to field questions and comments from the Board.

This agenda item was included earlier in the meeting under item V, B - 2nd Interim
Report.

VII. CLOSED SESSION

Re: Title - Administration, Teachers, Classified

The Board entered into Closed Session.

Re: Employment

The Board entered into Closed Session.

VIII. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

The Board reentered open session. Chairman Padberg reported out that the
Board took unanimous action on accepting the release of the following positions:

ID 891195 - Coordinator of Administrative Services
ID 855946 - Instructional Assistant
ID 627197 - Instructor

IX. Closing Items

Executive Director ReportA.

Financial Report and Update from EdTecB.

Public EmploymentA.

Public EmploymentB.

Report OutA.

A.
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There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:13 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
D. Padberg

Documents used during the meeting

• 2022_02_15_board_meeting_minutes.pdf
• Revised_Brown_Act_Requirements_on_Teleconferencing_Rules.pdf
• CCSPA 20-21 2nd Interim Narrative of Changes.docx
• CCSPA 6787 Jan22.pdf
• CCSPA January Financials (March Board Meeting) 3.11.22 (1).pdf
• CCSPA LCFF-Calculator 2nd Interim 3.8.22.xlsx
• CCSPA March Board Meeting (January Financials).pdf
• Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 2021-22 2nd Interim Report.xlsx
• GeneralLedger420.xlsx
• IncomeStatement-171.xlsx
• ReconciliationSummary-9121-76787CashinBa...hecking76787(main)335.xls

Adjourn Meeting
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Cover Sheet

A-G Grant Plan

Section: IV. Informational Items
Item: A. A-G Grant Plan
Purpose: FYI
Submitted by:
Related Material: A-GCIGP SPA Plan 2022.docx.pdf
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A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Total Grant Allocation

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts $36,910

Plan Descriptions

A description of how the funds will be used to increase or improve services for foster youth, low-income students, and English learners to improve A-G eligibility

Funds will be used to provide targeted learning supports for foster youth, low-income students, and English Learners in before and after school tutoring programs,
summer programs, and interventions during daily Advisory and Academic Enrichments supported by credentialed teachers and instructional aides..

A description of the extent to which all students, including foster youth, low-income students, and English learners, will have access to A-G courses approved by
the University of California.

100% of foster youth, low-income students, and English Learners enrolled in a general education program will have access to A-G courses approved by the
University of California.

The number of students who were identified for opportunities to retake A-G approved courses in which they received a “D”, “F”, or “Fail” grade in the 2020 spring
semester or the 2020-21 school year and a description of the method used to offer the opportunity retake courses.

28

The parents/guardians of foster youth, low-income students, and English Learners are engaged with through direct communication and offered the opportunities
for students to participate in credit recovery, or to retake classes during summer school or the next school year.

A description of how the plan and described services, and associated expenditures, if applicable, supplement services in the Local Control and Accountability Plan
and Learning Recovery Plan.

The plan supplements services in the LCAP and LRP through the dedication of more resources to teachers and instructional aides as important facilitators of
learning.

Plan Expenditures

Programs and services to increase or improve A-G completion Planned Expenditures
Provide access to online A-G classes for families who opt for independent study [$ 6,910.00]

Provide 10 days of teacher and/or administrator professional development in learning intervention program
implementation [$ 10,000.00]

Additional staff for 8 school months of after school tutoring support 4-days per week. [$ 20,000.00]
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Cover Sheet

Revised Brown Act Requirements on Teleconferencing
Rules

Section: V. ACTION ITEMS
Item: A. Revised Brown Act Requirements on Teleconferencing
Rules
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material:
Revised Brown Act Requirements on Teleconferencing Rules.pdf
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Revised Brown Act Requirements on Teleconferencing Rules

The Governing Board of the Contra Costa School of Performing Arts determines, in accordance
with Government Code Section 54953(e)(1)(B), that meeting in person would present imminent
risks to the health or safety of attendees.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)(3),
the Board has also reconsidered the circumstances of the State of Emergency declared by the
Governor on March 4, 2020, and finds the State of Emergency continues to directly impact the
ability of the Directors to meet safely in person and/or that State or local officials continue to
impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.
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Cover Sheet

Audit Report Approval

Section: V. ACTION ITEMS
Item: B. Audit Report Approval
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: 20-21 Audit Rpt - ContraCosta.pdf
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Financial Statements and Supplemental Information 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Financial Statements and Supplemental Information 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Contra Costa School of Performing Arts (the 
Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related 
consolidated statement of activities, consolidated functional expenses, and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows 

for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying supplementary information, as required by the 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local 
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 15, 2022, on our 
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

El Cajon, California 
February 15, 2022 

24 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



 

 
 

Financial Statements 

25 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
4 

 

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2021 
               

 

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,795,280$         
Accounts receivable 983,156              
Prepaid expenses 29,486                
Security deposits 2,515                  
Other assets cost of issuance 608,097              
Property and equipment, net 13,523,177         

Total Assets 16,941,711$        

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable 265,753$            
Accrued payroll liabilites 93,285                
Unearned revenue 202,528              
Note payable 50,008                
Bonds payable, net of discount and costs 15,404,574         

Total Liabilities 16,016,148         
Net Assets

Without donor restrictions
Undesignated 2,806,960           
Invested in property and equipment, net of related debt (1,881,397)          

925,563              

Total Net Assets 925,563              
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 16,941,711$        
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Consolidated Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 

Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions Total

Revenue, Support, and Gains
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) sources

State aid 1,803,425$         -$                   1,803,425$         
Education protection account state aid 87,340                -                     87,340                
Transfers in lieu of property taxes 2,060,691           -                     2,060,691           
Total LCFF sources 3,951,456           -                     3,951,456           

Federal contracts and grants -                     273,544              273,544              
PPP loan forgiveness -                     579,965              579,965              
State contracts and grants 136,194              463,320              599,514              
Local contracts and grants 15,050                -                     15,050                
Donations and fundraising 129,783              -                     129,783              
Interest income 77                      -                     77                      
Net assets released from restriction - 

Grant restrictions satisfied 1,316,829           (1,316,829)          -                     
Total revenue, support, and gains 5,549,389           -                     5,549,389           

Expenses and Losses
Program services expense 3,494,852           -                     3,494,852           
Supporting services expense 1,629,932           -                     1,629,932           

Total expenses and losses 5,124,784           -                     5,124,784           

Change in Net Assets 424,605              -                     424,605              
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 500,958              -                     500,958              
Net Assets, End of Year 925,563$            -$                   925,563$            
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 

Program Services
Educational 
Programs

Management and 
General

Fundraising and 
Development Total

Salaries and wages 2,245,469$           124,442$              -$                     2,369,911$           
Pension expense 268,790                14,896                  -                       283,686                
Other employee benefits 257,452                14,268                  -                       271,720                
Payroll taxes 63,454                  3,517                   -                       66,971                  
Fees for services:

Management -                       123,892                -                       123,892                
Legal -                       51,695                  -                       51,695                  
Audit -                       6,800                   -                       6,800                   
Other fees - Professional consulting 5,385                   300                      -                       5,685                   
Other fees - District oversight -                       40,181                  -                       40,181                  
Other fees - Banking and service charges -                       988                      -                       988                      

Advertising and promotion -                       24,613                  -                       24,613                  
Operation and housekeeping 116,793                45,107                  -                       161,900                
Information technology 75,896                  -                       -                       75,896                  
Communications 19,300                  4,826                   -                       24,126                  
Rental, leases, and repairs 133,845                67,217                  -                       201,062                
Travel and conferences 1,476                   -                       -                       1,476                   
Conferences, conventions, and meetings 50,121                  -                       -                       50,121                  
Interest -                       717,277                -                       717,277                
Depreciation 283,681                14,554                  -                       298,235                
Amortization -                       15,032                  -                       15,032                  
Insurance -                       47,864                  -                       47,864                  
Other expenses:

Books and supplies 188,293                14,194                  -                       202,487                
Special education encroachment 28,073                  -                       -                       28,073                  
Dues and memberships 15,231                  -                       -                       15,231                  
Miscellaneous -                       36,582                  3,280                   39,862                  

Total expenses by function 3,753,259$           1,368,245$           3,280$                  5,124,784$           

Supporting Services
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from federal, state, and local contracts and grants 3,113,942$      
Receipts from property taxes 2,188,758        
Other reciepts 144,910           
Payments for salaries and benefits (3,107,429)       
Payments to vendors (2,256,284)       

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 83,897             

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (13,696,097)     

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (13,696,097)     

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
PPP loan forgiveness (579,965)          
Principal payment on notes payable (49,998)            
Issuance of bonds payable 15,404,574      

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 14,774,611      

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,162,411        
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 632,869           
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 1,795,280$      

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash 
Used For Operating Activities

Change in net assets 424,605$         
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash:

Depreciation and amortization 313,267           
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in assets

Accounts receivable (304,307)          
Prepaid expenses 3,579               
Other assets cost of issuance (608,097)          

Increase (Decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 167,463           
Accrued payroll liabilities (115,141)          
Unearned revenue 202,528           

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 83,897$           
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

A. Principal Activity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Organization Structure 
 
Charthouse Public Schools DBA Contra Costa School of Performing Arts (the School) was formed as a charter 
school pursuant to California Education Code Section 47600 under a charter agreement approved by Contra Costa 
County Office of Education on July 15, 2015. Charthouse Public Schools DBA Contra Costa School of 
Performing Arts began operating as a school in the 2016-17 year. 
 
Contra Costa School of Performing Arts is an independent, public charter school that serves students from Walnut 
Creek in 6th through 12th grade. The School’s mission is to provide a distinguished, pre-professional experience 
in performing arts within a college and career preparatory setting. The School believes in fostering a culture of 
excellence with the core values of rigor, relevance, resilience, and relationships. 
 
2730 Mitchell Drive LLC (the LLC) was formed on July 9, 2020, for the sole purpose of providing facility support 
for Contra Costa School of Performing Arts.   
 
Basis of Consolidation 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the School and the LLC, collectively the Organization, 
include accounts of Contra Costa School of Performing Arts and its related entity, 2730 Mitchell Drive LLC.  All 
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  Management makes 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and footnotes.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as applicable to not-for-profit organizations. The Organization uses the accrual basis of 
accounting, under which revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenditures are recognized in the 
accounting period in which the liability is incurred. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Organization considers all cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three 
months or less, which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, to be cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivables consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due to the Organization for federal, state, 
and local grants and contracts receivable. The amounts in accounts receivable are considered fully collectable 
and as such there has not been an allowance for uncollectable accounts or discount established for the 
Organization. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
Property and Equipment 
 
The Organization records property and equipment additions over $5,000 at cost, or if donated, at fair value on 
the date of donation. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 30 years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or 
leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or 
otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts, and any 
resulting gain or loss is included in the statements of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not 
improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed in the current period. 
 
The Organization reviews the carrying values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash 
flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired an impairment loss is 
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset 
impairment during the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Investments 
 
The Organization records investment purchases at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation. 
Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values on the statement of financial position. Net investment 
return/(loss) is reported in the statement of activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and 
unrealized capital gains and losses, less external and direct internal investment expenses. 
 
Net Assets 
 
Net assets, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-imposed 
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to 
donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.  
 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. 
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of 
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where 
the donor stipulates those resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released 
when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for 
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
Revenue and Revenue Recognition 
 
The Organization recognizes revenue from sales when the products are transferred, and services are provided. 
The School records special events revenue equal to the cost of direct benefits to donors, and contribution revenue 
for the difference. Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise 
to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a 
measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which 
they depend have been substantially met. Some federal, state, and local contracts and grants are conditioned upon 
certain performance requirements and the incurrence of allowable qualifying expense. In such cases the revenue 
is recognized once all performance requirements have been met.  
 
Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions 
 
Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our program services, administration, and fundraising and 
developing activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services 
because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
Advertising 
 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and approximated $24,613 during the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional bases in the 
statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses 
by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the program and supporting services benefited. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The School is a 509(a)(1) publicly supported non-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under 
Sections 501(a) and 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The School is also exempt from California franchise 
or income tax under Section 23701d of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The School may be subject 
to tax on income which is not related to its exempt purpose. For the year ended June 30, 2021, no such unrelated 
business income was reported and, therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made. 
 
The LLC is a 509(a)(1) publicly supported non-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The LLC is also exempt from California franchise or income 
tax under Section 23701d of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The School may be subject to tax on 
income which is not related to its exempt purpose. For the year ended June 30, 2021, no such unrelated business 
income was reported and, therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made. 
 
The Organization follows provisions of uncertain tax positions as addressed in ASC 958. The School recognizes 
accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as part of the income tax provision, when 
applicable. There are no amounts accrued in the financial statements related to uncertain tax positions for the 
year ended June 30, 2021. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the 
School to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material. 
 
Financial Instruments and Credit Risk 
 
The Organization manages deposit concentration risk by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates 
of deposit with financial institutions believed by the School to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit 
may exceed insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, the 
Organization has not experienced losses in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with contributions 
receivable is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of 
the outstanding amounts are due from government agencies.  
 
LCFF Revenues and Payments in Lieu of Property Taxes 
 
The School’s primary funding source is a combination of local property taxes and state revenues. The California 
Department of Education computes the local control funding formula (LCFF) on statewide charter school rates 
multiplied by the schools’ average daily attendance (ADA) as reported at the second principal apportionment 
period (P2). The result is then reduced by property tax revenues transferred from the District to the school, which 
is funding in lieu of property taxes, and education protection account funds paid by the state under proposition 
30. The remaining balance is paid from the state general fund, in the form of LCFF State Aid. LCFF funding 
sources, inclusive of state and local sources, made up 71% of the School’s revenue.  
 
The School is not at risk of losing these funding sources, as long as the schools maintain a steady level of ADA, 
as these funding sources are mandated by the California State Constitution to fund schools. 
 
New Accounting Guidance 
 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issues accounting standards updates and additional guidance 
for not-for-profit and for-profit agencies to establish consistent accounting across all organizations in the United 
States. The following table represents items that have been issued by FASB that became effective in the 2020-21 
fiscal year: 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 

Description

Date 
Issued

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2017-11 - Earnings Per Share 
(Topic 260)

Jan-18

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2017-11 - Distinguising Liabilities 
from Equity (Topic 480)

Jan-18

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2017-11 - Derivatives and Hedging 
(Topic 815)

Jan-18

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-05 - Financial Instruments, 
Credit Losses (Topic 326)

May-19

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-11 - Codification 
Improvements to Financial Instruments, Credit Losses (Topic 326)

Nov-19

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-03 - Codification 
Improvements to Financial Instruments

Mar-20

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-04 - Reference Rate Reform 
(Topic 848)

Mar-20

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-01 - Reference Rate Reform 
(Topic 848)

Jan-21

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-03 - Intangibles Goodwill and 
Other (Topic 350)

Mar-21
 

 
These updates were issued to provide clarification and simplification in accounting for certain transactions. In 
addition, they provide for additional note disclosures to create transparency involving these transactions. The 
School has adopted provisions of effective Accounting Standards Updates. The implementation of these items 
did not result in a change to financial presentation for the School. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the Organization has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through February 15, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

B. Liquidity and Availability 
 
The Organization’s financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following: 

 
 Contra Costa 

School of 
Performing Arts 

2730 Mitchell 
Drive LLC Total

Cash and cash equivalents 1,222,950$         572,330$            1,795,280$         
Accounts receivable 958,784              24,372                983,156              
Prepaid expenses 29,486                -                     29,486                

2,211,220$         596,702$            2,807,922$         

 
C. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure 
 

The LLC reports certain assets and liabilities at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most 
advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer 
broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including 
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from 
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the 
best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows: 
 
 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we can access 

at the measurement date. 
  
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities 
in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not 
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-
corroborated inputs. 

 
 Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, the School develops inputs using 

the best information available in the circumstances. 
 

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset, or a liability might be categorized within 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety 
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the measurement. 
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, considering factors 
specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing 
transparency of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to the Organization’s assessment of the quality, 
risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2021: 
 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets
Significant Other 

Observable Inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs
Assets Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Operating investments:
Cash and money market funds 572,330$              572,330$              -$                     -$                     

572,330$              572,330$              -$                     -$                     

 
 
 
D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
The Organization’s cash and cash equivalents on June 30, 2021, consisted of the following: 
 

 Contra Costa 
School of 

Performing Arts 
2730 Mitchell 

Drive LLC Total

Cash in bank accounts 1,222,950$         -$                   1,222,950$         
Cash in money market accounts -                     572,330              572,330              

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,222,950$         572,330$            1,795,280$         

 
 
Cash in Bank 
 
A portion of the School’s cash, $1,222,950, is held in financial institutions which are insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a limit of $250,000 per depositor. As of June 30, 2021, the School 
held $974,266 in excess of the FDIC insured amounts. The School reduces its exposure to risk by maintaining 
such deposits with high quality financial institutions. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts 
and believe it is not exposed to any significant credit risk. 
 
Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 
The LLC maintains cash in money market funds ($572,330 as of June 30, 2021). These cash equivalents consist 
of United States Government Money Market Funds. These funds are not FDIC insured and are therefore exposed 
to custodial credit risk. The LLC does not anticipate any losses as a result of this risk. Cash may be added or 
withdrawn from the money market accounts without limitation. 
 
.  
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
E. Accounts Receivable 

 
As of June 30, 2021, The Organization’s accounts receivable consisted of the following: 
 

 Contra Costa 
School of 

Performing Arts 
 2730 Mitchell 

Drive LLC Total

Federal Government
Special Education 59,650$              -$                   59,650$              
Other Federal Programs 24,622                -                     24,622                

State Government
State Aid 621,294              -                     621,294              
Lottery Funding 63,028                -                     63,028                
Special Education 190,190              -                     190,190              

Other Local Sources
Other local sources -                     24,372                24,372                

Total Accounts Receivable 958,784$            24,372$              983,156$            

 
 
F. Prepaid Expenses 

 
As of June 30, 2021, the School’s prepaid expenses consisted of the following: 

 
 Contra Costa 

School of 
Performing Arts 

Prepaid health insurance 29,486$              

Total Prepaid Expenses 29,486$              

 
 

G. Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment for the School consisted of the following at June 30, 2021: 

 
 Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Deletions  Ending Balance 

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 10,000$              -$                   -$                   10,000$              
Equipment, Furniture, and Fixtures 428,435              -                     -                     428,435              
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 438,435              -                     -                     438,435              

Total Capital Assets 438,435              -                     -                     438,435              
Less Accumulated Depreciation (298,088)             (58,216)               -                     (356,304)             
Capital Assets, Net 140,347$            (58,216)$             -$                   82,131$              
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
Property and equipment for the LLC consisted of the following at June 30, 2021: 

 
 Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Deletions  Ending Balance 

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements -$                   13,681,065$        -$                   13,681,065$        
Total Depreciable Capital Assets -                     13,681,065         -                     13,681,065         

Total Capital Assets -                     13,681,065         -                     13,681,065         
Less Accumulated Depreciation -                     (240,019)             -                     (240,019)             
Capital Assets, Net -$                   13,441,046$        -$                   13,441,046$        

 
Consolidated property and equipment for the Organization consisted of the following at June 30, 2021: 

 
 Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Deletions  Ending Balance 

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 10,000$              13,681,065$        -$                   13,691,065$        
Equipment, Furniture, and Fixtures 428,435              -                     -                     428,435              
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 438,435              13,681,065         -                     14,119,500         

Total Capital Assets 438,435              13,681,065         -                     14,119,500         
Less Accumulated Depreciation (298,088)             (298,235)             -                     (596,323)             
Capital Assets, Net 140,347$            13,382,830$        -$                   13,523,177$        

 
 

H. Accounts Payable 
 
As of June 30, 2021, the Organization’s accounts payable consisted of the following: 

 

 Contra Costa 
School of 

Performing Arts 
2730 Mitchell 

Drive LLC

Vendors 160,385$            25,505$              
Lease payments 46,246                -                     
Due to grantor governments 33,617                -                     

Total Accounts Payable 240,248$            25,505$              

 
 

I. Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities 
 
As of June 30, 2021, the School’s accrued payroll and related liabilities consisted of the following: 

 
 Contra Costa 

School of 
Performing Arts 

Salaries payable 53,700$              
Payroll taxes payable 39,585                

Total Accrued Payroll & Related 93,285$              
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
J. Unearned Revenue 

 
At year end the School had performance obligations remaining to expend funds for multiple grants.  As such, 
unexpected cash received is reflected in unearned revenue. 
 
The following table provides information about significant changes in unearned revenue for the year ended June 
30, 2021: 
 

Unearned Revenue, beginning of period -$                   
Increases in deferred revenue due to cash 
received during the period 202,528              

Decreases in deferred revenue due to 
performance obligations met during the 
period -                     

Unearned Revenue, end of period 202,528$            

 
 

As of June 30, 2021, unearned revenue consisted of the following: 
 

Expanded Learning Opportunity (ELO) 137,490$            
In-Person Instruction (IPI) 65,038                

Total Unearned Revenue 202,528$            

 
 

K. Bonds and Notes Payable 
 

 
On 7/12/16 the School entered into a loan agreement with the California Finance Authority under the Charter 
School Revolving Loan Fund Program to supplement cash flows during implementation years.  The agreement 
provided for annual payments of $50,000 plus accrued interest for a period of 5 years.  Payments included interest 
at a rate of 0.58%.  As of June 30, 2021, the School was obligated for the following payments: 
 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 50,000$        8$               50,008$        
50,000$        8$               50,008$        
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
On September 1, 2020, the LLC issued bonds through California Finance Authority.  The LLC has two sets of 
bonds, the Series 2020A in the amount of $16,065,000 and Series 2020B in the amount of $285,000.  The Series 
2020A was issued at a discount of $963,900 and the series 2020B was issued at a discount of $17,100.  The Series 
2020A Bonds have an interest rate of 5.5%; while the Series 2020B Bonds have an interest rate of 7.5%.  The 
Bonds are secured by the underlying educational facilities.  The Bonds contained a discount when issued of 
$981,000 which is amortized as interest expense over the life of the Bonds.  
 
Bonds payables consist of the following at June 30, 2021: 
 

Principal amount 16,350,000$        
Less unamortized discounts and debt issuance costs (945,426)              

15,404,574$        

 
Future maturities of bonds payable are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 
30, Principal Interest Total

2022 -$                     567,450$              567,450$              
2023 -                       721,617                721,617                
2024 13,750                  904,950                918,700                
2025 166,250                903,919                1,070,169             
2026 181,250                891,550                1,072,800             

2027-2031 1,085,000             4,283,675             5,368,675             
2032-2036 1,416,250             3,951,063             5,367,313             
2037-2041 1,853,333             3,516,219             5,369,552             
2042-2046 2,416,250             2,497,977             4,914,227             
2047-2051 3,169,583             2,205,065             5,374,648             
2052-2056 4,138,750             1,232,092             5,370,842             
2057-2058 1,909,584             156,704                2,066,288             

16,350,000$         21,832,281$         38,182,281$         
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
L. Operating Leases 
 

On September 1, 2020, the School entered into a lease with 2730 Mitchell Drive LLC for school space with a 
term through May 25, 2058.  The following schedule represents the future minimum lease payments: 
 

Year Ended June 30
Operating 

Leases

2022 567,450$       
2023 721,617         
2024 918,700         
2025 1,070,169      
2026 1,072,800      
2027-2031 5,368,675      
2032-2036 5,367,313      
2037-2041 5,369,552      
2042-2046 5,364,227      
2047-2051 5,374,648      
2052-2056 5,370,842      
2057-2058 2,066,287      
Total minimum lease payments 38,632,280$   

 
 

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2021, totaled $855,956. 
 

M. Employee Retirement System 
 

Qualified employees are covered under a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan by an agency of the 
State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System 
(CalSTRS). The risks of participating in these multi-employer plans are different from single-employer plans in 
the following aspects: 
 
a. Assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees 

of the other participating employers. 
 

b. If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne 
by the remaining participating employers. 

 
c. If the School chooses to stop participating in some of its multi-employer plans, the School may be required 

to pay those plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
The School’s participation in this plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, is outlined in the table below. 
The “EIN/Pension Plan Number” column provides the Employee Identification Number (EIN) and the three-
digit plan number, if applicable. Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pension Protection Act (PPA) zone 
status available in 2021, 2020 and 2019 is for the plan’s year-end at June 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
The zone status is based on information that the School received from the plan and is certified by the plan's 
actuary. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65% funded, plans in the yellow zone 
are less than 80% funded, and plans in the green zone are at least 80% funded. The “FIP/RP Status 
Pending/Implemented” column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan (FIP) or a rehabilitation 
plan (RP) is either pending or has been implemented.  
 
 

Pension Fund 2021 2020 2019
CalSTRS 07069 Yellow Yellow Yellow No

Pension Fund 2021 2020 2019
CalSTRS 283,686$     272,517$    270,894$    34 No

Total 283,686$     272,517$    270,894$    34

EIN/
Pension Plan 

Number

Pension Protection Act 
Zone Status

Year Ended June 30,

FIP/RP 
Status 

Pending/
Implemented

Contributions Number of 
Employees

Surcharge 
Imposed

 
 
CalSTRS: 
 
The School contributes to the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), a cost-sharing multiple 
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. Required 
contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. Contribution 
rates are expressed as a level of percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. CalSTRS 
also uses the level of percentage of payroll method to calculate the amortization of any unfunded liability. Copies 
of the STRS annual report may be obtained from the STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 
95826. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, active plan members were required to contribute between 10.205% and 
10.25% of their salary, depending on their hire date. The employer contribution rate was 16.15% of annual 
payroll. CalSTRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. The School made contributions as noted above. For the year ended June 
30, 2021, the State contributed $179,970 (10.328% of certificated salaries plus an additional supplemental 
amount) on behalf of the School. 
 
  

42 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



 

21 
 

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
N. Upcoming Changes in Accounting Pronouncements 

 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued the following Accounting Standards Updates 
(ASU) that become effective over the next few fiscal years: 
 

Description

Date 
Issued

Fiscal Year 
Effective

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2016-02 - Leases (Topic 842) Feb-16 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2016-13 - Credit Losses (Topic326) Jun-16 2023-24

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2017-04 - Intangibles, Goodwill & 
Other (Topic 350)

Jan-17 2023-24

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2017-12 - Derivatives and Hedging 
(Topic 815)

Aug-17 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-01 - Leases (Topic 842) Jan-18 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-10 - Codification 
Improvements to Topic 842 Leases

Jul-18 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-11 - Leases Targeted 
Improvements (Topic 842)

Jul-18 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-12 - Financial Services 
Insurance (Topic 944)

Aug-18 2024-25

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-14 - Compensation, 
Retirement Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans (Topic 715-20)

Aug-18 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-15 - Intangibles, Goodwill 
and Other, Internal Use Software (Topic 350-40)

Aug-18 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-16 - Derivatives and Hedging 
(Topic 815)

Oct-18 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-17 - Consolidation (Topic 
810)

Oct-18 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-18 - Collaborative 
Arrangements (Topic 808)

Nov-18 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-19 - Codification 
Improvements for Credit Losses (Topic 326)

Nov-18 2023-24

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2018-20 - Leases (Topic 842) Dec-18 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-01 - Leases (Topic 842) Mar-19 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-02 - Entertainment Film Costs 
(Topic 926-20)

Mar-19 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-09 - Financial Services, 
Insurance (Topic 944)

Nov-19 2024-25

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-10 - Financial Instruments, 
Credit Losses

Nov-19 2023-24
 

43 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



 

22 
 

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

Description

Date 
Issued

Fiscal Year 
Effective

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-10 - Derivatives and Hedging 
(Topic 815)

Nov-19 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2019-12 - Income Taxes (Topic 
740)

Dec-19 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-01 - Investments (Topics 321, 
323, and 815)

Jan-20 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-05 - Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers (Topic 606)

Jun-20 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-05 - Leases (Topic 842) Jun-20 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-06 - Debt (Topic 470-20) Aug-20 2024-25

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-06 - Derivatives and Hedging 
(Topic 815-40)

Aug-20 2024-25

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-07 - Not-For-Profit Entities 
(Topic 958)

Sep-20 2021-22

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-08 - Codification 
Improvements for Receivables (Topic 310-20)

Oct-20 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2020-10 - Codification 
Improvements

Nov-20 2025-26

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-02 - Franchisors Revenue 
(Topic 952-606)

Jan-21 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-04 - Earnings Per Share 
(Topic 260)

May-21 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-04 - Debt Modifications and 
Extinguishments (Topic 470-50)

May-21 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-04 - Stock Compensation 
(Topic 718)

May-21 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-04 - Derivatives and Hedging 
(Topic 815-40)

May-21 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-05 - Leases (Topic 842) Jul-21 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-07 - Stock Compensation 
(Topic 718)

Oct-21 2022-23

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-08 - Business Combinations 
(Topic 805)

Oct-21 2024-25

FASB Accounting Standards Update 2021-09 - Leases (Topic 842) Nov-21 2022-23
 

 
These updates were issued to provide clarification and simplification in accounting for certain transactions. In 
addition, they provide for additional note disclosures to create transparency involving these transactions. The 
updates effective during the future fiscal years are not expected to impact the financial accounting or presentation 
for the School. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

O. COVID-19 Impact and Considerations 
 
In March 2020 the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus COVID-19 a global 
pandemic. The nature of the pandemic resulted in a mandatory school property closure affecting Contra Costa 
School of Performing Arts from March 16, 2020 and continuing into the Fall of the 2020-21 school year. 
California Governor Gavin Newsom issued a state-wide executive order mandating that schools remain closed 
until the county in which the school is located is off the COVID-19 watch list for fourteen consecutive days. The 
2020-21 fiscal year opened in a fully distance learning model, until such time as campuses were re-opened.  
 
In addition to school closures, new regulations and safety measures were required to be put in place by all schools 
in California as part of a re-opening plan. Contra Costa School of Performing Arts established and followed a re-
opening plan that they believe is providing a safe environment for the students and teachers.  
 
The federal and state government have established temporary funding to assist in the additional costs that resulted 
from the COVID-19 pandemic. All California schools are eligible for these funds. Some funding provided as a 
result of COVID-19 is intended to be spent over multiple years. The School has taken all of the requirements of 
each funding source into consideration in preparation of budgets for upcoming years. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2021 
  

 Contra Costa 
School of 

Performing Arts 
 2730 Mitchell 

Drive LLC Elimination Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,222,950$         572,330$            -$                   1,795,280$         
Accounts receivable 958,784              24,372                -                     983,156              
Prepaid expenses 29,486                -                     -                     29,486                
Security deposits 2,515                  -                     -                     2,515                  
Deferred rent -                     585,434              (585,434)             -                     
Other assets cost of issuance -                     608,097              -                     608,097              
Property and equipment, net 82,131                13,441,046         -                     13,523,177         

Total Assets 2,295,866$         15,231,279$        (585,434)$           16,941,711$        

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable 240,248$            25,505$              -                     265,753$            
Accrued payroll liabilites 93,285                -                     -                     93,285                
Deferred rent liability 585,434              -                     (585,434)             -                     
Unearned revenue 202,528              -                     -                     202,528              
Notes payable 50,008                -                     -                     50,008                
Bonds payable, net of discount and costs -                     15,404,574         -                     15,404,574         

Total Liabilities 1,171,503           15,430,079         (585,434)             16,016,148         
Net Assets

Without donor restrictions
Undesignated 1,042,232           1,764,728           -                     2,806,960           
Invested in property and equipment, net of related debt 82,131                (1,963,528)          -                     (1,881,397)          

1,124,363           (198,800)             -                     925,563              

Total Net Assets 1,124,363           (198,800)             -                     925,563              
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 2,295,866$         15,231,279$        (585,434)$           16,941,711$        
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Consolidating Statement of Activities 

June 30, 2021 
  

 

Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions

Without Donor 
Restrictions Elimination Total

Revenue, Support, and Gains
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) sources

State aid 1,803,425$         -$                   -$                   -$                   1,803,425$         
Education protection account state aid 87,340                -                     -                     -                     87,340                
Transfers in lieu of property taxes 2,060,691           -                     -                     -                     2,060,691           
Total LCFF sources 3,951,456           -                     -                     -                     3,951,456           

Federal contracts and grants -                     273,544              -                     -                     273,544              
PPP loan forgiveness -                     579,965              -                     -                     579,965              
State contracts and grants 136,194              463,320              -                     -                     599,514              
Local contracts and grants 15,050                -                     -                     -                     15,050                
Donations and fundraising 129,783              -                     -                     -                     129,783              
Rental income -                     -                     772,961              (772,961)             -                     
Interest income -                     -                     77                      -                     77                      
Net assets released from restriction - 

Grant restrictions satisfied 1,316,829           (1,316,829)          -                     -                     -                     
Total revenue, support, and gains 5,549,312           -                     773,038              (772,961)             5,549,389           

Expenses and Losses
Program services expense 4,027,794           -                     240,019              (772,961)             3,494,852           
Supporting services expense 898,113              -                     731,819              -                     1,629,932           

Total expenses and losses 4,925,907           -                     971,838              (772,961)             5,124,784           

Change in Net Assets 623,405              -                     (198,800)             -                     424,605              
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 500,958              -                     -                     -                     500,958              
Net Assets, End of Year 1,124,363$         -$                   (198,800)$           -$                   925,563$            

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts
2730 Mitchell 

Drive LLC
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Consolidating Statement of Functional Expenses 

June 30, 2021 
  

 

Program Services Program Services
Educational 

Programs
Management and 

General
Fundraising and 
Development

Educational 
Programs

Management and 
General Elimination Total

Salaries and wages 2,245,469$           124,442$              -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                   2,369,911$           
Pension expense 268,790                14,896                  -                       -                       -                       -                     283,686                
Other employee benefits 257,452                14,268                  -                       -                       -                       -                     271,720                
Payroll taxes 63,454                  3,517                   -                       -                       -                       -                     66,971                  
Fees for services:

Management -                       123,892                -                       -                       -                       -                     123,892                
Legal -                       51,695                  -                       -                       -                       -                     51,695                  
Audit -                       6,800                   -                       -                       -                       -                     6,800                   
Professional consulting 5,385                   300                      -                       -                       -                       -                     5,685                   
District oversight -                       40,181                  -                       -                       -                       -                     40,181                  
Banking and service charges -                       988                      -                       -                       -                       -                     988                      

Advertising and promotion -                       24,613                  -                       -                       -                       -                     24,613                  
Operation and housekeeping 116,793                45,107                  -                       -                       -                       -                     161,900                
Information technology 75,896                  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     75,896                  
Communications 19,300                  4,826                   -                       -                       -                       -                     24,126                  
Rental, leases, and repairs 648,399                325,624                -                       -                       -                       (772,961)             201,062                
Travel and conferences 1,476                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     1,476                   
Conferences, conventions, and meetings 50,121                  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     50,121                  
Interest -                       490                      -                       -                       716,787                -                     717,277                
Depreciation 43,662                  14,554                  -                       240,019                -                       -                     298,235                
Amortization -                       -                       -                       -                       15,032                  -                     15,032                  
Insurance -                       47,864                  -                       -                       -                       -                     47,864                  
Other expenses:

Books and supplies 188,293                14,194                  -                       -                       -                       -                     202,487                
Special education encroachment 28,073                  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     28,073                  
Dues and memberships 15,231                  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     15,231                  
Miscellaneous -                       36,582                  3,280                   -                       -                       -                     39,862                  

Total expenses by function 4,027,794$           894,833$              3,280$                  240,019$              731,819$              (772,961)             5,124,784$           

Supporting Services Supporting Services

2730 Mitchell Drive LLCContra Costa School of Performing Arts
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
LEA Organization Structure 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

               

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts (Charter #1773) was established in 2015.  The authorizing entity is Contra 
Costa County Office of Education. 

 

Name Office Term and Term Expiration

Deborah Padberg Chair Two Year Term
Expires December 31, 2022

Marie Gil Vice-Chair Two Year Term
Expires December 31, 2022

Heather Vega Secretary Two Year Term
Expires December 31, 2022

David Wendt Treasurer Two Year Term
Expires December 31, 2022

Tamara Gerlach Member Two Year Term
Expires December 31, 2022

ADMINISTRATION

Robert Chalwell
Executive Director

GOVERNING BOARD
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Schedule of Instructional Time 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 

Grade Level
Minimum Daily 
Minutes Offered

Instructional 
Days Offered
Multi-Track 

Calendar
J-13A 

Credited Days Status

6th Grade 240 180 N/A Complied

7th Grade 240 180 N/A Complied

8th Grade 240 180 N/A Complied

9th Grade 240 180 N/A Complied

10th Grade 240 180 N/A Complied

11th Grade 240 180 N/A Complied

12th Grade 240 180 N/A Complied  

  

51 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



 

See Accompanying Notes to Supplementary Information 
29 

 

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Schedule of Financial Trends & Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 

Budget 
2022 2021 2020 2019

Revenues 6,223,411$   5,549,389$   4,932,308$   5,109,526$   
Expenses 6,383,028     5,124,784     4,781,924     4,406,821     
Change in Net Assets (159,617)       424,605        150,384        702,705        

Ending Net Assets 765,946$      925,563$      500,958$      350,574$      

Unrestricted Net Assets 1,118,128$   925,563$      500,958$      322,494$      

Unrestricted net assets as a
   percentage of total expenses 17.52% 18.06% 10.48% 7.32%

Total Long Term Debt 15,404,574$  15,454,582$  679,971$      150,004$      

ADA at P2 493              N/A 432              422              

 

The Organization’s ending net assets has increased by $574,989 (164.01%) over the past two fiscal years. The 
significant increase is in large due to additional funding received as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Restricted 
ending net assets include multi-year grants that will be expended over the next two to three years.  

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic there was no attendance reporting for the 2020-21 fiscal year. Each LEA was 
funded based on the 2019-20 average daily attendance (ADA) reported.  

The 2021-22 budget is presented for purposes of analysis only and has not been audited. Net assets are projected to 
increase by $765,946 and ADA is projected to be 493 for the 2021-22 fiscal year. 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report to Audited Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 

June 30, 2021 annual financial alternative form net assets: 1,158,535$       

Adjustments and reclassifications:
Understatement of accounts payable (34,171)             
Rounding (1)                     
Total adjustments and reclassifications (34,172)             

June 30, 2021 audited financial statements net assets: 1,124,363$       
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to Supplementary Information 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

A. Purpose of Schedules 
 
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position 
 
This schedule provides the information by school which combines into the Organization’s overall statement of 
net position, with eliminations for activities between the schools within the School. 
 
Consolidating Statement of Activities 
 
This schedule provides the information by school which combines into the Organization’s overall statement of 
activities. 
 
Consolidating Statement of Functional Expenses 
 
This schedule provides the information by subdivision which combines into the Organization’s overall statement 
of functional expenses. 
 
LEA Organization Structure 
 
This schedule provides information about the School’s charter number, district of authorization, members of the 
governing board, and members of administration. 
 
Schedule of Instructional Time 
 
In addition, this schedule provides the information necessary to determine if the Charter Schools have complied 
with Education Code §47612 & §47612.5 which require the following: 

1) EC §47612: As a condition of apportionment 175 school days must be offered for traditional calendar. If 
a multi-track calendar is utilized, each track must offer 175 school days. 
 

2) EC §47612.5: As a condition of apportionment the following annual instructional minutes must be 
offered: 
 

 To pupils in Kindergarten   36,000 minutes 
 To pupils in grades 1 to 3  50,400 minutes 
 To pupils in grades 4 to 8  54,000 minutes 
 To pupils in grades 9 to 12  64,800 minutes 

 

Under Senate Bill 98 and Senate Bill 820, annual instructional minutes requirements were waived for the 2020-
21 school year. For classroom-based charter schools, in order for a day to count as a day of instruction towards 
meeting the annual instructional day requirement, students must be scheduled to attend for the school day 
established by the local governing board and the school day must be equivalent to at least a minimum day of 
instruction as follows: 

 

 180 instructional minutes in TK/Kindergarten, continuation high schools, opportunity schools, and 
students concurrently enrolled in a community college. 

 230 instructional minutes in grades 1 to 3 
 240 minutes in grades 4 to 12  
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Notes to Supplementary Information (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the School operated a portion of the year under distance learning and a 
portion of the year under in person classroom instruction. 

 

Instructional time for distance learning is calculated based on the time value of synchronous and/or 
asynchronous instruction and assignments made by and certified by a certificated employee of the LEA. 
Instructional time for in-person instruction is calculated based on time scheduled under the immediate physical 
supervision and control of a certificated employee of the LEA. 
 
Schedule of Financial Trends & Analysis 
 
This schedule displays summarized information from the current year and two previous years, along with budget 
information for the upcoming year. The information from this schedule is used to evaluate whether there are any 
financial indicators the Organization will not be able to continue operations in the next fiscal year. Based upon 
the information presented, the Organization appears to have sufficient reserves to continue operations for the 
2021-22 fiscal year. 
 
Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report to Audited Financial Statements 
 
This schedule provides information necessary to reconcile between the audited financial statements and the 
financial data submitted to the sponsoring school district via the unaudited actual financial report. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Contra Costa School of Performing Arts, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, which collectively 
comprise Contra Costa School of Performing Arts’ basic consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated February 15, 2022. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
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Purpose of this Report 
 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

 

 

El Cajon, California 
February 15, 2022 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
 
Report on State Compliance 
 
We have audited the Contra Costa School of Performing Arts’s (the School) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 
Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810, that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the School’s state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

Management’s Responsibility for State Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its state programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the 2020-21 
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance, prescribed in Title 5, California 
Code of Regulations, Section 19810. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the comptroller General of the United States; and the 2020-21 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California 
Code of Regulations, Section 19810. Those standards and audit guide require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about each school’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
of the School’s compliance with those requirements. 
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In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the 
School’s compliance with state laws and regulations applicable to the following items: 

 
 
 

Description
Procedures 
Performed

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools
A.  Attendance and Distance Learning…................................................................. Yes
B.  Teacher Certification and Misassignments….....................................................  N/A
C.  Kindergarten Continuance….............................................................................  N/A
D.  Independent Study…........................................................................................ N/A
G.  Instructional Materials….................................................................................. N/A
H.  Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers….............................................  N/A
I.  Classroom Teacher Salaries…...........................................................................  N/A
J.  Early Retirement Incentive….............................................................................  N/A
K.  Gann Limit Calculation…................................................................................. N/A
L.  School Accountability Report Card…................................................................ N/A
O.  K-3 Grade Span Adjustment….........................................................................  N/A
Q.  Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction…....................................  N/A
R.  Comprehensive School Safety Plan…................................................................ N/A
S.  District of Choice….........................................................................................  N/A

 
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools  

T.  California Clean Energy Jobs Act….................................................................. N/A
V.  Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds…............................  Yes
W.  Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts…...........................  Yes

 
Charter Schools  

AA.  Attendance…...............................................................................................  Yes
BB.  Mode of Instruction….................................................................................... Yes
CC.  Nonclassroom Based Instruction/Independent Study….....................................  N/A
DD.  Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom Based Instruction….....................  N/A
FF.  Charter School Facility Grant Program….........................................................  N/A  

 
The term N/A is used above to mean either the School did not offer the program during the current fiscal year or the 
program applies to a different type of local education agency. 
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Opinion on State Compliance 
 
In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing. 
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 19810. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
El Cajon, California 
February 15, 2022 
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Schedule of Auditor’s Results 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X No

STATE AWARDS

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
  in accordance with 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits
  of California K-12 Local Education Agencies? Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for state programs:

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified

  not considered material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weakness(es) identified?
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are
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Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
               

 
Findings represent significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and/or instances of noncompliance related to 
the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, or 
the 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance 
Reporting (the Audit Guide). Finding codes as identified in the Audit Guide are as follows: 
 

Five Digit Code AB 3627 Finding Type
10000 Attendance
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30000 Internal Control
40000 State Compliance
42000 Charter School Facilities
43000 Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
50000 Federal Compliance
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000 Local Control Accountability Plan
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 School Accountability Report Card  

 

A. Financial Statement Findings 
 
None 
 

B. State Award Findings 
 
None 
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CONTRA COSTA SCHOOL OF PERFORMING ARTS 

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

               
 

Finding/Recommendation Status Explanation if Not Implemented

There were no findings in the prior
year audit. N/A N/A  
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April 5, 2022 

To: Board of Education and Management 

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts 
2730 Mitchell Drive 
Walnut Creek, CA  94598 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for Contra Costa School of Performing 
Arts (the Charter School) for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 
 
We will audit the financial statements of the Charter School, which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2022, the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the disclosures (collectively the “financial statements”).  
 
Also the following supplementary information accompanying the Charter School’s financial statements will be 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting records and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS), and we will provide 
an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our auditor’s report on 
the financial statements. The following supplementary information is required by the 2021-22 Guide for Annual 
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting: 
 

1. LEA Organization Structure 
2. Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 
3. Schedule of Instructional Time 
4. Schedule of Financial Trends & Analysis 
5. Reconciliation of Unaudited Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 
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The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions 
about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP, and 
report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement which exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. The 
objectives also include reporting on: 
 

• Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
 

• An opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of state awards that could have a direct and material effect on each identified program in 
accordance with the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 
Compliance Reporting prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and State Compliance Audit 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the requirements identified in the 
2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting prescribed in 
Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination 
of major program(s) in accordance with Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us 
to express such opinions. AS part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial 
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to 
the Charter School or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the 
determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform 
specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 
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Because the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because 
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some material 
misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed 
in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of 
management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our 
attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports 
required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 
We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Charter School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, tests 
of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by 
correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will also request 
written representation from your attorneys as part of the engagement. 
 
We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning: 
 

1. Improper Revenue Recognition 
2. Management Override of Controls 

 
As we continue the audit planning process we may identify additional significant risks. If such risks are identified we 
will provide an addendum to this engagement letter to communicate these risks. If no additional significant risks are 
identified, no addendum will be provided. 
 
Audit Procedures – Internal Control 
 
We will obtain an understanding of the Charter School and its environment, including internal control relevant to the 
audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test the 
effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are 
material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other 
noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will 
be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will 
be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated 
under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance. 
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Audit Procedures – Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of the Charter School’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an 
opinion on overall compliance, and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant 
to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
The 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of California Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (the 
Audit Guide) requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
auditee has complied with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of state awards identified in the 
Audit Guide which are applicable to the Charter School based on materiality levels identified in the Audit Guide. For 
the programs applicable to the Charter School, we will perform the procedures identified in the Audit Guide and 
report noncompliance in accordance with direction provided in the Audit Guide. The purpose of these procedures 
will be to express an opinion on the Charter School’s compliance with requirements applicable to these programs in 
our report on state compliance. 
 
Other Services 
 
We will prepare the Organization’s federal and state information returns for the year ended June 30, 2022 based on 
information provided by you. We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, including assistance with 
GASB conversion entries, and the related notes of the Charter School in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you. 
These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not 
be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with 
applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to those previously identified and previously defined. 
We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that 
could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and State Compliance Audit 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for: 
 

1. Designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, including internal controls over federal and state awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing 
activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; 
 

2. Following laws and regulations; 
 

3. Ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in compliance and 
with compliance requirements; and, 
 

4. Ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. 
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Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting 
principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and all accompanying information in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations (including federal and state statutes) and the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements (including award agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor 
relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information. 
 
You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information 
available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside general 
and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with: 
 

1. Access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-
party relationships and transactions, and other matters; 
 

2. Access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed 
to perform an audit under Uniform Guidance and in accordance with the Audit Guide;  
 

3. Additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and 
 

4. Unrestricted access to persons within the Charter School from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 
 

At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about the financial statements; 
compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and related matters. 
 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Charter School involving (1) management, (2) 
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect 
of the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge and of any allegations of 
fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Charter School received in communications from employees, former 
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
Charter School complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants.  
 
You are also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we report. Additionally, it is management’s responsibility 
to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal 
awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance identified in 
audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reporting audit findings; and prepare a summary 
schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings 
should be available for review upon our scheduled interim field work dates. 
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You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged to 
report on, in conformity with GAAP. You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any 
document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to 
include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our 
report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that: 
 

1. You are responsible for the presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; 
 

2. You believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance 
with GAAP; 
 

3. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if 
they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and 
 

4. You have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or 
presentation of the supplementary information. 

 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit 
Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to 
address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance 
audits, or studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, 
and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statements, and related notes, and any other 
nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our 
assistance with preparation of the financial statements, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved 
the financial statements, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, 
you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with 
suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept 
responsibility for them. 
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and 
will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 
 
We will provide copies of our reports to the Charter School, the California State Controller’s Office, the California 
Department of Education, and the County Office of Education; however, management is responsible for the 
distribution of the reports and financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged 
and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 
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The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP and constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate 
individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the California Board of Accountancy or 
it’s designee, the County Office of Education, the California State Controller’s Office or it’s designee, the California 
Department of Education or it’s designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. 
Government Accountability Office for purposes of quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry 
out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation 
will be provided under the supervision of Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP personnel. Furthermore, upon request, 
we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or 
decide, to distribute the copies or information contained to other, including other governmental agencies. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the California State Controller’s Office or the California Department 
of Education. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit 
finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit 
documentation. 
 
Brian Hadley, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the 
reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. We expect to begin our audit upon the signing of this 
engagement letter and will schedule dates for field work accordingly. 
 
Our fee for these services will be $9,500 for the audit and $1,200 for the preparation of tax returns. Our invoices for 
these fees will be rendered as work progresses and are payable upon presentation. Upon completion of the audit report 
and submission to the California State Controller’s Office progress billings will be brought to 90% of the contracted 
amount. The final 10% of the contracted amount will be billed, and is due, upon receipt of the California State 
Controller’s Office certification letter. In accordance with firm policies, work may be suspended if your account 
becomes 30 days past due and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. Additionally, an audit report 
will not be issued for the year ended June 30, 2022 if 100% of prior audit fees have not been paid in full inclusive of 
the final 10% billed upon receipt of the California State Controller’s Office certification letter for the prior period. If 
we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon 
written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report(s). You will be obligated to compensate 
us for all time expended at our standard hourly rates and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date 
of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that 
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. If significant additional time is necessary, 
we will keep you informed of any problems we encounter and our fees will be adjusted accordingly. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue written reports upon completion of our Audit. Our reports will be addressed to the governing board of 
the Charter School. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based 
on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our 
opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if 
necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons 
with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 
opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement. 
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The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other 
matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s 
internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Charter School’s internal control and compliance. The report will 
state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Charter School and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of 
our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP 
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Response: 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Contra Costa School of Performing Arts. 
 
Management Signature:         
 
Title:           
 
Date:           
 
Approved by Governance at a Public Meeting on:     
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Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 

1301 Dove Street, Suite 200 

Newport Beach, CA 92660 

O 949 756 0271 

F 619 699 0906 

CA License No. 0C36861 www.alliant.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2022 – 2023 

Insurance Summary of Coverages 
 
Presented on April 8, 2022 by: 
 
Tom Boobar MBA, MS, CSP 
Senior Vice President 
 

ChartHouse Public 
Schools 
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Summary of Coverages and Limits 

Commercial Package Coverages 

INSURANCE COMPANY:  GuideOne Insurance 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  4/1/2022 - 4/1/2023 

POLICY NUMBER  1448551 
 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART 

Blanket Coverage:  Limit Coinsurance 

Blanket Building  $  12,900,000 100% 

Blanket Contents  $  366,500 100% 

   
   

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

Limits:   

Each Occurrence  $ 1,000,000 

General Aggregate  $ 3,000,000 

Prod/Comp Ops Aggregate  $ 3,000,000 

Personal & Advertising Injury  $ 1,000,000 

Damage to Premises Rented to You  $ 1,000,000 

Medical Expense – any one person  $ 15,000 

Employee Benefit Per Employee  $ 1,000,000 

Employee Benefit Aggregate  $ 3,000,000 

Sexual Misconduct Or Sexual Molestation 

Per Incident 

  

$ 1,000,000 

Sexual Misconduct Or Sexual Molestation 

Aggregate 

  

$ 3,000,000 
   
   

COMMERCIAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

Limits:   

School and Educators Legal Liability 

(Directors & Officers) 

 $ 1,000,000 Each Loss Limit 

$ 1,000,000 Aggregate Limit 
   

Total Premium:  24,603 Total Package Policy Premium 

 

Umbrella Liability Coverage 

INSURANCE COMPANY:  GuideOne America Insurance Company 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  4/1/2022 - 4/1/2023 

POLICY NUMBER:  1448552 

Limits:   

Occurrence or Each Claim  $  5,000,000 

Prod/Comp Ops Aggregate  $ 3,000,000 

General Aggregate  $  5,000,000 

Premium:  $  5,992 
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Employment Practices Liability Coverage 

INSURANCE COMPANY:  Kinsale Insurance Company 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  4/1/2022 - 4/1/2023 

POLICY NUMBER:  0100184954-0 

Limits:   

Each Claim  $  2,000,000 

Aggregate Limit  $  2,000,000 
   

Deductible:  $ 75,000 
   

Premium:  $  18,481 

 

Workers’ Compensation Coverage 

INSURANCE COMPANY:  GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  4/1/2022 – 4/1/2023 

POLICY NUMBER:  10004743 

Coverage:   

Workers Compensation  Statutory 

Employers Liability Limit   

Bodily Injury by Accident  $ 1,000,000  Each Accident 

Bodily Injury by Disease  $ 1,000,000  Policy Limit 

Bodily Injury by Disease  $ 1,000,000  Each Employee 

Premium  $ 23,029 
 

Crime Coverage 

INSURANCE COMPANY:  National Union Fire Ins Co of Pittsburgh, PA (AIG) 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  4/1/2022 – 4/1/2024 

POLICY NUMBER:  04-842-65-77 

Coverage Form:  COMMERCIAL CRIME POLICY: 

• Employee Theft – Per Loss 

• Forgery or Alteration 

• Money & Securities – Inside the Premises 

• Robbery/Safe Burglary– Inside the Premises 

• Money and Securities – Outside the Premises 

• Computer Fraud 

• Funds Transfer Fraud 

• Money Order / Counterfeit Currency 

Limit:  $ 1,000,000  Each Coverage, Per Occurrence 

Deductible:  $ 2,500 Each Coverage, Per Occurrence 

Premium:  $  700 

 

Student Accident Coverage – Base K-12 & Catastrophe K-12 

INSURANCE COMPANY:  National Union Fire Ins Co (AIG) 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  4/1/2022 – 4/1/2023 

POLICY NUMBERS:  Base: SRG0009151982 

CAT:  SRG0009151983 
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Base Limits:   

Accident Medical Expense  (Full Excess)  $ 25,000 

Accidental Death  $ 10,000 

Accidental Dismemberment  $ 20,000 

CAT Limit: 

Accident Medical Expense 

  

$ 7,500,000 

Accidental Death  $  10,000 

Accidental Dismemberment  $  20,000 

Catastrophe Cash Benefit  $  500,000 

Seat Belt and Air Bag  $      5,000 each 

Brain Death  $  100,000 

Base Premium:  $  1,935 

CAT Premium:  $  738 

 

Cyber Liability 

INSURANCE COMPANY:  Beazley Insurance Company, Inc. (Lloyd’s Syndicates) 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  4/1/2022 – 4/1/2023 

POLICY NUMBER:  W31F31220101 
   

Breach Response:   

Notified Individuals   25,000 

Legal, Forensic & Public Relations / Crisis 

Management 

 $ 1,000,000 

The breach response limits above are in addition to the policy aggregate limit of liability.  
   

Limits & Deductibles:   

Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability  $ 1,000,000  

Additional Breach Response Limit   $ 1,000,000  
   

First Party Loss   

Business Interruption Loss: 

Resulting from Security Breach 

Resulting from System Failure 

  

$ 1,000,000  

$ 1,000,000  

Dependent Business Loss: 

Resulting from Dependent Security 

Breach 

Resulting from Dependent System 

Failure 

  

$ 100,000  

 

$ 100,000  

Cyber Extortion Loss:  $ 1,000,000  

Data Recovery Costs:  $ 1,000,000   

Liability   

Data & Network Liability:  $ 1,000,000    

Regulatory Defense & Penalties:  $ 1,000,000    

Payment Card Liabilities & Costs:  $ 1,000,000  

eCrime   

Fraudulent Instruction:  $ 1,000,000  

Funds Transfer Fraud:  $ 1,000,000  

Telephone Fraud:  $ 1,000,000  
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Criminal Reward   

Criminal Reward:  $ 50,000  
   

Retentions   

Breach Response 

Legal, Forensic & Public Relations / 

Crisis Management 

  

$ 2,500 ;  

$ 1,250 for Legal 

Each Incident, Claim or Loss: 

Retention for Cyber Extortion Loss: 

 $ 2,500    

$ 1,000  
   

Premium:  $ 4,946 Total Cost 
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Your Service Team 

Tom Boobar MBA, MS, CSP 

Senior Vice President 

Tom.Boobar@alliant.com  

Phone: 949 260 5096 

Mobile: 818 371 9000 

  

Britt Booth 

Account Manager 

bbooth@alliant.com  

Phone: 949 660 8172 

  

Joana DeMattia 

Account Manager 

Joana.DeMattia@alliant.com  

Phone: 949 660 5942 

  

Yovana Espinosa 

Assistant Account Manager 

Yovana.Espinosa@alliant.com 

Phone: 949 242 6261 

  

Akbar Sharif 

Property and Liability Claims Advocate 

Akbar.sharif@alliant.com 

Phone: 949 260 5088 

  

Ruth Contreras 

Worker’s Comp Claims Advocate 

Ruth.contreras@alliant.com 

Phone: 949 527 9821 
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Disclosures 

This proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All 
information included in this proposal, including but not limited to personal and real property values, 
locations, operations, products, data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss experience, is 
based on facts and representations supplied to Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. by you.  This 
proposal does not reflect any independent study or investigation by Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
or its agents and employees. 
 
Please be advised that this proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material 
change in the risk between the date of this proposal and the inception date of the proposed policy 
(including the occurrence of any claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to a claim 
under any policy which the policy being proposed is a renewal or replacement).  In the event of 
such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or withdraw this proposal, 
whether or not this offer has already been accepted. 

This proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter 
any coverage in any actual policy of insurance you may have.  All existing policy terms, conditions, 
exclusions, and limitations apply.  For specific information regarding your insurance coverage, 
please refer to the policy itself.  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. will not be liable for any claims 
arising from or related to information included in or omitted from this proposal of insurance. 

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. 
Details on our compensation policy, including the types of income that Alliant may earn on a placement, 
are available on our website at www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding 
compensation issues pertaining to your account you may also contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, 
Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and 
in-depth technical understanding of all aspects of insurance company finances and operations. Insurance 
brokerages such as Alliant Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. 
Both A.M. Best and Standard and Poor's have been industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing 
a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the information available in formulating their ratings. 

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International 
companies. You can visit them at www.ambest.com. For additional information regarding insurer financial 
strength ratings visit Standard and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com. 

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform.  
Alliant does not, however, guarantee the solvency of any underwriters with which insurance or reinsurance 
is placed and maintains no responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or 
insolvency of any insurer.  We encourage you to review the publicly available information collected to enable 
you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular underwriter.  To learn more about 
companies doing business in your state, visit the Department of Insurance website for that state. 

NY Regulation 194  
 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York. Insurance 
producers are authorized by their license to confer with insurance purchasers about the benefits, terms and 
conditions of insurance contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive benefits of particular insurance 
contracts; to sell insurance; and to obtain insurance for purchasers.  The role of the producer in any 
particular transaction typically involves one or more of these activities. 
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Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  Depending 
on the insurer(s) and insurance contract(s) the purchaser selects, compensation will be paid by the 
insurer(s) selling the insurance contract or by another third party.  Such compensation may vary depending 
on a number of factors, including the insurance contract(s) and the insurer(s) the purchaser selects.  In 
some cases, other factors such as the volume of business a producer provides to an insurer or the 
profitability of insurance contracts a producer provides to an insurer also may affect compensation.   

The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the 
producer based in whole or in part on the sale of insurance to the purchaser, and (if applicable) 
compensation expected to be received based in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented to the 
purchaser by the producer, by requesting such information from the producer. 

 
Other Disclosures / Disclaimers 
 

FATCA: 
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial accounts 

to the United States Internal Revenue Service.  Alliant does not provide tax advice so please contact 

your tax consultant for your obligation regarding FATCA.  

Claims Reporting: 
Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure you understand 

these obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with any questions. 

Claims Made Policy: 
This claims-made policy contains a requirement stating that this policy applies only to any claim first 

made against the Insured and reported to the insurer during the policy period or applicable extended 

reporting period.  Claims must be submitted to the insurer during the policy period, or applicable 

extended reporting period, as required pursuant to the Claims/Loss Notification Clause within the policy 

in order for coverage to apply.  Late reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s requirements 

could result in a disclaimer of coverage by the insurer. 

Claims Made Policy (D&O/EPL) 
This claims-made policy contains a requirement stating that this policy applies only to any claim first 

made against the Insured and reported to the insurer during the policy period or applicable extended 

reporting period.  Claims must be submitted to the insurer during the policy period, or applicable 

extended reporting period, as required pursuant to the Claims/Loss Notification Clause within the policy 

in order for coverage to apply.  Late reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s requirements 

could result in a disclaimer of coverage by the insurer. 

 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers – Continued 
 

Any Employment Practices Liability (EPL) or Directors & Officers (D&O) with EPL coverage must give 

notice to the insurer of any charges / complaints brought by any state / federal agency (i.e. EEOC and 

similar proceedings) involving an employee.  To preserve your rights under the policy, it is important 

that timely notice be given to the insurer, whether or not a right to sue letter has been issued. 
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Changes and Developments 
It is important that we be advised of any changes in your operations, which may have a bearing on the 

validity and/or adequacy of your insurance.  The types of changes that concern us include, but are not 

limited to, those listed below: 

▪ Changes in any operations such as expansion to another states, new products, or new applications 
of existing products. 

▪ Travel to any state not previously disclosed. 
▪ Mergers and/or acquisition of new companies and any change in business ownership, including 

percentages. 
▪ Any newly assumed contractual liability, granting of indemnities or hold harmless agreements. 
▪ Any changes in existing premises including vacancy, whether temporary or permanent, alterations, 

demolition, etc.  Also, any new premises either purchased, constructed or occupied 
▪ Circumstances which may require an increased liability insurance limit. 
▪ Any changes in fire or theft protection such as the installation of or disconnection of sprinkler 

systems, burglar alarms, etc.  This includes any alterations to the system. 
▪ Immediate notification of any changes to a scheduled of equipment, property, vehicles, electronic 

data processing, etc. 
▪ Property of yours that is in transit, unless previously discussed and/or currently insured. 

 

Certificates / Evidence of Insurance 
A certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  

The certificate does not affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by a 

policy.  Nor does it constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative, 

producer or certificate holder.   

You may have signed contracts, leases or other agreements requiring you to provide this evidence.  In 

those agreements, you may assume obligations and/or liability for others (Indemnification, Hold 

Harmless) and some of the obligations that are not covered by insurance.  We recommend that you and 

your legal counsel review these documents. 

In addition to providing a certificate of insurance, you may be required to name your client or customer 

on your policy as an additional insured.  This is only possible with permission of the insurance company, 

added by endorsement and, in some cases, an additional premium. 

By naming the certificate holder as additional insured, there are consequences to your risks and 

insurance policy including: 

• Your policy limits are now shared with other entities; their claims involvement may reduce or 
exhaust your aggregate limit. 

• Your policy may provide higher limits than required by contract; your full limits can be exposed to 
the additional insured. 

• There may be conflicts in defense when your insurer has to defend both you and the additional 
insured. 

 

 

 

ChartHouse Public Schools 
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Shown above are the disclosures / disclaimers that are attached to all Property & Casualty 

insurance proposals. Please acknowledge receipt and review. 

 

   

Signature  Date 

   

Title   

   

Printed / Typed Name   
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Optional Coverages 
 

The following represents a list of insurance coverages that are not included in this proposal, but are optional 

and may be available with further underwriting information. 

Note some of these coverages may be included with limitations or insured elsewhere.  This is a partial listing 

as you may have additional risks not contemplated here or are unique to your organization.  

 

• Earthquake Insurance 

• Event Cancellation 

• Fireworks Liability 

• Flood Insurance 

• Foreign Insurance 

• Garage Keepers Liability 

• Kidnap & Ransom 

• Media and Publishers Liability 

• Medical Malpractice Liability 

• Pollution Liability 

• Owned/Non-Owned Aircraft 

• Owned Watercraft 

• Special Events Liability 

• Workplace Violence 

 

Glossary of Insurance Terms 

 

Below are a couple of links to assist you in understanding the insurance terms you may find within your 

insurance coverages: 

 

http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx 

http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html 

http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx 
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Customer Care Center
1-888-748-4326 1-877-448-4331
24-hour claims GuideLine Customer Service

Insurance Policy: Educational Institutions

FOR  CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Your Agent
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC
701 B St
San Diego, CA 92101-8101
888-849-1337

To learn more, make a payment or renew your policy, visit  www.GuideOne.com

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

GIL 11 00 07 14

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Agent Information:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at your mailing address shown above.

Policy Number: 00-1448-551  

Named Insured and Mailing Address:

   

Policy Period:
04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS

San Diego, CA 92101-8101
888-849-1337
Agent Number: 04271

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC
701 B St

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
2730 Mitchell Dr
Walnut Creek, CA 94598-1602

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

.............................................................................................................................................................

Business Description: Education with School (K-12)
Form of Business:  Other

IN RETURN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL TERMS OF THIS POLICY, WE 
AGREE WITH YOU TO PROVIDE THE INSURANCE STATED IN THIS POLICY.

THIS POLICY CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING COVERAGE PARTS FOR WHICH A PREMIUM IS 
INDICATED. THIS PREMIUM MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADJUSTMENT.

COVERAGE PARTS PREMIUM

.............................................................................................................................................................

$Commercial Property Coverage Part       8,443.00

$Commercial Inland Marine Coverage Part         950.00

$Commercial General Liability Coverage Part      14,884.00

Total Policy Premium: $      24,277.00

.............................................................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................................................

THIS COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS, TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS, COVERAGE 
PART(S), COVERAGE FORM(S) AND ENDORSEMENT(S) COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED POLICY.

Countersigned by:
                                                               Authorized Representative                                                Date

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 1 of 1
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-551

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART: 

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
California Changes - Replacement CostCP 04 49 02 20
Building And Personal Property Coverage FormCP 00 10 10 12
Business Income (And Extra Expense) Coverage FormCP 00 30 10 12
Commercial Property ConditionsCP 00 90 07 88
Exclusion Of Loss Due To Virus Or BacteriaCP 01 40 07 06
Cancellation ChangesCP 02 99 06 07
Causes Of Loss - Special FormCP 10 30 10 12
Loss Payable ProvisionsCP 12 18 10 12
Fire And Security Alarm System Upgrade CoverageGCP 04 45 07 14
Educational Institutions Property Enhancement EndorsementGCP 33 11 07 14
Extension Of PremisesGCP 95 02 07 14
Equipment Breakdown CoveragePCP 73 57 04 09

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE 
PART: 

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
Commercial Inland Marine ConditionsCM 00 01 09 04
Earthquake ExclusionGCM 99 09 07 14
Water ExclusionGCM 99 10 07 14
Computer Systems Coverage FormIH 00 75 12 02
Theft From Unattended Vehicle ExclusionIH 99 23 12 02

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 
PART: 

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
Commercial General Liability Coverage FormCG 00 01 04 13
Additional Insured - Designated Person Or OrganizationCG 20 26 04 13

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

THE COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS FORM(S) A PART OF THE 
COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS.
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COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS  (Continued)

Policy Number: 001448551

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
Exclusion - Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or Personal Information And 
Data-Related Liability - With Limited Bodily Injury Exception

CG 21 06 05 14

Employment-Related Practices ExclusionCG 21 47 12 07
Fungi Or Bacteria ExclusionCG 21 67 12 04
Cap On Losses From Certified Acts Of TerrorismCG 21 70 01 15
Exclusion Of Punitive Damages Related To A Certified Act Of TerrorismCG 21 76 01 15
Crisis Management CoverageGCG 04 05 01 15
Exclusion - Student Medical PaymentsGCG 21 19 07 14
Warranty ProvisionGCG 27 15 08 15
Educational Institutions General Liability EndorsementGCG 35 10 07 14
Directors And Officers Liability And Educators Legal Liability CoverageGCG 71 01 07 14
Employee Benefits Liability Coverage (Claims-Made)GCG 73 11 07 14
Abuse Liability Coverage EndorsementGCG 74 01 07 14
Sexual Misconduct Liability Coverage (Occurrence)GCG 74 10 07 14
Alleged Perpetrator Civil Defense Coverage EndorsementGCG 74 27 07 14
Exclusion - AsbestosGCG 33 05 05 20

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO MORE THAN ONE COVERAGE PART: 

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
General Liability Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or Personal 
Information Exclusions

CG P 016 05 14

California Changes - Actual Cash ValueIL 01 02 02 20
California ChangesIL 01 04 07 20
California Changes - Cancellation And NonrenewalIL 02 70 07 20
Additional Common Policy ConditionsGIL 00 01 07 14
Combined DeductibleGIL 03 05 07 14
GuideVantage Coverage EnhancementGIL 09 04 03 19
Mutual Policy ProvisionsGIL 42 20 03 16
Calculation Of PremiumIL 00 03 09 08
Common Policy ConditionsIL 00 17 11 98
Nuclear Energy Liability Exclusion EndorsementIL 00 21 09 08
Exclusion Of Certain Computer-Related LossesIL 09 35 07 02
Cap On Losses From Certified Acts Of TerrorismIL 09 52 01 15
Disclosure Pursuant To Terrorism Risk Insurance ActIL 09 85 12 20

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

THE COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS FORM(S) A PART OF THE 
COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS.
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S)

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-551

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

Principal And Exclusive Location State: CA

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

CONTRA COSTA SCHOOL OF PERFORMING ARTS

THE COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S) FORM(S) A PART OF THE COMMON POLICY 
DECLARATIONS.

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 1 of 1
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-551

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

Coverage Part Premium:

TOTAL COMMERCIAL PROPERTY  PREMIUM 

      8,243.00$

        200.00California Expense ConstantOther Premium: $

Total Commercial Property Premium:       8,443.00$

LOCATIONS YOU OWN, RENT, OR OCCUPY  

Location Description Address City State Zip
001 2730 Mitchell Dr Walnut Creek 94598-1602CA

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 1 of 2 
GCP 10 00 07 14

Date Created:  03/30/2022
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance
Services Office, Inc., with its permission.
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COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS  (Continued)

Policy Number: 001448551

DESCRIPTION OF LOCATIONS  

Location Number
2730 Mitchell Dr
Walnut Creek, CA 94598-1602 Contra Costa County

001

$13,674,000Building

Building 
Number: 001 SCHOOL Limit Of Insurance

Coverage
Additional Interest Applies Yes
Construction Non-Combustible
Coverage Form Building And Personal Property (CP 00 10)
Cause Of Loss Special Including Theft
Valuation Replacement Cost
Coinsurance 100%
Deductible $2,500

Premium 6,229.00$

$388,500All Personal Property

Occupancy 
Number: 001 SCHOOL Limit Of Insurance

Coverage
Additional Interest Applies No
Coverage Form Building And Personal Property (CP 00 10)
Cause Of Loss Special Including Theft
Valuation Replacement Cost
Coinsurance 100%
Deductible $2,500

Premium 634.00$

Business Income And Extra Expense (CP 00 
30)

Business 
Income - 
Building: 001 SCHOOL Limit Of Insurance

Coverage Form

Risk Type Educational Institutions
Business Income 975,000$
Extra Expense Included
Additional Interest Applies No
Cause Of Loss Special Including Theft
Coinsurance 100%

Premium 1,380.00$

............................................................................................................................................................

Throughout the Commercial Property Policy forms the following abbreviations may be used:
BI = Business Income; BIEE = Business Income with Extra Expense; BLDG = Building; EE = Extra Expense; 
LOC = Location; OCC = Occupancy; SP = Special Property

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 2 of 2 
GCP 10 00 07 14

Date Created:  03/30/2022
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance
Services Office, Inc., with its permission.
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-551

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

Coverage Part Premium:

TOTAL COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE  PREMIUM 

        950.00$

Total Commercial Inland Marine Premium:         950.00$

............................................................................................................................................................

COMPUTER SYSTEMS COVERAGE
Limit Of Insurance

Property At Described Premises

Computer Equipment   Media and Data

1: 2730 Mitchell Dr, Walnut Creek, CA     200,000           0$ $

Deductible

Coinsurance

$                 500

100%

Premium $          950.00

Special Provisions (if any):
Water Exclusion endorsement GCM 99 10 applies.

Theft From Unattended Vehicle Exclusion IH 99 23 applies.

Earthquake Exclusion endorsement GCM 99 09 applies.

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 1 of 1 
GCM 10 00 07 14

Date Created:  03/30/2022
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance
Services Office, Inc., with its permission.
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-551

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

Coverage Part Premium:

TOTAL COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY  PREMIUM 

     14,784.00$

        100.00Expense ConstantOther Premium: $

Total Commercial General Liability Premium: $      14,884.00
The Classifications and Premium may be subject to change by audit.

LOCATION OF PREMISES 

............................................................................................................................................................

Location
AddressNumber

2730 Mitchell Dr, Walnut Creek, CA 94598-1602 001

General Aggregate Limit - Other Than Products - Completed Operations

Products - Completed Operations Aggregate Limit

Personal And Advertising Injury Limit - Any One Person Or Organization

Each Occurrence Limit

Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit - Any One Premises

Medical Expense Limit - Any One Person

............................................................................................................................................................

$

$

$

$

$

$

LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

  3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000

  1,000,000

1,000,000

15,000

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 1 of 3

GCG 10 00 07 14Copyright 2014 GuideOne Insurance

Date Created: 03/30/2022
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COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS  (Continued)

Policy Number: 001448551

ADDITIONAL COVERAGES

............................................................................................................................................................

Crisis Management Coverage

Crisis Event Aggregate Limit

Individual Counseling Expenses Each Person Limit

Medical Expenses Each Person Limit

Individual Expenses Aggregate Limit

Organizational Expenses Aggregate Limit

$

$

$

$

$

300,000

2,500

50,000

200,000

100,000

Directors And Officers Liability And Educators Legal Liability Coverage

Directors And Officers Liability And Educators Legal Liability Each Claim Limit

Directors And Officers Liability And Educators Legal Liability Aggregate Limit

Deductible

$

$

$

  1,000,000

  1,000,000

1,000

Coverage DO – Directors And Officers Liability

Retroactive Date 11/01/2015

Coverage EL – Educators Legal Liability

Retroactive Date 11/01/2015

Employee Benefits Liability Coverage

Employee Benefits Liability Each Employee Limit

Employee Benefits Liability Aggregate Limit

Deductible

$

$

$

  1,000,000

  3,000,000

1,000

Retroactive Date 08/29/2016

Sexual Misconduct Liability Coverage

Sexual Misconduct Liability Each Claim Limit

Sexual Misconduct Liability Aggregate Limit

Sexual Misconduct Medical Expense Limit

$

$

$ 10,000

  1,000,000

  3,000,000

SCHEDULE OF LIABILITY CLASSIFICATIONS AND EXPOSURES

............................................................................................................................................................

Classification Premium Basis
Location
Number

Annual
Exposure

Class 
Code

171Schools - private - high - 
Not-For-Profit only

Per Student47478001

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 2 of 3

GCG 10 00 07 14Copyright 2014 GuideOne Insurance
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COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS  (Continued)

Policy Number: 001448551

Classification Premium Basis
Location
Number

Annual
Exposure

Class 
Code

282Schools-private-elementary, 
kindergarten or junior 
high-Not-For-Profit only

Per Student47476001

Abuse Liability Coverage 
Endorsement

Flat Charge00601

Alleged Perpetrator Civil Defense 
Coverage

Flat Charge00602

47Employee Benefits Liability 
Coverage (Claims-Made)

Number Of 
Employees

49993

Sexual Misconduct Liability 
Coverage (Occurrence)

Flat Charge49990

453Directors And Officers Liability And 
Educators Legal Liability Coverage 
(Claims-Made)

Number of 
Students

49977

Additional Insureds Additional 
Insureds

49950

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 3 of 3

GCG 10 00 07 14Copyright 2014 GuideOne Insurance
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1111 Ashworth Road
West Des Moines, Iowa 50265

1-877-448-4331
www.GuideOne.com

©2005-2014 GuideOne Insurance.  GuideOne® is the registered 
trademark of the GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company.  All rights 
reserved.

The Preferred® policy for the Preferred Risk®. 

GIL 11 01 07 14

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.
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Customer Care Center
1-888-748-4326 1-877-448-4331
24-hour claims GuideLine Customer Service

Insurance Policy: Educational Institutions

FOR  CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Your Agent
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC
701 B St
San Diego, CA 92101-8101
888-849-1337

To learn more, make a payment or renew your policy, visit  www.GuideOne.com

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

GIL 11 00 07 14

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Agent Information:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at your mailing address shown above.

Policy Number: 00-1448-552  

Named Insured and Mailing Address:

   

Policy Period:
04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS

San Diego, CA 92101-8101
888-849-1337
Agent Number: 04271

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC
701 B St

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
2730 Mitchell Dr
Walnut Creek, CA 94598-1602

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

.............................................................................................................................................................

Business Description: Education with School (K-12)
Form of Business:  Other

IN RETURN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL TERMS OF THIS POLICY, WE 
AGREE WITH YOU TO PROVIDE THE INSURANCE STATED IN THIS POLICY.

THIS POLICY CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING COVERAGE PARTS FOR WHICH A PREMIUM IS 
INDICATED. THIS PREMIUM MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADJUSTMENT.

COVERAGE PARTS PREMIUM

.............................................................................................................................................................

$Commercial Liability Umbrella Coverage Part       5,992.00

Total Policy Premium: $       5,992.00

.............................................................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................................................

THIS COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS, TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS, COVERAGE 
PART(S), COVERAGE FORM(S) AND ENDORSEMENT(S) COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED POLICY.

Countersigned by:
                                                               Authorized Representative                                                Date

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 1 of 1
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-552

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA COVERAGE 
PART: 

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
California ChangesCU 01 91 05 17
California Changes - Cancellation And NonrenewalCU 02 23 09 12
Commercial Liability Umbrella Coverage FormCU 00 01 04 13
Nuclear Energy Liability Exclusion Endorsement (Broad Form)CU 21 23 02 02
Exclusion - Cross Suits LiabilityCU 21 26 04 13
Fungi Or Bacteria ExclusionCU 21 27 12 04
Cap On Losses From Certified Acts Of TerrorismCU 21 30 01 15
Exclusion Of Punitive Damages Related To A Certified Act Of TerrorismCU 21 36 01 15
Amended Terrorism Coverage - Covered AutosCU 21 55 06 08
Communicable Disease ExclusionCU 21 58 05 09
Exclusion - Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or Personal Information And 
Data-Related Liability - With Limited Bodily Injury Exception

CU 21 86 05 14

Exclusion - Lead LiabilityGCU 21 17 07 14
Auto ExclusionGCU 21 23 08 15
Educational Institutions Liability Umbrella EndorsementGCU 35 10 07 14
Directors And Officers Liability And Educators Legal Liability Umbrella 
Coverage

GCU 70 51 07 14

Employee Benefits Liability Umbrella Coverage (Claims-Made)GCU 71 51 07 14
Sexual Misconduct Liability Umbrella Coverage (Occurrence)GCU 72 10 07 14
Exclusion - AsbestosGCU 21 29 05 20

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO MORE THAN ONE COVERAGE PART: 

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
Communicable Disease Exclusion Endorsement Advisory Notice To 
Policyholders

GN 28027 08 20

Additional Common Policy ConditionsGIL 00 01 07 14

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

THE COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS FORM(S) A PART OF THE 
COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS.
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COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS  (Continued)

Policy Number: 001448552

DescriptionForm Number Edition Date
Mutual Policy ProvisionsGIL 42 20 03 16
Common Policy ConditionsIL 00 17 11 98
Disclosure Pursuant To Terrorism Risk Insurance ActIL 09 85 12 20

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

THE COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS FORM(S) A PART OF THE 
COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS.

Page 2 of 2

GIL 10 20 07 14Copyright 2014 GuideOne Insurance

Date Created: 03/30/2022 103 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S)

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-552

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

Principal And Exclusive Location State: CA

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

THE COMMON POLICY SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S) FORM(S) A PART OF THE COMMON POLICY 
DECLARATIONS.

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.guideone.com

877-448-4331

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

Named Insured: Agent Information:

Policy Period:

At 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the mailing address shown in the
Common Policy Declarations.

COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA DECLARATIONS

04/01/2022 to 04/01/2023

Policy Number: 00-1448-552

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Agent Number: 04271
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

TOTAL COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA PREMIUM

$Coverage Part Premium:       5,992.00

Total Commercial Liability Umbrella Premium: $       5,992.00
This Classifications and Premium may be subject to change by audit.

LIMITS OF INSURANCE AND RETENTION AMOUNT

$Each Occurrence Limit

............................................................................................................................................................

$Aggregate Limit

$Self-Insured Retention

Personal And Advertising Injury Limit $
  5,000,000

  5,000,000

      2,500

  5,000,000

RETROACTIVE DATE (FOR CLAIMS-MADE COVERAGE ONLY)

............................................................................................................................................................

Coverage Retroactive Date
Coverage EB : Employee Benefits Liability 08/29/2016

Coverage EL : Educators Legal Liability 11/01/2015

Coverage DO : Directors And Officers Liability 11/01/2015

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 1 of 2
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COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA DECLARATIONS  (Continued)

Policy Number: 001448552

SCHEDULE OF UNDERLYING INSURANCE

............................................................................................................................................................

TYPE OF COVERAGE LIMITS OF INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY:

$

Insurer:

$

Policy Number:

$

Policy Period:

General Aggregate Limit (Other Than Products – Completed Operations)

Products – Completed Operations Aggregate Limit

Personal And Advertising Injury Limit

Each Occurrence Limit $

04/01/2022 To 04/01/2023

  3,000,000

  3,000,000

  1,000,000

  1,000,000

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

001448551

$

Directors And Officers Liability and Educators Legal Liability

$

Directors And Officers Liability and Educators Legal Liability Each Claim Limit

Directors And Officers Liability and Educators Legal Liability Aggregate Limit

  1,000,000

  1,000,000

$

Employee Benefits Liability

$

Employee Benefits Liability Each Employee Limit

Employee Benefits Liability Aggregate Limit

  1,000,000

  3,000,000

$

Sexual Misconduct Liability

$

Sexual Misconduct Liability Each Claim Limit

Sexual Misconduct Liability Aggregate Limit

  1,000,000

  3,000,000

EMPLOYERS LIABILITY:

$

Insurer:

$

Policy Number:

$

Policy Period:

Bodily Injury By Accident – Each Accident Limit

Bodily Injury By Disease – Policy Limit*

Bodily Injury By Disease – Each Employee Limit

04/01/2022 To 04/01/2023

*   In any jurisdiction where the amount of Employers Liability Coverage provided by the underlying insurer 
is by law unlimited, the Employers Liability Limit(s) shown in this Schedule do not apply and no coverage 
shall be provided for Employers Liability under the Commercial Umbrella Liability Coverage Part.

  1,000,000

  1,000,000

  1,000,000

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

010004743

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Page 2 of 2

GCU 10 00 07 14Copyright 2014 GuideOne Insurance
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1111 Ashworth Road
West Des Moines, Iowa 50265

1-877-448-4331
www.GuideOne.com

©2005-2014 GuideOne Insurance.  GuideOne® is the registered 
trademark of the GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company.  All rights 
reserved.

The Preferred® policy for the Preferred Risk®. 

GIL 11 01 07 14

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.
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Customer Care Center
1-888-748-4326 1-877-448-4331
24-hour claims GuideLine Customer Service

Insurance Policy: Educational Institutions

FOR  CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Your Agent
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC
701 B St
San Diego, CA 92101-8101
888-849-1337

To learn more, make a payment or renew your policy, visit  www.GuideOne.com

GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company

GIL 11 00 07 17

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.
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1111 Ashworth Road, West Des Moines, IA 50265
www.GuideOne.com

877-448-4331

WC 00 00 01 AGuideOne Mutual Insurance Company
A Mutual Company
Company Number: 17299

Agent Information:

Previous Policy Number:

Other Workplaces Not Shown Above:  See Schedule of Names and Workplace Locations

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY
INSURANCE POLICY - INFORMATION PAGE

FEIN:

Legal Entity:

NAICS Code:

Policy Number: 01-0004-743  

Item 1.  The Insured and Mailing Address

Other

CHARTHOUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

   

Walnut Creek, CA 94598-1602 San Diego, CA 92101-8101
888-849-1337
Agency Number: 04271

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC
701 B St2730 Mitchell Dr

010004743

47-1506069

611110

Item 2.  POLICY PERIOD
From  04/01/2022  To  04/01/2023 at 12:01 A.M., Standard Time at the Insured's mailing address

Item 3.  COVERAGE

Bodily Injury by Accident: $ Each Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease: $ Policy Limit
Bodily Injury by Disease: $ Each Employee

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

A. Workers Compensation Insurance:  Part One of the policy applies to the Workers Compensation Law of 
the states listed here:   CA

B. Employers Liability Insurance:  Part Two of the policy applies to work in each state listed in item 3.A.  
The limits of our liability under Part Two are:

  1,000,000
  1,000,000
  1,000,000

C. Other States Insurance:  Part Three of the policy applies to the states, if any, listed here:

All states except the states designated in Item 3.A. of the Information Page and WA, WY, ND, OH.

D. This policy includes these endorsements and schedules:  See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements

Item 4.  PREMIUM

Total Estimated Annual Premium: $ Minimum Premium: $
$Premium Adjustment Period:

Countersigned Date: Countersigned by:
Authorized Representative

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The premium for this policy will be determined by our Manuals of Rules, Classifications, Rates and Rating 
Plans.  All information required on the Schedule of Workers Compensation Classifications is subject to 
verification and change by audit.  See Schedule of Workers Compensation Classifications below.

        750.00
Deposit Premium:

     23,028.51

Quarterly

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Includes copyrighted material of National Council
on Compensation Insurance, with its permission.

Date Created: Copyright 2017 GuideOne Insurance 

GWC 10 00    07 17 Page  1  of  3

03/30/2022 109 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



Extension of Information Page

 Policy Number:  01-0004-743

WC 00 00 01 A

SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Form Number Edition Date Description
Workers Compensation And YouGN 24013 06 18
Policyholder Notice Of Audit And Claims InstructionsGN 24012 06 18
Policyholder NoticeGN 24187 05 20
California Insurance Guarantee Association (CIGA) SurchargeGN 24167 07 17
California Workers' Compensation Insurance Rating LawsGN 24168 07 17
Mutual Conditions (GMI)GN 24174 07 18
Policy Amendatory Endorsement - CaliforniaWC 04 03 01 D 02 18
Duty To Defend - CaliforniaWC 04 03 10 01 95
Employers Liability Coverage Amendatory Endorsement - CaliforniaWC 04 03 60 B 01 15
Optional Premium Increase Endorsement - CaliforniaWC 04 04 21 01 08
California Cancellation EndorsementWC 04 06 01 A 12 93
COVID-19 Reporting Requirement Endorsement - CaliforniaWC 04 06 04 09 20
Workers Compensation And Employers Liability Insurance PolicyWC 00 00 00 C 01 15
Premium Discount EndorsementWC 00 04 06 08 84
Premium Due Date EndorsementWC 00 04 19 01 01
Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act Disclosure EndorsementWC 00 04 22 C 01 21

SCHEDULE OF NAMES AND WORKPLACE LOCATIONS
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Location
Number Name Address

001 Charthouse Public Schools 2730 Mitchell Dr
Walnut Creek, CA 94598-1602

FEIN: 47-1506069 Number of Employees:        63
NAICS Code: 611110

   

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Includes copyrighted material of National Council
on Compensation Insurance, with its permission.

Date Created: Copyright 2017 GuideOne Insurance 
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Extension of Information Page

 Policy Number:  01-0004-743

WC 00 00 01 A

SCHEDULE OF WORKERS COMPENSATION CLASSIFICATIONS
State Employer ID Number:
NCCI Intrastate / Interstate Number:

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
- California 

048599499

Location
Number Number Classifications

Annual
Remuneration

Total Estimated
Premium Basis

Rate
Per $100 of

Remuneration
Estimated

Annual Premium
Code

$001 8875 Public Colleges Or Schools - All 
Employees - Including Cafeteria, 
Clerical Offic

2,500,000 0.9259      23,148.00

$Total Manual Premium      23,148.00
$Total Subject Premium      23,148.00
$9898 Experience Modification 0.7800      -5,093.00
$Total Modified Premium      18,055.00
$9889 Schedule Debit 0.1500       2,708.00
$Total Standard Premium      20,763.00
$0063 Premium Discount        -552.00
$9740 Terrorism 2,500,000 0.0611       1,528.00
$9971 Workers Compensation 

Administration Revolving Fund 
Assessment

0.019277         419.06

$9971 Uninsured Employers Benefits Trust 
Fund Assessment

0.001455          31.63

$9971 Subsequent Injuries Benefits Trust 
Fund Assessment

0.017451         379.37

$9971 Occupational Safety and Health 
Fund Assessment

0.009177         199.50

$9971 Labor Enforcement and Compliance 
Fund Assessment

0.007102         154.39

$9971 Workers Compensation Fraud 
Account Assessment

0.004856         105.56

$9970 California Insurance Guarantee 
Association Surcharge

0.0000           0.00

$California Total Estimated Annual 
Premium

     23,028.51

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.

Includes copyrighted material of National Council
on Compensation Insurance, with its permission.

Date Created: Copyright 2017 GuideOne Insurance 
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1111 Ashworth Road
West Des Moines, Iowa 50265

1-877-448-4331
www.GuideOne.com

©2005-2014 GuideOne Insurance.  GuideOne® is the registered 
trademark of the GuideOne Mutual Insurance Company.  All rights 
reserved.

The Preferred® policy for the Preferred Risk®. 

GIL 11 01 07 17

THIS INFORMATION IS ONLY A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AND IS NOT A CONTRACT.  FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 
THE COVERAGES, LIMITS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, PLEASE REFER TO THE COMPLETE POLICY ISSUED TO THE INSURED.
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U.S. TREASURY DEPARTMENT’S OFFICE OF FOREIGN ASSETS CONTROL (OFAC) 

ADVISORY NOTICE TO POLICYHOLDERS 

This Notice shall not be construed as part of your policy and no coverage is provided by this Notice nor can it be construed 

to replace any provisions of your policy.  You should read your policy and review your Declarations page for complete 

information on the coverages your policy provides. 

This Notice provides information concerning possible impact on your insurance coverage due to directives issued by OFAC. 

Please read this Notice carefully. 

The Office of Foreign Assets Control administers and enforces sanctions policy, based on Presidential declarations of 

national emergency.   OFAC has identified and listed numerous Foreign Agents, Front Organizations, Terrorists, Terrorist 

organizations and Narcotics traffickers as “Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons”.  This list can be located on 

the United States Treasury’s web site—http//www.treas.gov/ofac. 

In accordance with OFAC regulations, if it is determined that you or any other insured, or any person or entity claiming the 

benefits of this insurance has violated U.S. sanctions law or is a “Specially Designated National and Blocked Person”, as 

identified by OFAC, this insurance will be considered a blocked or frozen contract and all provisions of this insurance are 

immediately subject to OFAC. When an insurance policy is considered to be such a blocked or frozen contract, no payments 

and no premium refunds may be made without authorization from OFAC.  Other limitations on the premiums and 

payments also apply. 
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Reasons we can share your personal information Does AIG share? 

 
Can you limit 
this sharing? 

 
 

For our everyday business purposes — such as to process your 
transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders  
and legal investigations, conduct research including data analytics,  
or report to credit bureaus 

Yes No 

For our marketing purposes — to offer our products  
and services to you  

Yes No 

For joint marketing with other financial companies Yes No 

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your transactions and experiences Yes 

 

No 

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your creditworthiness 

No 
 

We don’t share 

For nonaffiliates to market to you
  No We don’t share 

Questions? 

 

For AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-244-4786; Fax: 212-458-7081 or E-Mail: 
CIPrivacy@aig.com 

For Pet insurance sold by AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-937-7387 or E-Mail: 
CIPrivacy@aig.com 
 
For LiveTravel, Inc., Travel Guard Group, Inc. or AIG Travel Assist, Inc.: Call 866-244-4786 or  
E-Mail: CIPrivacy@aig.com 
 
 

 

 

Rev 8/2021 
 
 
 
 

 

FACTS 

Why? 

 

What? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How? 

WHAT DOES AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP, INC. (AIG) DO WITH YOUR 
PERSONAL INFORMATION? 
 
Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law 
gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires  
us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please  
read this notice carefully to understand what we do. 

 
The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or 
service you have with us. This information can include: 
• Social Security number and Medical Information 
• Income and Credit History 
• Payment History and Employment Information 
When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as 
described in this notice. 
 
All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run 
their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial 
companies can share their customers' personal information; the reasons AIG 
chooses to share; and whether you can limit this sharing. 
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Who we are   
 

Who is providing this notice? The insurance company subsidiaries of American International Group, Inc. (AIG) 
underwriting property-casualty, accident & health, life insurance and related 
services and certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG listed below. 

 

What we do   
 

How does AIG protect my 
personal information? 

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use 
security measures that comply with federal law.  These measures include 
computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.  We restrict access to 
employees, representatives, agents, or selected third parties who have been 
trained to handle nonpublic personal information.  
 

 

How does AIG collect my 
personal information? 

 

We collect your personal information, for example, when you  
• apply for insurance or pay insurance premiums 
• file an insurance claim or give us your income information 
• provide employment information 

We also collect your personal information from others, such as credit bureaus, 
affiliates, or other companies.  
 

 

Why can’t I limit all sharing? 
 

Federal law gives you the right to limit only 
• sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes— information about your  
creditworthiness 

• affiliates from using your information to market to you 
• sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you 

State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing. 
See below for more on your rights under state law. 
 

Definitions   
 
 

Affiliates Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and 
nonfinancial companies. 

 • Our affiliates include the member companies of American International Group, Inc., 
such as National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa. 
 

Nonaffiliates Companies not related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial 
and nonfinancial companies.  

 • AIG does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you. 
 

Joint marketing A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together 
market financial products or services to you. 

 • Our joint marketing partners include companies with which we jointly offer 
insurance products, such as a bank. 

 

 

Other important information   
 

This notice is provided by  American Home Assurance Company; AIG Assurance Company; AIG Property Casualty Company; AIG Specialty 
Insurance Company; Commerce and Industry Insurance Company; Granite State Insurance Company; Illinois National Insurance Co.; Lexington 
Insurance Company; AIU Insurance Company; National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.; National Union Fire Insurance Company of 
Vermont; New Hampshire Insurance Company; The Insurance Company of the State of Pennsylvania; (collectively  the “AIG Insurance Companies”). 
This notice is also provided by certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG, including Morefar Marketing, Inc., LLC, Travel Guard Group, Inc., AIG Travel 
Assist, Inc. and LiveTravel, Inc. who market insurance or non-insurance products and services to consumers.   
 
For Vermont Residents only. We will not disclose information about your creditworthiness to our affiliates and will not disclose your personal 
information, financial information, credit report, or health information to nonaffiliated third parties to market to you, other than as permitted by 
Vermont law, unless you authorize us to make those disclosures.  Additional information concerning our privacy policies can b e found using the 
contact information above for Questions. 
 
For California Residents only. We will not share information we collect about you with nonaffiliated third parties, except as permitted by California law, 
such as to process your transactions or to maintain your account. 
 
For Nevada Residents Only. We are providing this notice pursuant to Nevada state law.  You may elect to be placed on our internal Do Not Call list by 
contacting us as listed above.   Nevada law requires that we also provide you with the following contact information: Bureau of Consumer Protection, 
Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington Street, Suite 3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101; Phone number: 702-486-3132; email: 
aginfo@ag.nv.gov.   You may contact the applicable customer service department using the contact information above or by writing to us at Privacy 
Officer, 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304.  
 
You have the right to see and, if necessary, correct personal data. This requires a written request, both to see your personal data and to request 
correction. We do not have to change our records if we do not agree with your correction, but we will place your statement in our file. If you would like a 
more detailed description of our information practices and your rights, please write to us at: Privacy Officer, CIPrivacy@aig.com.   
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1 This Company does not solicit business in New York. 
AGLC100605-NTC Rev0219 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

The Notice applies to the insurance products that provide payment for the cost of medical care as issued by the 
following companies (the “Company”): 

 
American General Life Insurance Company1

 

The United States Life Insurance Company in the City of New York 
National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa. 

 
 

In accordance with the HIPAA (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996) Privacy Rule, we 
are required to notify you of the availability of our HIPAA Notice of Privacy Practices. 

 
If you would like to receive a paper copy of the HIPAA Notice of Privacy Practices, please contact us at: 

 
HIPAA Privacy Officer 

2919 Allen Parkway L3-20 
Houston, TX 77019 

hipaaquestions@aig.com 

Phone Numbers: 
American General Life Insurance Company 
(AGL) and The United States Life Insurance 
Company in the City of New York (US Life) 

1-800-888-2452 
 

AIG’s Group Benefits 1-800-346-7692 
please follow prompt for claims 

Long Term Care 1-888-565-3769 

National Union Fire Insurance Company of 
Pittsburgh, Pa. 

1-866-244-4786 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY  
OF HIPAA NOTICE OF  
PRIVACY PRACTICES 

THIS NOTICE IS PROVIDED TO YOU FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. 
YOU ARE NOT REQUIRED TO CALL OR TAKE ANY ACTION IN RESPONSE TO 
THIS NOTICE. 
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Reasons we can share your personal information Does AIG share? 

 
Can you limit 
this sharing? 

 
 

For our everyday business purposes — such as to process your 
transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders  
and legal investigations, conduct research including data analytics,  
or report to credit bureaus 

Yes No 

For our marketing purposes — to offer our products  
and services to you  

Yes No 

For joint marketing with other financial companies Yes No 

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your transactions and experiences Yes 

 

No 

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your creditworthiness 

No 
 

We don’t share 

For nonaffiliates to market to you
  No We don’t share 

Questions? 

 

For AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-244-4786; Fax: 212-458-7081 or E-Mail: 
CIPrivacy@aig.com 

For Pet insurance sold by AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-937-7387 or E-Mail: 
CIPrivacy@aig.com 
 
For LiveTravel, Inc., Travel Guard Group, Inc. or AIG Travel Assist, Inc.: Call 866-244-4786 or  
E-Mail: CIPrivacy@aig.com 
 
 

 

 

Rev 8/2021 
 
 
 
 

 

FACTS 

Why? 

 

What? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How? 

WHAT DOES AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP, INC. (AIG) DO WITH YOUR 
PERSONAL INFORMATION? 
 
Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law 
gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires  
us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please  
read this notice carefully to understand what we do. 

 
The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or 
service you have with us. This information can include: 
• Social Security number and Medical Information 
• Income and Credit History 
• Payment History and Employment Information 
When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as 
described in this notice. 
 
All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run 
their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial 
companies can share their customers' personal information; the reasons AIG 
chooses to share; and whether you can limit this sharing. 
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Page 2  Rev 8/2021 
 
 

Who we are   
 

Who is providing this notice? The insurance company subsidiaries of American International Group, Inc. (AIG) 
underwriting property-casualty, accident & health, life insurance and related 
services and certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG listed below. 

 

What we do   
 

How does AIG protect my 
personal information? 

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use 
security measures that comply with federal law.  These measures include 
computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.  We restrict access to 
employees, representatives, agents, or selected third parties who have been 
trained to handle nonpublic personal information.  
 

 

How does AIG collect my 
personal information? 

 

We collect your personal information, for example, when you  
• apply for insurance or pay insurance premiums 
• file an insurance claim or give us your income information 
• provide employment information 

We also collect your personal information from others, such as credit bureaus, 
affiliates, or other companies.  
 

 

Why can’t I limit all sharing? 
 

Federal law gives you the right to limit only 
• sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes— information about your  
creditworthiness 

• affiliates from using your information to market to you 
• sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you 

State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing. 
See below for more on your rights under state law. 
 

Definitions   
 
 

Affiliates Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and 
nonfinancial companies. 

 • Our affiliates include the member companies of American International Group, Inc., 
such as National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa. 
 

Nonaffiliates Companies not related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial 
and nonfinancial companies.  

 • AIG does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you. 
 

Joint marketing A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together 
market financial products or services to you. 

 • Our joint marketing partners include companies with which we jointly offer 
insurance products, such as a bank. 

 

 

Other important information   
 

This notice is provided by  American Home Assurance Company; AIG Assurance Company; AIG Property Casualty Company; AIG Specialty 
Insurance Company; Commerce and Industry Insurance Company; Granite State Insurance Company; Illinois National Insurance Co.; Lexington 
Insurance Company; AIU Insurance Company; National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.; National Union Fire Insurance Company of 
Vermont; New Hampshire Insurance Company; The Insurance Company of the State of Pennsylvania; (collectively  the “AIG Insurance Companies”). 
This notice is also provided by certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG, including Morefar Marketing, Inc., LLC, Travel Guard Group, Inc., AIG Travel 
Assist, Inc. and LiveTravel, Inc. who market insurance or non-insurance products and services to consumers.   
 
For Vermont Residents only. We will not disclose information about your creditworthiness to our affiliates and will not disclose your personal 
information, financial information, credit report, or health information to nonaffiliated third parties to market to you, other than as permitted by 
Vermont law, unless you authorize us to make those disclosures.  Additional information concerning our privacy policies can b e found using the 
contact information above for Questions. 
 
For California Residents only. We will not share information we collect about you with nonaffiliated third parties, except as permitted by California law, 
such as to process your transactions or to maintain your account. 
 
For Nevada Residents Only. We are providing this notice pursuant to Nevada state law.  You may elect to be placed on our internal Do Not Call list by 
contacting us as listed above.   Nevada law requires that we also provide you with the following contact information: Bureau of Consumer Protection, 
Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington Street, Suite 3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101; Phone number: 702-486-3132; email: 
aginfo@ag.nv.gov.   You may contact the applicable customer service department using the contact information above or by writing to us at Privacy 
Officer, 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304.  
 
You have the right to see and, if necessary, correct personal data. This requires a written request, both to see your personal data and to request 
correction. We do not have to change our records if we do not agree with your correction, but we will place your statement in our file. If you would like a 
more detailed description of our information practices and your rights, please write to us at: Privacy Officer, CIPrivacy@aig.com.   
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1 This Company does not solicit business in New York. 
AGLC100605-NTC Rev0219 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

The Notice applies to the insurance products that provide payment for the cost of medical care as issued by the 
following companies (the “Company”): 

 
American General Life Insurance Company1

 

The United States Life Insurance Company in the City of New York 
National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa. 

 
 

In accordance with the HIPAA (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996) Privacy Rule, we 
are required to notify you of the availability of our HIPAA Notice of Privacy Practices. 

 
If you would like to receive a paper copy of the HIPAA Notice of Privacy Practices, please contact us at: 

 
HIPAA Privacy Officer 

2919 Allen Parkway L3-20 
Houston, TX 77019 

hipaaquestions@aig.com 

Phone Numbers: 
American General Life Insurance Company 
(AGL) and The United States Life Insurance 
Company in the City of New York (US Life) 

1-800-888-2452 
 

AIG’s Group Benefits 1-800-346-7692 
please follow prompt for claims 

Long Term Care 1-888-565-3769 

National Union Fire Insurance Company of 
Pittsburgh, Pa. 

1-866-244-4786 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY  
OF HIPAA NOTICE OF  
PRIVACY PRACTICES 

THIS NOTICE IS PROVIDED TO YOU FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. 
YOU ARE NOT REQUIRED TO CALL OR TAKE ANY ACTION IN RESPONSE TO 
THIS NOTICE. 
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F00654

072019 ed.

Date Issued: 31-Mar-2022 8:34:19 PM

Page 1 of 5

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

THIS POLICY’S LIABILITY INSURING AGREEMENTS PROVIDE COVERAGE ON A CLAIMS MADE

AND REPORTED BASIS AND APPLY ONLY TO CLAIMS FIRST MADE AGAINST THE INSURED

DURING THE POLICY PERIOD OR THE OPTIONAL EXTENSION PERIOD (IF APPLICABLE) AND

REPORTED TO THE UNDERWRITERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THIS POLICY.

AMOUNTS INCURRED AS CLAIMS EXPENSES UNDER THIS POLICY WILL REDUCE AND MAY

EXHAUST THE LIMIT OF LIABILITY AND ARE SUBJECT TO RETENTIONS.

These Declarations along with the statements contained in the information and materials provided to the

Underwriters in connection with the underwriting and issuance of this Policy, and the Policy with

endorsements shall constitute the contract between the Insureds and the Underwriters.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Underwriters: Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's.

Named Insured: Charthouse Public Schools

Named Insured Address: 190 N Wiget Ln
Walnut Creek, CA 94598-2402

Notice of Claim, Loss
or Circumstance:

Beazley Group
Attn: Cyber & Tech Claims Group
45 Rockefeller Plaza, 16th Floor
New York, NY 10111
cyber&techclaims@beazley.com

Breach Response bbr.claims@beazley.com
Services Team: (866) 567-8570 (24 Hours)

Administrative Notice: Beazley USA Services, Inc.
30 Batterson Park Road
Farmington, CT 06032
Tel: (860) 677-3700
Fax: (860) 679-0247
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F00654

072019 ed.

Date Issued: 31-Mar-2022 8:34:19 PM

Page 2 of 5

POLICY INFORMATION

Policy Number: W31F31220101

Authority Reference Number: B6012BUSANMSL2201

Policy Period: From: 01-Apr-2022 To: 01-Apr-2023
Both at 12:01 a.m. Local Time at the Named Insured Address

Premium: $4,790
Taxes & Surcharges (if applicable)

Policy Form: Beazley Breach Response (F00653 112017 ed.) with 
BBR Information Pack

Optional Extension Period: 12 Months

Optional Extension Premium: 100% of the Annual Policy Premium

Notified Individuals Threshold: 100 Notified Individuals

Waiting Period: 8 Hours

Continuity Date: 01-Apr-2019
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F00654

072019 ed.

Date Issued: 31-Mar-2022 8:34:19 PM

Page 3 of 5

COVERAGE SCHEDULE (Currency in USD)

Limit Retention

Breach Response

Notified Individuals: 100,000

Legal, Forensic & Public Relations/Crisis Management: $1,000,000 $2,500;
but $1,250 for Legal

THE BREACH RESPONSE LIMITS ABOVE ARE IN ADDITION TO THE POLICY AGGREGATE LIMIT OF LIABILITY

Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability: $1,000,000

Additional Breach Response Limit

Additional Breach Response Limit: $1,000,000

First Party Loss

Business Interruption Loss:

Resulting from Security Breach: $1,000,000 each incident $2,500

Resulting from System Failure: $1,000,000 each incident $2,500

Dependent Business Loss:

Resulting from Dependent Security Breach: $100,000 each incident $2,500

Resulting from Dependent System Failure: $100,000 each incident $2,500

Cyber Extortion Loss: $1,000,000 each incident $2,500

Data Recovery Costs: $1,000,000 each incident $2,500

Liability

Data & Network Liability: $1,000,000 each Claim $2,500

Regulatory Defense & Penalties: $1,000,000 each Claim $2,500

Payment Card Liabilities & Costs: $1,000,000 each Claim $2,500

Media Liability: $1,000,000 each Claim $2,500

eCrime

Fraudulent Instruction: $250,000 each loss $2,500

Funds Transfer Fraud: $250,000 each loss $2,500

Telephone Fraud: $250,000 each loss $2,500

Criminal Reward

Criminal Reward: $50,000
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ENDORSEMENTS EFFECTIVE AT INCEPTION

1. SCHEDULE2022 Lloyd's Security Schedule 2022

2. BSLMUNMA2868 Lloyd's Certificate - No policy language

3. LMA9098A CA Surplus Lines Notice (Post Bind)

4. NMA1256 Nuclear Incident Exclusion Clause-Liability-Direct (Broad)
(U.S.A.)

5. NMA1477 Radioactive Contamination Exclusion Clause-Liability-Direct
(U.S.A.)

6. E02804 032011 ed. Sanction Limitation and Exclusion Clause

7. E10602 112017 ed. War and Civil War Exclusion

8. E10595 112017 ed. Asbestos, Pollution, and Contamination Exclusion Endorsement

9. E11122 012018 ed. Cap on Losses Arising Out of Certified Acts of Terrorism

10. E10596 122019 ed. Choice of Law and Service of Suit

11. E11294 032018 ed. Amend Data Recovery Costs

12. E12604 012019 ed. Amend Definition of Data

13. E06799 112017 ed. Amend Definition of Fraudulent Instruction

14. E07594 112017 ed. Amend Notified Individuals Threshold

15. E12698 022019 ed. Amend Other Insurance Clause – Primary With Respect To
Breach Response Services And First Party Loss

16. E11783 072018 ed. Computer Hardware Replacement Cost

17. E10675 012019 ed. Contingent Bodily Injury With Sublimit Endorsement

18. E12968 052019 ed. CryptoJacking Endorsement

19. E11290 032018 ed. GDPR Cyber Endorsement

20. E11848 072018 ed. Invoice Manipulation Coverage

21. E10944 032019 ed. Post Breach Remedial Services Endorsement

22. E13038 062019 ed. Reputation Loss

23. E12967 052019 ed. Voluntary Shutdown Coverage

24. E06928 082020 ed. Policyholder Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage

25. E13915 052020 ed. Employee Device Endorsement

26. E13372 092019 ed. State Consumer Privacy Statutes Endorsement
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Date Issued: 31-Mar-2022 8:34:19 PM

Page 5 of 5

Dated:

At:

31-Mar-2022

30 Batterson Park Road
Farmington
Connecticut 06032
(the office of the Correspondent)

by                                                                                 
Beazley USA Services, Inc. (Correspondent)
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. Referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

LLOYD’S SECURITY SCHEDULE

Syndicate 2623 82%
Syndicate 623 18%

ALL OTHER TERMS, conditions and limitations of said Certificate shall remain unchanged.
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This Insurance is effected with certain Underwriters at Lloyd's,

London.

This Insurance is issued in accordance with the limited

authorization granted to the Correspondent by certain Underwriters at
Lloyd's, London whose syndicate numbers and the proportions underwritten
by them can be ascertained from the office of the said Correspondent (such
Underwriters being hereinafter called "Underwriters") and in consideration of
the premium specified herein, Underwriters hereby bind themselves severally
and not jointly, each for his own part and not one for another, their
Executors and Administrators.

The Insured is requested to read their Policy, and if it is not

correct, return it immediately to the Correspondent for appropriate
alteration.

All inquiries regarding the Policy should be addressed to the following
Correspondent:

Beazley USA

SLC-3 (USA) NMA2868 (24/08/2000) (amended)
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One Lime Street London EC3M 7HA 
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CALIFORNIA SURPLUS LINES NOTICE 1 (POST BIND)

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

1. The insurance policy that you have purchased is being
issued by an insurer that is not licensed by the state of
California. These companies are called "nonadmitted" or
"surplus line" insurers.

2. The insurer is not subject to the financial solvency
regulation and enforcement that apply to California licensed
insurers.

3. The insurer does not participate in any of the insurance
guarantee funds created by California law. Therefore, these
funds will not pay your claims or protect your assets if the
insurer becomes insolvent and is unable to make payments as
promised.

4. The insurer should be licensed either as a foreign insurer
in another state in the United States or as a non-United States
(alien) insurer. You should ask questions of your insurance
agent, broker, or “surplus line” broker or contact the
California Department of Insurance at the toll-free number 1-
800-927-4357 or internet website www.insurance.ca.gov. Ask
whether or not the insurer is licensed as a foreign or non-
United States (alien) insurer and for additional information
about the insurer. You may also visit the NAIC’s internet
website at www.naic.org. The NAIC—the National Association
of Insurance Commissioners—is the regulatory support
organization created and governed by the chief insurance
regulators in the United States.

5. Foreign insurers should be licensed by a state in the
United States and you may contact that state’s department of
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insurance to obtain more information about that insurer. You
can find a link to each state from this NAIC internet website:
https://naic.org/state_web_map.htm.

6. For non-United States (alien) insurers, the insurer should
be licensed by a country outside of the United States and
should be on the NAIC’s International Insurers Department
(IID) listing of approved nonadmitted non-United States
insurers. Ask your agent, broker, or “surplus line” broker to
obtain more information about that insurer.

7. California Maintains A “List Of Approved Surplus Line
Insurers (LASLI).” Ask your agent or broker if the insurer is
on that list, or view that list at the internet web site of the
California Department of Insurance:
www.insurance.ca.gov/01-consumers/120-company/07-lasli/la
sli.cfm.

8. If you, as the applicant, required that the insurance
policy you have purchased be effective immediately, either
because existing coverage was going to lapse within two
business days or because you were required to have coverage
within two business days, and you did not receive this
disclosure form and a request for your signature until after
coverage became effective, you have the right to cancel this
policy within five days of receiving this disclosure. If you
cancel coverage, the premium will be prorated and any
broker’s fee charged for this insurance will be returned to
you.

LMA9098A
01 January 2020
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101 

NUCLEAR INCIDENT EXCLUSION CLAUSE-LIABILITY-DIRECT (BROAD) (U.S.A.)

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

For attachment to insurances of the following classifications in the U.S.A., its Territories and
Possessions, Puerto Rico and the Canal Zone: 

Owners, Landlords and Tenants Liability, Contractual Liability, Elevator Liability, Owners or
Contractors (including railroad) Protective Liability, Manufacturers and Contractors Liability,
Product Liability, Professional and Malpractice Liability, Storekeepers Liability, Garage Liability,
Automobile Liability (including Massachusetts Motor Vehicle or Garage Liability),

not being insurances of the classifications to which the Nuclear Incident Exclusion Clause-
Liability-Direct (Limited) applies. 

This Policy* does not apply: 

I. Under any Liability Coverage, to injury, sickness, disease, death or destruction: 

(a) with respect to which an insured under the Policy is also an insured under a
nuclear energy liability policy issued by Nuclear Energy Liability Insurance
Association, Mutual Atomic Energy Liability Underwriters or Nuclear Insurance
Association of Canada, or would be an insured under any such policy but for its
termination upon exhaustion of its limit of liability; or 

(b) resulting from the hazardous properties of nuclear material and with respect to
which (1) any person or organization is required to maintain financial protection
pursuant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or any law amendatory thereof, or (2)
the insured is, or had this Policy not been issued would be, entitled to indemnity
from the United States of America, or any agency thereof, under any agreement
entered into by the United States of America, or any agency thereof, with any
person or organization. 

II.          Under any Medical Payments Coverage, or under any Supplementary Payments 
Provision relating to immediate medical or surgical relief, to expenses incurred with
respect to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death resulting from the hazardous
properties of nuclear material and arising out of the operation of a nuclear facility by any
person or organization. 

III.         Under any Liability Coverage, to injury, sickness, disease, death or destruction resulting
from the hazardous properties of nuclear material, if: 

(a) the nuclear material (1) is at any nuclear facility owned by, or operated by or on
behalf of, an insured or (2) has been discharged or dispersed therefrom; 

(b) the nuclear material is contained in spent fuel or waste at any time possessed,
handled, used, processed, stored, transported or disposed of by or on behalf of 
an insured; or

(c) the injury, sickness, disease, death or destruction arises out of the furnishing by
an insured of services, materials, parts or equipment in connection with the
planning, construction, maintenance, operation or use of any nuclear facility, but
if such facility is located within the United States of America, its territories or
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possessions or Canada, this exclusion (c) applies only to injury to or destruction of
property at such nuclear facility. 

IV. As used in this endorsement: 

"hazardous properties" include radioactive, toxic or explosive properties;

"nuclear material" means source material, special nuclear material or by-product material; 

"source material", "special nuclear material", and "by-product material" have the
meanings given them in the Atomic Energy Act 1954 or in any law amendatory thereof; 

"spent fuel" means any fuel element or fuel component, solid or liquid, which has been
used or exposed to radiation in a nuclear reactor; 

"waste" means any waste material (1) containing by-product material and (2) resulting
from the operation by any person or organization of any nuclear facility included within
the definition of nuclear facility under paragraph (a) or (b) thereof; 

"nuclear facility" means: 

(a) any nuclear reactor, 

(b) any equipment or device designed or used for (1) separating the isotopes of
uranium or plutonium, (2) processing or utilizing spent fuel, or (3) handling,
processing or packaging waste, 

(c) any equipment or device used for the processing, fabricating or alloying of
special nuclear material if at any time the total amount of such material in the
custody of the insured at the premises where such equipment or device is
located consists of or contains more than 25 grams of plutonium or uranium 233
or any combination thereof, or more than 250 grams of uranium 235, 

(d) any structure, basin, excavation, premises or place prepared or used for the
storage or disposal of waste, 

and includes the site on which any of the foregoing is located, all operations conducted on
such site and all premises used for such operations; "nuclear reactor" means any
apparatus designed or used to sustain nuclear fission in a self-supporting chain reaction
or to contain a critical mass of fissionable material.  With respect to injury to or
destruction of property, the word "injury" or "destruction" includes all forms of radioactive
contamination of property. 

It is understood and agreed that, except as specifically provided in the foregoing to the
contrary, this clause is subject to the terms, exclusions, conditions and limitations of the
Policy to which it is attached. 

* NOTE: As respects policies which afford liability coverages and other forms of coverage in
addition, the words underlined should be amended to designate the liability coverage to which this
clause is to apply.
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101

RADIOACTIVE CONTAMINATION EXCLUSION CLAUSE-LIABILITY-DIRECT (U.S.A.) 

For attachment (in addition to the appropriate Nuclear Incident Exclusion Clause-Liability-Direct) 
to liability insurances affording worldwide coverage. 

In relation to liability arising outside the U.S.A., its Territories or Possessions, Puerto Rico or the
Canal Zone, this Policy does not cover any liability of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly
caused by or contributed to by or arising from ionising radiations or contamination by radioactivity
from any nuclear fuel or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel. 

159 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



E02804

032011 ed.

  Page 1 of 1

Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. Referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

SANCTION LIMITATION AND EXCLUSION CLAUSE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

No (re)insurer shall be deemed to provide cover and no (re)insurer shall be liable to pay any claim or
provide any benefit hereunder to the extent that the provision of such cover, payment of such claim or
provision of such benefit would expose that (re)insurer to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under
United Nations resolutions or the trade or economic sanctions, law or regulations of the European Union,
United Kingdom or United States of America.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

WAR AND CIVIL WAR EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that
EXCLUSIONS is amended to include: 

War and Civil War

For resulting from, directly or indirectly occasioned by, happening through or in consequence of:
war, invasion, acts of foreign enemies, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), civil war,
rebellion, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power or confiscation or nationalization or
requisition or destruction of or damage to property by or under the order of any government or
public or local authority; provided, that this exclusion will not apply to Cyber Terrorism.

For purposes of this exclusion, “Cyber Terrorism” means the premeditated use of disruptive
activities, or threat to use disruptive activities, against a computer system or network with the
intention to cause harm, further social, ideological, religious, political or similar objectives, or to
intimidate any person(s) in furtherance of such objectives.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

ASBESTOS, POLLUTION, AND CONTAMINATION EXCLUSION ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that the
coverage under this Policy will not apply to any Loss arising out of either in whole or in part, directly or
indirectly arising out of or resulting from or in consequence of, or in any way involving: 

1. asbestos, or any materials containing asbestos in whatever form or quantity;

2. the actual, potential, alleged or threatened formation, growth, presence, release or dispersal of
any fungi, molds, spores or mycotoxins of any kind; any action taken by any party in response to
the actual, potential, alleged or threatened formation, growth, presence, release or dispersal of
fungi, molds, spores or mycotoxins of any kind, such action to include investigating, testing for,
detection of, monitoring of, treating, remediating or removing such fungi, molds, spores or
mycotoxins; and any governmental or regulatory order, requirement, directive, mandate or decree
that any party take action in response to the actual, potential, alleged or threatened formation,
growth, presence, release or dispersal of fungi, molds, spores or mycotoxins of any kind, such
action to include investigating, testing for, detection of, monitoring of, treating, remediating or
removing such fungi, molds, spores or mycotoxins;

The Underwriters will have no duty or obligation to defend any Insured with respect to any Claim
or governmental or regulatory order, requirement, directive, mandate or decree which either in
whole or in part, directly or indirectly, arises out of or results from or in consequence of, or in any
way involves the actual, potential, alleged or threatened formation, growth, presence, release or
dispersal of any fungi, molds, spores or mycotoxins of any kind;

3. the existence, emission or discharge of any electromagnetic field, electromagnetic radiation or
electromagnetism that actually or allegedly affects the health, safety or condition of any person or
the environment, or that affects the value, marketability, condition or use of any property; or

4. the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, release or escape of Pollutants; or any
governmental, judicial or regulatory directive or request that the Insured or anyone acting under
the direction or control of the Insured test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify
or neutralize Pollutants. Pollutants means any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or
contaminant including gas, acids, alkalis, chemicals, heat, smoke, vapor, soot, fumes or waste.
Waste includes but is not limited to materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. Referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

CAP ON LOSSES ARISING OUT OF CERTIFIED ACT OF TERRORISM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

A. If aggregate insured losses attributable to “Certified Acts of Terrorism” exceed $100,000,000,000
in a calendar year and the Underwriters meet the applicable insurer deductible under the
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, the Underwriters are not liable for the payment of any portion of the
amount of the losses exceeding $100,000,000,000. Insured losses up to that amount are subject
to pro rata allocation in accordance with procedures established by the Secretary of the Treasury. 

B. As used in this endorsement, “Certified Act of Terrorism” means any act that is certified by the
Secretary of the Treasury, in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security and the
Attorney General of the United States, to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that
is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in damage within the
United States, or outside the United States in the case of an air carrier or vessel or the premises
of a United States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals, as part of
an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect
the conduct of the United States Government by coercion.

C. Terrorism exclusions, or the inapplicability or omission of a terrorism exclusion, do not create
coverage for injury or damage otherwise excluded under this Policy.

All other terms, exclusions and conditions of the policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative

163 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



E10596

122019 ed.

  Page 1 of 1

Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

CHOICE OF LAW AND SERVICE OF SUIT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that
GENERAL CONDITIONS is amended to include:

Service of Suit

It is agreed that in the event of the Underwriters’ failure to pay any amount claimed to be due
under this Insurance, the Underwriters will, at the Insured’s request, submit to the jurisdiction of
a court of competent jurisdiction within the United States. Nothing in this provision constitutes or
should be understood to constitute a waiver of the Underwriters’ rights to commence an action in
any court of competent jurisdiction in the United States, to remove an action to a United States
District Court, or seek a transfer of a case to another court as permitted by the laws of the United
States or any state in the United States. It is further agreed that service of processing such suit
may be made upon the Underwriters’ representative:

Foley & Lardner LLP, 555 California Street, Suite 1700, San Francisco, CA 94104-1520

and that in any suit instituted against any one of them upon this contract, the Underwriters will
abide by the final decision of such court or of any appellate court in the event of an appeal.
The person or entity named above is authorized and directed to accept service of process on the
Underwriters’ behalf in any such suit and/or upon the Insured’s request to give a written
undertaking to the Insured that they will enter a general appearance upon the Underwriters’
behalf in the event such a suit shall be instituted.

Pursuant to any statute of any state, territory, or district of the United States which makes
provision therefore, the Underwriters hereby designate the Superintendent, Commissioner, or
Director of Insurance or other officer specified for that purpose in the statute, or his successor in
office, as their true and lawful attorney upon whom may be served any lawful process in any
action, suit, or proceeding instituted by or on the Insured’s behalf or any beneficiary hereunder
arising out of this Policy, and hereby designate the person or entity named above as the persons
to whom said officer is authorized to mail such process or a true copy thereof.

Choice of Law

Any disputes involving this Policy will be resolved applying the law of the state of New York.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

AMEND DATA RECOVERY COSTS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that the Data
Recovery Costs insuring agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Data Recovery Costs

Data Recovery Costs that the Insured Organization incurs as a direct result of a Security
Breach or System Failure that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

AMEND DEFINITION OF DATA

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged, it is hereby understood and agreed that the definition of Data is
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

Data means any software or electronic data that exists in Computer Systems.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

AMEND DEFINITION OF FRAUDULENT INSTRUCTION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that the
definition of Fraudulent Instruction is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Fraudulent Instruction means the transfer, payment or delivery of Money or Securities by an
Insured as a result of fraudulent written, electronic, telegraphic, cable, teletype or telephone
instructions provided by a third party, that is intended to mislead an Insured through the
misrepresentation of a material fact which is relied upon in good faith by such Insured.

Fraudulent Instruction will not include loss arising out of:

1. any actual or alleged use of credit, debit, charge, access, convenience, customer
identification or other cards;

2. any transfer involving a third party who is not a natural person Insured, but had
authorized access to the Insured’s authentication mechanism;

3. the processing of, or the failure to process, credit, check, debit, personal identification
number debit, electronic benefit transfers or mobile payments for merchant accounts;

4. accounting or arithmetical errors or omissions, or the failure, malfunction, inadequacy
or illegitimacy of any product or service;

5. any liability to any third party, or any indirect or consequential loss of any kind;

6. any legal costs or legal expenses; or 

7. proving or establishing the existence of Fraudulent Instruction.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative

167 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



E07594

112017 ed.

  Page 1 of 1

Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

AMEND NOTIFIED INDIVIDUALS THRESHOLD

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that part 4. of
the definition of Breach Response Services is deleted and replaced with the following:

4. to notify those individuals whose Personally Identifiable Information was potentially impacted
by a Data Breach;

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

AMEND OTHER INSURANCE CLAUSE – PRIMARY WITH RESPECT TO BREACH RESPONSE 
SERVICES AND FIRST PARTY LOSS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that Other
Insurance under GENERAL CONDITIONS is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Other Insurance

The insurance under this Policy shall apply in excess of any other valid and collectible insurance
available to any Insured unless such other insurance is written only as specific excess insurance
over this Policy; provided that this Policy shall be primary solely with respect to Breach
Response Services, Cyber Extortion Loss and Data Recovery Costs covered under the
Breach Response and First Party Loss insuring agreements.

The existence of other insurance available to an Insured shall not affect the Underwriters’
obligations toward an Insured in paying Loss covered under this Policy nor shall it delay
payment of such Loss.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

COMPUTER HARDWARE REPLACEMENT COST

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for this Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that:

1. The definition of Extra Expense is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Extra Expense means reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Insured
Organization during the Period of Restoration to minimize, reduce or avoid Income Loss, over
and above those expenses the Insured Organization would have incurred had no Security
Breach, System Failure, Dependent Security Breach or Dependent System Failure occurred;
and includes reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Insured Organization to
replace computers or any associated devices or equipment operated by, and either owned by or
leased to, the Insured Organization that are unable to function as intended due to corruption or
destruction of software or firmware directly resulting from a Security Breach, provided however
that the maximum sublimit applicable to Extra Expense incurred to replace such devices or
equipment is USD $100,000.

2. Part 2. of the Bodily Injury or Property Damage exclusion is deleted in its entirety and replaced
with the following:

2. physical injury to or destruction of any tangible property, including the loss of use thereof;
but this will not apply to the loss of use of computers or any associated devices or
equipment operated by, and either owned by or leased to, the Insured Organization that
are unable to function as intended due to corruption or destruction of software or
firmware directly resulting from a Security Breach. Electronic data shall not be
considered tangible property;

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

CONTINGENT BODILY INJURY WITH SUBLIMIT ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for this Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that:

1. Part 1. of the Bodily Injury or Property Damage exclusion is deleted in its entirety and replaced
with the following:

1. Bodily Injury; provided, this exclusion shall not apply to any Claim for Contingent
Bodily Injury.

2. DEFINITIONS is amended by the addition of:

Bodily Injury means physical injury, sickness, disease or death of any person, including any
mental anguish or emotional distress that results from such physical injury, sickness, disease or
death.

Contingent Bodily Injury means those Claims wherein the Damages sought by the claimant
are for Bodily Injury which arise solely out of a Security Breach affecting the Insured
Organization’s Computer Systems which is otherwise covered under the terms and conditions
of this Policy; but not if the Insured's own act, error or omission is the direct immediate cause of
such Claim for Bodily Injury. Furthermore, this extension of coverage applies only if such Claim
for Bodily Injury is not covered under any other policy of insurance.

3. The Underwriter’s aggregate limit of liability for all Damages resulting from all Claims covered
under this Endorsement, made against any Insured(s) based upon, arising out of, directly or
indirectly resulting from or in consequence of, or in any way involving any Contingent Bodily
Injury shall be $250,000, which amount shall be part of and not in addition to the Policy
Aggregate Limit of Liability.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

CRYPTOJACKING ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that:

1. The aggregate sublimit applicable to all loss under this endorsement is USD $100,000.

2 The Retention applicable to each incident, event, or related incidents or events, giving rise to an
obligation to pay loss under this endorsement shall be USD $2,500.

3. INSURING AGREEMENTS is amended to include: 

Cryptojacking

To indemnify the Insured Organization for any direct financial loss sustained resulting
from Cryptojacking that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period.

4. DEFINITIONS is amended to include:

Cryptojacking means the Unauthorized Access or Use of Computer Systems to mine for
Digital Currency that directly results in additional costs incurred by the Insured Organization for
electricity, natural gas, oil, or internet (the “Utilities”); provided, however, that such additional
costs for the Utilities are:   

1. incurred pursuant to a written contract between the Insured Organization and
the respective utility provider, which was executed before the Cryptojacking first
occurred; 

2. billed to the Insured Organization by statements issued by the respective utility
provider, which include usage or consumption information; 

3. not charged to the Insured Organization at a flat fee that does not scale with the
rate or use of the respective utility; and

4. incurred pursuant to statements issued by the respective utility provider and due
for payment during the Policy Period.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

GDPR CYBER ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that the Data
& Network Liability insuring agreement is amended to include:

5. non-compliance with the following obligations under the EU General Data Protection Regulation
(or legislation in the relevant jurisdiction implementing this Regulation):

(a) Article 5.1(f), also known as the Security Principle;

(b) Article 32, Security of Processing;

(c) Article 33, Communication of a Personal Data Breach to the Supervisory Authority; or

(d) Article 34, Communication of a Personal Data Breach to the Data Subject.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

INVOICE MANIPULATION COVERAGE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that:

1. The aggregate sublimit applicable to all loss under this endorsement is USD $100,000.

2. The Retention applicable to each incident, event, or related incidents or events, giving rise to an
obligation to pay loss under this endorsement shall be USD $2,500.

3. INSURING AGREEMENTS is amended to include:

Invoice Manipulation

To indemnify the Insured Organization for Direct Net Loss resulting directly from the
Insured Organization’s inability to collect Payment for any goods, products or services
after such goods, products or services have been transferred to a third party, as a result
of Invoice Manipulation that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period:

4. DEFINITIONS is amended to include:

Direct Net Loss means the direct net cost to the Insured Organization to provide goods,
products or services to a third party. Direct Net Loss will not include any profit to the Insured
Organization as a result of providing such goods, products or services.  

Invoice Manipulation means the release or distribution of any fraudulent invoice or fraudulent
payment instruction to a third party as a direct result of a Security Breach or a Data Breach.

Payment means currency, coins or bank notes in current use and having a face value.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

POST BREACH REMEDIAL SERVICES ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that, following
a covered Data Breach or Security Breach involving the actual Unauthorized Access or Use of the
Insured Organization’s Computer Systems, the Insured Organization is eligible to receive Post
Breach Remedial Services.

Post Breach Remedial Services means up to 100 hours per Policy Period of post-breach computer
security consultation and remedial services to be provided by Lodestone Security (“Lodestone”). Such
services will be provided at the Insured Organization’s request as per the description of services
attached to this endorsement. Post Breach Remedial Services will be considered Breach Response
Services, and will be available in response to incidents in which forensic services and costs covered
under parts 2. and 3. of the definition of Breach Response Services have been provided, subject to the
applicable Retention. Post Breach Remedial Services will not include any costs to purchase or upgrade
any hardware or software.

To access Post Breach Remedial Services, the Insured Organization must:

1. notify the Underwriters that they desire to receive such services; and  

2. enter into an engagement agreement with Lodestone to receive such services, 

within sixty (60) days following a determination of the actual Unauthorized Access or Use of the
Insured Organization’s Computer Systems.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

REPUTATION LOSS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that:

1. Limit listed in the Declarations under COVERAGE SCHEDULE is amended to include:

Reputation Loss: USD $1,000,000

2. Retention listed in the Declarations under COVERAGE SCHEDULE is amended to include:

Each incident giving rise to Reputation Loss: USD $2,500

3. INSURING AGREEMENTS is amended by the addition of:

Reputation Loss

To indemnify the Insured Organization for Reputation Loss that the Insured
Organization sustains solely as a result of an Adverse Media Event that occurs during
the Policy Period, concerning: 

1. a Data Breach, Security Breach, or Extortion Threat that the Insured first
discovers during the Policy Period; or 

2. if this policy is a Renewal, a Data Breach, Security Breach, or Extortion
Threat that the Insured first discovers during the last 90 days of the prior policy
period.

4. DEFINITIONS is amended to include:

Adverse Media Event means:

1. publication by a third party via any medium, including but not limited to television,
print, radio, electronic, or digital form of previously non-public information
specifically concerning a Data Breach, Security Breach, or Extortion Threat;
or

2. notification of individuals pursuant to part 4. of the Breach Response Services
definition.

Multiple Adverse Media Events arising from the same or a series of related, repeated or
continuing Data Breaches, Security Breaches, or Extortion Threats, shall be
considered a single Adverse Media Event, and shall be deemed to occur at the time of
the first such Adverse Media Event.

Claims Preparation Costs means reasonable and necessary costs that the Named Insured
incurs to contract with a third party to prepare a proof of loss demonstrating Reputational Loss.
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Protection Period means the period beginning on the date the Adverse Media Event occurs,
and ends after the earlier of:

1. 180 days; or

2. the date that gross revenues are restored to the level they would have been but
for the Adverse Media Event.

Renewal means an insurance policy issued by the Underwriters to the Named Insured for the
policy period immediately preceding this Policy Period that provides coverage for a Data
Breach, Security Breach, or Extortion Threat otherwise covered under this Policy.

Reputation Loss means:

1. the net profit or loss before interest and tax that the Insured Organization would
have earned during the Protection Period but for an Adverse Media Event; and

2. continuing normal operating expenses incurred by the Insured Organization
(including payroll), but only to the extent that such operating expenses must
necessarily continue during the Protection Period. 

When calculating any Reputation Loss, due consideration will be given to any amounts
made up during, or within a reasonable time after the end of, the Protection Period.

Reputation Loss will not mean and no coverage will be available under this
endorsement for any of the following:  

(i) loss arising out of any liability to any third party; 

(ii) legal costs or legal expenses of any type; 

(iii) loss incurred as a result of unfavorable business conditions; 

(iv) loss of market or any other consequential loss;

(v) Breach Response Services; or

(vi) Cyber Extortion Loss; 

There will be no coverage available under this endorsement if there is an actual
interruption of the Insured Organization’s business operations for any period of time.

5. Limits of Liability under LIMIT OF LIABILITY AND COVERAGE is amended to include:

Reputational Loss and Claims Preparation Costs covered under this Policy arising from an
Adverse Media Event concerning any Data Breach, Security Breach, or Extortion Threat
(including a series of related, repeated or continuing Data Breaches, Security Breaches, or
Extortion Threats) first discovered during the last 90 days of the prior policy period, will be
considered to have been noticed to the Underwriters during the prior policy period and will be
subject to the Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability of the prior policy period. Under such
circumstances, if the Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability of the prior policy period is exhausted
due to payments made under the prior policy, the Underwriter’s obligation to pay Reputational
Loss or Claims Preparation Costs under this Policy shall be completely fulfilled and
extinguished.
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6. Notice of Claim or Loss under GENERAL CONDITIONS is amended to include:

With respect to Reputation Loss, the Named Insured must notify the Underwriters through the
contacts listed for Notice of Claim, Loss or Circumstance in the Declarations as soon as
practicable after discovery of the circumstance, incident or event giving rise to such loss. 

All Reputation Loss must be reported, and all proofs of loss must be provided, to the
Underwriters no later than four (4) months after the end of the Protection Period.

7. This Policy will cover up to USD 50,000 of Claims Preparation Costs in excess of the Retention
stated in Section 2. of this endorsement.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

VOLUNTARY SHUTDOWN COVERAGE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that the
definition of Security Breach is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Security Breach means:

1. A failure of computer security to prevent:

(i) Unauthorized Access or Use of Computer Systems, including Unauthorized Access
or Use resulting from the theft of a password from a Computer System or from any
Insured;

(ii) a denial of service attack affecting Computer Systems;

(iii) with respect to coverage under the Liability insuring agreements, a denial of service
attack affecting Computer Systems that are not owned, operated or controlled by an
Insured; or

(iv) infection of Computer Systems by malicious code or transmission of malicious code
from Computer Systems; or

2. Solely with respect to the Business Interruption Loss insuring agreement:

(i) the voluntary and intentional shutdown of Computer Systems by the Insured
Organization, but only to the extent necessary to limit the Loss during an active or on-
going Unauthorized Access or Use of Computer Systems or infection of Computer
Systems by malicious code, as covered by 1.(i) or 1.(iv) above.

(ii) the intentional shutdown of Computer Systems by the Insured Organization as
expressly required by any federal, state, local or foreign governmental entity in such
entity’s regulatory or official capacity resulting from a situation described in 1.(i) or 1.(iv)
above.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE NOTICE OF
TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002, as amended ("TRIA"),
insurance coverage provided by this Policy includes losses arising out of acts of terrorism, as defined in
Section 102(1) of the Act, as amended: The term “act of terrorism” means any act that is certified by the
Secretary of the Treasury, in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security and the Attorney
General of the United States, to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to
human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in damage within the United States, or outside the
United States in the case of an air carrier or vessel or the premises of a United States mission; and to
have been committed by an individual or individuals, as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population
of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by
coercion. Any coverage you purchase for "acts of terrorism" shall expire at 12:00 midnight December 31,
2027, the date on which the TRIA Program is scheduled to terminate, or the expiry date of the policy
whichever occurs first, and shall not cover any losses or events which arise after the earlier of these
dates. 

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT COVERAGE PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR LOSSES CAUSED BY
CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM IS PARTIALLY REIMBURSED BY THE UNITED STATES UNDER
A FORMULA ESTABLISHED BY FEDERAL LAW. HOWEVER, YOUR POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER
EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS AN EXCLUSION FOR
NUCLEAR EVENTS. UNDER THIS FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES PAYS 80%; OF COVERED
TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE STATUTORILY ESTABLISHED DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE
INSURER(S) PROVIDING THE COVERAGE. YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM
RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED, CONTAINS A USD100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S.
GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS WELL AS INSURERS' LIABILITY FOR LOSSES RESULTING
FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM WHEN THE AMOUNT OF SUCH LOSSES IN ANY ONE
CALENDAR YEAR EXCEEDS USD100 BILLION. IF THE AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES FOR ALL
INSURERS EXCEED USD100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE MAY BE REDUCED. 

The portion of your annual premium that is attributable to coverage for certified acts of terrorism as
defined in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002, as amended, is $0.

(LMA 9184 amended)
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

EMPLOYEE DEVICE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that the
definition of Computer Systems is amended to include computers, any software residing on such
computers and any associated devices or equipment (including but not limited to wireless or mobile
devices), operated by any person listed in parts 2., 3. or 4. of the Insured definition, but only for work
done while acting within the scope of his or her employment and related to the conduct of the Insured
Organization’s business.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 01-Apr-2022
This Endorsement is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W31F31220101
Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyd's. referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the
“Underwriters”

STATE CONSUMER PRIVACY STATUTES ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that:

1. The Policy is amended to include the following insuring agreement:

State Consumer Privacy Statutes 

To pay Penalties and Claims Expenses which the Insured is legally obligated to pay because of
any Regulatory Proceeding first made against any Insured during the Policy Period for a
violation of the California Consumer Privacy Act or any similar state statutes or state regulations
specifically governing the Insured Organization’s collection, use, disclosure, sale, processing,
profiling, acquisition, sharing, maintenance, retention or storage of or provision of access to
personal information or personal data as defined under the California Consumer Privacy Act or
similar state statutes or state regulations.

2. The definition of Claim is amended to include institution of a Regulatory Proceeding against any
Insured under the State Consumer Privacy Statutes insuring agreement for a violation of the
California Consumer Privacy Act or any similar state statutes or state regulations specifically
governing the Insured Organization’s collection, use, disclosure, sale, processing, profiling,
acquisition, sharing, maintenance, retention or storage of or provision of access to personal
information or personal data as defined under the California Consumer Privacy Act or similar
state statutes or state regulations.

3. The Governmental Actions exclusion and part 1. of the Gathering or Distribution of
Information exclusion will not apply to the State Consumer Privacy Statutes insuring agreement.

4. Solely with respect to the State Consumer Privacy Statutes insuring agreement, the Trade
Practices and Antitrust exclusion is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Trade Practices

any actual or alleged false, deceptive or unfair trade practices or unfair competition; but this
exclusion will not apply to coverage under the State Consumer Privacy Statutes insuring
agreement, provided no member of the Control Group participated in or colluded in the
activities or incidents giving rise to coverage under such insuring agreement;

Antitrust 

any actual or alleged antitrust violation, restraint of trade, false, deceptive or misleading
advertising or violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act, the Clayton Act, or the Robinson-
Patman Act;
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All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.

_______________________________________

Authorized Representative
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BEAZLEY BREACH RESPONSE

THIS POLICY’S LIABILITY INSURING AGREEMENTS PROVIDE COVERAGE ON A CLAIMS MADE
AND REPORTED BASIS AND APPLY ONLY TO CLAIMS FIRST MADE AGAINST THE INSURED
DURING THE POLICY PERIOD OR THE OPTIONAL EXTENSION PERIOD (IF APPLICABLE) AND
REPORTED TO THE UNDERWRITERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THIS POLICY.
AMOUNTS INCURRED AS CLAIMS EXPENSES UNDER THIS POLICY WILL REDUCE AND MAY
EXHAUST THE LIMIT OF LIABILITY AND ARE SUBJECT TO RETENTIONS. 

Please refer to the Declarations, which show the insuring agreements that the Named Insured
purchased. If an insuring agreement has not been purchased, coverage under that insuring agreement of
this Policy will not apply.

The Underwriters agree with the Named Insured, in consideration of the payment of the premium and
reliance upon the statements contained in the information and materials provided to the Underwriters in
connection with the underwriting and issuance of this Insurance Policy (hereinafter referred to as the
"Policy") and subject to all the provisions, terms and conditions of this Policy:

  INSURING AGREEMENTS

Breach Response

To provide Breach Response Services to the Insured Organization because of an actual
or reasonably suspected Data Breach or Security Breach that the Insured first discovers
during the Policy Period.

First Party Loss

To indemnify the Insured Organization for:

Business Interruption Loss

Business Interruption Loss that the Insured Organization sustains as a result of a
Security Breach or System Failure that the Insured first discovers during the Policy
Period.

Dependent Business Interruption Loss

Dependent Business Loss that the Insured Organization sustains as a result of a
Dependent Security Breach or a Dependent System Failure that the Insured first
discovers during the Policy Period.

Cyber Extortion Loss

Cyber Extortion Loss that the Insured Organization incurs as a result of an Extortion
Threat first made against the Insured Organization during the Policy Period.

Data Recovery Costs

Data Recovery Costs that the Insured Organization incurs as a direct result of a
Security Breach that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period.
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Liability

Data & Network Liability 

To pay Damages and Claims Expenses, which the Insured is legally obligated to pay
because of any Claim first made against any Insured during the Policy Period for:

1. a Data Breach;  

2. a Security Breach; 

3. the Insured Organization’s failure to timely disclose a Data Breach or Security
Breach;

4. failure by the Insured to comply with that part of a Privacy Policy that
specifically:

(a) prohibits or restricts the Insured Organization’s disclosure, sharing or
selling of Personally Identifiable Information;

(b) requires the Insured Organization to provide an individual access to
Personally Identifiable Information or to correct incomplete or
inaccurate Personally Identifiable Information after a request is made;
or

(c) mandates procedures and requirements to prevent the loss of
Personally Identifiable Information; 

provided the Insured Organization has in force, at the time of such failure, a
Privacy Policy that addresses those subsections above that are relevant to such
Claim.

Regulatory Defense & Penalties

To pay Penalties and Claims Expenses, which the Insured is legally obligated to pay
because of a Regulatory Proceeding first made against any Insured during the Policy
Period for a Data Breach or a Security Breach.

Payment Card Liabilities & Costs

To indemnify the Insured Organization for PCI Fines, Expenses and Costs which it is
legally obligated to pay because of a Claim first made against any Insured during the
Policy Period. 

Media Liability 

To pay Damages and Claims Expenses, which the Insured is legally obligated to pay
because of any Claim first made against any Insured during the Policy Period for Media
Liability.

eCrime

To indemnify the Insured Organization for any direct financial loss sustained resulting from:

1. Fraudulent Instruction;
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2. Funds Transfer Fraud; or

3. Telephone Fraud;

that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period.

Criminal Reward

To indemnify the Insured Organization for Criminal Reward Funds. 

  DEFINITIONS

Additional Insured means any person or entity that the Insured Organization has agreed in
writing to add as an Additional Insured under this Policy prior to the commission of any act for
which such person or entity would be provided coverage under this Policy, but only to the extent
the Insured Organization would have been liable and coverage would have been afforded under
the terms and conditions of this Policy had such Claim been made against the Insured
Organization.

Breach Notice Law means any statute or regulation that requires notice to persons whose
personal information was accessed or reasonably may have been accessed by an unauthorized
person. Breach Notice Law also includes any statute or regulation requiring notice of a Data
Breach to be provided to governmental or regulatory authorities.

Breach Response Services means the following fees and costs in response to an actual or
reasonably suspected Data Breach or Security Breach: 

1 for an attorney to provide necessary legal advice to the Insured Organization to
evaluate its obligations pursuant to Breach Notice Laws or a Merchant Services
Agreement and in connection with providing the Breach Response Services
described below;

2 for a computer security expert to determine the existence, cause and scope of an
actual or reasonably suspected Data Breach, and if such Data Breach is actively in
progress on the Insured Organization’s Computer Systems, to assist in containing
it;

3. for a PCI Forensic Investigator to investigate the existence and extent of an actual or
reasonably suspected Data Breach involving payment card data and for a Qualified
Security Assessor to certify and assist in attesting to the Insured Organization's PCI
compliance, as required by a Merchant Services Agreement; 

4. to notify those individuals whose Personally Identifiable Information was potentially
impacted by a Data Breach exceeding the Notified Individuals Threshold; 

5. to provide a call center to respond to inquiries about a Data Breach that exceeds the
Notified Individuals Threshold;

6. to provide a credit monitoring, identity monitoring or other solution listed in the
Information Packet to individuals whose Personally Identifiable Information was
potentially impacted by a Data Breach exceeding the Notified Individuals
Threshold; and  
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7. public relations and crisis management costs directly related to mitigating harm to the
Insured Organization which are approved in advance by the Underwriters in their
discretion. 

Breach Response Services will be provided by providers listed in the Information Packet,
will be subject to the terms and conditions of this Policy and the Information Packet, and will
not include any internal salary or overhead expenses of the Insured Organization. Breach
Response Services also includes assistance from the BBR Services Team and access to
Education and Loss Prevention Tools.

Business Interruption Loss means:

1. Income Loss;

2. Forensic Expenses; and

3. Extra Expense;

actually sustained during the Period of Restoration as a result of the actual interruption of
the Insured Organization’s business operations caused by a Security Breach or System
Failure. Coverage for Business Interruption Loss will apply only after the Waiting Period
has elapsed.

Business Interruption Loss will not include (i) loss arising out of any liability to any third
party; (ii) legal costs or legal expenses; (iii) loss incurred as a result of unfavorable business
conditions; (iv) loss of market or any other consequential loss; (v) Dependent Business
Loss; or (vi) Data Recovery Costs.

Claim means: 

1. a written demand received by any Insured for money or services;

2. with respect to coverage provided under the Regulatory Defense & Penalties insuring
agreement only, institution of a Regulatory Proceeding against any Insured; and

3. with respect to coverage provided under part 1. of the Data & Network Liability
insuring agreement only, a demand received by any Insured to fulfill the Insured
Organization’s contractual obligation to provide notice of a Data Breach pursuant to
a Breach Notice Law;

Multiple Claims arising from the same or a series of related, repeated or continuing acts,
errors, omissions or events will be considered a single Claim for the purposes of this Policy.
All such Claims will be deemed to have been made at the time of the first such Claim.

Claims Expenses means:

1. all reasonable and necessary legal costs and expenses resulting from the
investigation, defense and appeal of a Claim, if incurred by the Underwriters, or by the
Insured with the prior written consent of the Underwriters; and

2. the premium cost for appeal bonds for covered judgments or bonds to release
property used to secure a legal obligation, if required in any Claim against an
Insured; provided the Underwriters will have no obligation to appeal or to obtain
bonds.
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Claims Expenses will not include any salary, overhead, or other charges by the Insured for
any time spent in cooperating in the defense and investigation of any Claim or circumstance
that might lead to a Claim notified under this Policy, or costs to comply with any regulatory
orders, settlements or judgments. 

Computer Systems means computers, any software residing on such computers and any
associated devices or equipment:

1. operated by and either owned by or leased to the Insured Organization; or

2. with respect to coverage under the Breach Response and Liability insuring
agreements, operated by a third party pursuant to written contract with the Insured
Organization and used for the purpose of providing hosted computer application
services to the Insured Organization or for processing, maintaining, hosting or
storing the Insured Organization’s electronic data.

Continuity Date means:

1. the Continuity Date listed in the Declarations; and

2. with respect to any Subsidiaries acquired after the Continuity Date listed in the
Declarations, the date the Named Insured acquired such Subsidiary.

Control Group means any principal, partner, corporate officer, director, general counsel (or most
senior legal counsel) or risk manager of the Insured Organization and any individual in a
substantially similar position.

Criminal Reward Funds means any amount offered and paid by the Insured Organization with
the Underwriters’ prior written consent for information that leads to the arrest and conviction of
any individual(s) committing or trying to commit any illegal act related to any coverage under this
Policy; but will not include any amount based upon information provided by the Insured, the
Insured’s auditors or any individual hired or retained to investigate the illegal acts. All Criminal
Reward Funds offered pursuant to this Policy must expire no later than 6 months following the
end of the Policy Period. 

Cyber Extortion Loss means:

1. any Extortion Payment that has been made by or on behalf of the Insured
Organization with the Underwriters’ prior written consent to prevent or terminate an
Extortion Threat; and

2. reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Insured Organization with the
Underwriters’ prior written consent to prevent or respond to an Extortion Threat.

Damages means a monetary judgment, award or settlement, including any award of prejudgment
or post-judgment interest; but Damages will not include: 

1. future profits, restitution, disgorgement of unjust enrichment or profits by an Insured,
or the costs of complying with orders granting injunctive or equitable relief;  

2. return or offset of fees, charges or commissions charged by or owed to an Insured for
goods or services already provided or contracted to be provided;  

3. taxes or loss of tax benefits;

4. fines, sanctions or penalties;
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5. punitive or exemplary damages or any damages which are a multiple of compensatory
damages, unless insurable by law in any applicable venue that most favors coverage
for such punitive, exemplary or multiple damages; 

6. discounts, coupons, prizes, awards or other incentives offered to the Insured’s
customers or clients;  

7. liquidated damages, but only to the extent that such damages exceed the amount for
which the Insured would have been liable in the absence of such liquidated damages
agreement; 

8. fines, costs or other amounts an Insured is responsible to pay under a Merchant
Services Agreement; or 

9. any amounts for which the Insured is not liable, or for which there is no legal recourse
against the Insured.

Data means any software or electronic data that exists in Computer Systems and that is subject
to regular back-up procedures.

Data Breach means the theft, loss, or Unauthorized Disclosure of Personally Identifiable
Information or Third Party Information that is in the care, custody or control of the Insured
Organization or a third party for whose theft, loss or Unauthorized Disclosure of Personally
Identifiable Information or Third Party Information the Insured Organization is liable. 

Data Recovery Costs means the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by the Insured
Organization to regain access to, replace, or restore Data, or if Data cannot reasonably be
accessed, replaced, or restored, then the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by the
Insured Organization to reach this determination.

Data Recovery Costs will not include: (i) the monetary value of profits, royalties, or lost
market share related to Data, including but not limited to trade secrets or other proprietary
information or any other amount pertaining to the value of Data; (ii) legal costs or legal
expenses; (iii) loss arising out of any liability to any third party; or (iv) Cyber Extortion Loss.

Dependent Business means any entity that is not a part of the Insured Organization but which
provides necessary products or services to the Insured Organization pursuant to a written
contract.

Dependent Business Loss means:

1. Income Loss; and

2. Extra Expense;

actually sustained during the Period of Restoration as a result of an actual interruption of
the Insured Organization’s business operations caused by a Dependent Security Breach
or Dependent System Failure. Coverage for Dependent Business Loss will apply only
after the Waiting Period has elapsed.

Dependent Business Loss will not include (i) loss arising out of any liability to any third
party; (ii) legal costs or legal expenses; (iii) loss incurred as a result of unfavorable business
conditions; (iv) loss of market or any other consequential loss; (v) Business Interruption
Loss; or (vi) Data Recovery Costs.
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Dependent Security Breach means a failure of computer security to prevent a breach of
computer systems operated by a Dependent Business.

Dependent System Failure means an unintentional and unplanned interruption of computer
systems operated by a Dependent Business.  

Dependent System Failure will not include any interruption of computer systems resulting
from (i) a Dependent Security Breach, or (ii) the interruption of computer systems that are
not operated by a Dependent Business.

Digital Currency means a type of digital currency that:

1. requires cryptographic techniques to regulate the generation of units of currency and
verify the transfer thereof;

2. is both stored and transferred electronically; and

3. operates independently of a central bank or other central authority.

Education and Loss Prevention Tools means information and services made available by the
Underwriters from time to time and includes access to beazleybreachsolutions.com, a dedicated
portal through which Insureds can access news and information regarding breach response
planning, data and network security threats, best practices in protecting data and networks, offers
from third party service providers, and related information, tools and services. Insureds will also
have access to communications addressing timely topics in data security, loss prevention and
other areas.

Extortion Payment means Money, Digital Currency, marketable goods or services demanded
to prevent or terminate an Extortion Threat.

Extortion Threat means a threat to:

1. alter, destroy, damage, delete or corrupt Data;

2. perpetrate the Unauthorized Access or Use of Computer Systems;

3. prevent access to Computer Systems or Data;

4. steal, misuse or publicly disclose Data, Personally Identifiable Information or Third
Party Information;

5. introduce malicious code into Computer Systems or to third party computer systems
from Computer Systems; or

6. interrupt or suspend Computer Systems;

unless an Extortion Payment is received from or on behalf of the Insured Organization.

Extra Expense means reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Insured
Organization during the Period of Restoration to minimize, reduce or avoid Income Loss, over
and above those expenses the Insured Organization would have incurred had no Security
Breach, System Failure, Dependent Security Breach or Dependent System Failure occurred.

Financial Institution means a bank, credit union, saving and loan association, trust company or
other licensed financial service, securities broker-dealer, mutual fund, or liquid assets fund or
similar investment company where the Insured Organization maintains a bank account.
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Forensic Expenses means reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Insured
Organization to investigate the source or cause of a Business Interruption Loss.

Fraudulent Instruction means the transfer, payment or delivery of Money or Securities by an
Insured as a result of fraudulent written, electronic, telegraphic, cable, teletype or telephone
instructions provided by a third party, that is intended to mislead an Insured through the
misrepresentation of a material fact which is relied upon in good faith by such Insured.

Fraudulent Instruction will not include loss arising out of:

1. fraudulent instructions received by the Insured which are not first authenticated via a
method other than the original means of request to verify the authenticity or validity of
the request;

2. any actual or alleged use of credit, debit, charge, access, convenience, customer
identification or other cards;

3. any transfer involving a third party who is not a natural person Insured, but had
authorized access to the Insured’s authentication mechanism;

4. the processing of, or the failure to process, credit, check, debit, personal identification
number debit, electronic benefit transfers or mobile payments for merchant accounts;

5. accounting or arithmetical errors or omissions, or the failure, malfunction, inadequacy
or illegitimacy of any product or service;

6. any liability to any third party, or any indirect or consequential loss of any kind;

7. any legal costs or legal expenses; or 

8. proving or establishing the existence of Fraudulent Instruction.

Funds Transfer Fraud means the loss of Money or Securities contained in a Transfer Account
at a Financial Institution resulting from fraudulent written, electronic, telegraphic, cable, teletype
or telephone instructions by a third party issued to a Financial Institution directing such
institution to transfer, pay or deliver Money or Securities from any account maintained by the
Insured Organization at such institution, without the Insured Organization's knowledge or
consent. 

Funds Transfer Fraud will not include any loss arising out of:

1. the type or kind covered by the Insured Organization’s financial institution bond or
commercial crime policy;

2. any actual or alleged fraudulent, dishonest or criminal act or omission by, or involving,
any natural person Insured;

3. any indirect or consequential loss of any kind;

4. punitive, exemplary or multiplied damages of any kind or any fines, penalties or loss of
any tax benefit;

5. any liability to any third party, except for direct compensatory damages arising directly
from Funds Transfer Fraud;
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6. any legal costs or legal expenses; or proving or establishing the existence of Funds
Transfer Fraud;

7. the theft, disappearance, destruction of, unauthorized access to, or unauthorized use of
confidential information, including a PIN or security code;

8. any forged, altered or fraudulent negotiable instruments, securities, documents or
instructions; or

9. any actual or alleged use of credit, debit, charge, access, convenience or other cards
or the information contained on such cards.

Income Loss means an amount equal to:

1. net profit or loss before interest and tax that the Insured Organization would have
earned or incurred; and

2. continuing normal operating expenses incurred by the Insured Organization (including
payroll), but only to the extent that such operating expenses must necessarily continue
during the Period of Restoration.

Individual Contractor means any natural person who performs labor or service for the Insured
Organization pursuant to a written contract or agreement with the Insured Organization. The
status of an individual as an Individual Contractor will be determined as of the date of an
alleged act, error or omission by any such Individual Contractor.

Insured means:

1. the Insured Organization;

2. any director or officer of the Insured Organization, but only with respect to the
performance of his or her duties as such on behalf of the Insured Organization;

3. an employee (including a part time, temporary, leased or seasonal employee or
volunteer) or Individual Contractor of the Insured Organization, but only for work
done while acting within the scope of his or her employment and related to the conduct
of the Insured Organization’s business;

4. a principal if the Named Insured is a sole proprietorship, or a partner if the
Named Insured is a partnership, but only with respect to the performance of his or her
duties as such on behalf of the Insured Organization; 

5. any person who previously qualified as an Insured under parts 2. - 4., but only with
respect to the performance of his or her duties as such on behalf of the Insured
Organization; 

6. an Additional Insured, but only as respects Claims against such person or entity for
acts, errors or omissions of the Insured Organization;

7. the estate, heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and legal representatives of any
Insured in the event of such Insured's death, incapacity, insolvency or bankruptcy, but
only to the extent that such Insured would otherwise be provided coverage under this
Policy; and
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8. the lawful spouse, including any natural person qualifying as a domestic partner of any
Insured, but solely by reason of any act, error or omission of an Insured other than
such spouse or domestic partner.

Insured Organization means the Named Insured and any Subsidiaries.

Loss means Breach Response Services, Business Interruption Loss, Claims Expenses,
Criminal Reward Funds, Cyber Extortion Loss, Damages, Data Recovery Costs, Dependent
Business Loss, PCI Fines, Expenses and Costs, Penalties, loss covered under the eCrime
insuring agreement and any other amounts covered under this Policy.

Multiple Losses arising from the same or a series of related, repeated or continuing acts,
errors, omissions or events will be considered a single Loss for the purposes of this Policy. 

With respect to the Breach Response and First Party Loss insuring agreements, all acts,
errors, omissions or events (or series of related, repeated or continuing acts, errors,
omissions or events) giving rise to a Loss or multiple Losses in connection with such
insuring agreements will be deemed to have been discovered at the time the first such act,
error, omission or event is discovered. 

Media Liability means one or more of the following acts committed by, or on behalf of, the
Insured Organization in the course of creating, displaying, broadcasting, disseminating or
releasing Media Material to the public:

1. defamation, libel, slander, product disparagement, trade libel, infliction of emotional
distress, outrage, outrageous conduct, or other tort related to disparagement or harm to
the reputation or character of any person or organization; 

2. a violation of the rights of privacy of an individual, including false light, intrusion upon
seclusion and public disclosure of private facts;

3. invasion or interference with an individual’s right of publicity, including commercial
appropriation of name, persona, voice or likeness;

4. plagiarism, piracy, or misappropriation of ideas under implied contract; 

5. infringement of copyright;

6. infringement of domain name, trademark, trade name, trade dress, logo, title, metatag,
or slogan, service mark or service name; 

7. improper deep-linking or framing; 

8. false arrest, detention or imprisonment;

9. invasion of or interference with any right to private occupancy, including trespass,
wrongful entry or eviction; or

10. unfair competition, if alleged in conjunction with any of the acts listed in parts 5. or 6.
above.

Media Material means any information, including words, sounds, numbers, images or graphics,
but will not include computer software or the actual goods, products or services described,
illustrated or displayed in such Media Material.
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Merchant Services Agreement means any agreement between an Insured and a financial
institution, credit/debit card company, credit/debit card processor or independent service operator
enabling an Insured to accept credit card, debit card, prepaid card or other payment cards for
payments or donations.

Money means a medium of exchange in current use authorized or adopted by a domestic or
foreign government as a part of its currency.

Named Insured means the Named Insured listed in the Declarations.

Notified Individuals Threshold means the number of individual persons listed in the
Declarations.   

PCI Fines, Expenses and Costs means the monetary amount owed by the Insured
Organization under the terms of a Merchant Services Agreement as a direct result of a
suspected Data Breach. With the prior consent of the Underwriters, PCI Fines, Expenses and
Costs includes reasonable and necessary legal costs and expenses incurred by the Insured
Organization to appeal or negotiate an assessment of such monetary amount. PCI Fines,
Expenses and Costs will not include any charge backs, interchange fees, discount fees or other
fees unrelated to a Data Breach.  

Penalties means:

1. any monetary civil fine or penalty payable to a governmental entity that was imposed in
a Regulatory Proceeding; and

2. amounts which the Insured is legally obligated to deposit in a fund as equitable relief
for the payment of consumer claims due to an adverse judgment or settlement of a
Regulatory Proceeding (including such amounts required to be paid into a “Consumer
Redress Fund”); 

but will not include: (a) costs to remediate or improve Computer Systems; (b) costs to
establish, implement, maintain, improve or remediate security or privacy practices,
procedures, programs or policies; (c) audit, assessment, compliance or reporting costs; or (d)
costs to protect the confidentiality, integrity and/or security of Personally Identifiable
Information or other information. 

The insurability of Penalties will be in accordance with the law in the applicable venue that
most favors coverage for such Penalties.

Period of Restoration means the 180-day period of time that begins upon the actual and
necessary interruption of the Insured Organization’s business operations.

Personally Identifiable Information means:

1. any information concerning an individual that is defined as personal information under
any Breach Notice Law; and

2. an individual’s drivers license or state identification number, social security number,
unpublished telephone number, and credit, debit or other financial account numbers in
combination with associated security codes, access codes, passwords or PINs; if such
information allows an individual to be uniquely and reliably identified or contacted or
allows access to the individual’s financial account or medical record information. 

but will not include information that is lawfully made available to the general public.
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Policy Period means the period of time between the inception date listed in the Declarations and
the effective date of termination, expiration or cancellation of this Policy and specifically excludes
any Optional Extension Period or any prior policy period or renewal period. 

Privacy Policy means the Insured Organization’s public declaration of its policy for collection,
use, disclosure, sharing, dissemination and correction or supplementation of, and access to
Personally Identifiable Information.    

Regulatory Proceeding means a request for information, civil investigative demand, or civil
proceeding brought by or on behalf of any federal, state, local or foreign governmental entity in
such entity’s regulatory or official capacity.

Securities means negotiable and non-negotiable instruments or contracts representing either
Money or tangible property that has intrinsic value.

Security Breach means a failure of computer security to prevent:

1. Unauthorized Access or Use of Computer Systems, including Unauthorized
Access or Use resulting from the theft of a password from a Computer System or
from any Insured;

2. a denial of service attack affecting Computer Systems; 

3. with respect to coverage under the Liability insuring agreements, a denial of service
attack affecting computer systems that are not owned, operated or controlled by an
Insured; or

4. infection of Computer Systems by malicious code or transmission of malicious code
from Computer Systems.  

Subsidiary means any entity: 

1. which, on or prior to the inception date of this Policy, the Named Insured owns, directly
or indirectly, more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities ("Management
Control"); and

2. which the Named Insured acquires Management Control after the inception date of this
Policy; provided that:

(i) the revenues of such entity do not exceed 15% of the Named Insured’s annual
revenues; or

(ii) if the revenues of such entity exceed 15% of the Named Insured’s annual
revenues, then coverage under this Policy will be afforded for a period of 60
days, but only for any Claim that arises out of any act, error, omission, incident
or event first occurring after the entity becomes so owned. Coverage beyond
such 60 day period will only be available if the Named Insured gives the
Underwriters written notice of the acquisition, obtains the written consent of
Underwriters to extend coverage to the entity beyond such 60 day period and
agrees to pay any additional premium required by Underwriters.

This Policy provides coverage only for acts, errors, omissions, incidents or events that occur
while the Named Insured has Management Control over an entity.

System Failure means an unintentional and unplanned interruption of Computer Systems.
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System Failure will not include any interruption of computer systems resulting from (i) a
Security Breach, or (ii) the interruption of any third party computer system.

Telephone Fraud means the act of a third party gaining access to and using the Insured
Organization’s telephone system in an unauthorized manner.

Third Party Information means any trade secret, data, design, interpretation, forecast, formula,
method, practice, credit or debit card magnetic strip information, process, record, report or other
item of information of a third party not insured under this Policy which is not available to the
general public.

Transfer Account means an account maintained by the Insured Organization at a Financial
Institution from which the Insured Organization can initiate the transfer, payment or delivery of
Money or Securities.

Unauthorized Access or Use means the gaining of access to or use of Computer Systems by
an unauthorized person(s) or the use of Computer Systems in an unauthorized manner.

Unauthorized Disclosure means the disclosure of (including disclosure resulting from phishing)
or access to information in a manner that is not authorized by the Insured Organization and is
without knowledge of, consent or acquiescence of any member of the Control Group.

Waiting Period means the period of time that begins upon the actual interruption of the Insured
Organization’s business operations caused by a Security Breach, System Failure, Dependent
Security Breach or Dependent System Failure, and ends after the elapse of the number of
hours listed as the Waiting Period in the Declarations.

  EXCLUSIONS

The coverage under this Policy will not apply to any Loss arising out of:

Bodily Injury or Property Damage

1. physical injury, sickness, disease or death of any person, including any mental anguish
or emotional distress resulting from such physical injury, sickness, disease or death; or

2. physical injury to or destruction of any tangible property, including the loss of use
thereof; but electronic data will not be considered tangible property;

Trade Practices and Antitrust

any actual or alleged false, deceptive or unfair trade practices, antitrust violation, restraint of
trade, unfair competition (except as provided in the Media Liability insuring agreement), or
false or deceptive or misleading advertising or violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act, the
Clayton Act, or the Robinson-Patman Act; but this exclusion will not apply to:

1. the Breach Response insuring agreement; or

2. coverage for a Data Breach or Security Breach, provided no member of the Control
Group participated or colluded in such Data Breach or Security Breach;

Gathering or Distribution of Information

1. the unlawful collection or retention of Personally Identifiable Information or other
personal information by or on behalf of the Insured Organization; but this exclusion 
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will not apply to Claims Expenses incurred in defending the Insured against
allegations of unlawful collection of Personally Identifiable Information; or

2. the distribution of unsolicited email, text messages, direct mail, facsimiles or other
communications, wire tapping, audio or video recording, or telemarketing, if such
distribution, wire tapping, recording or telemarketing is done by or on behalf of the
Insured Organization; but this exclusion will not apply to Claims Expenses incurred
in defending the Insured against allegations of unlawful audio or video recording;

Prior Known Acts & Prior Noticed Claims

1. any act, error, omission, incident or event committed or occurring prior to the inception
date of this Policy if any member of the Control Group on or before the Continuity Date
knew or could have reasonably foreseen that such act, error or omission, incident or
event might be expected to be the basis of a Claim or Loss;

2. any Claim, Loss, incident or circumstance for which notice has been provided under any
prior policy of which this Policy is a renewal or replacement;

Racketeering, Benefit Plans, Employment Liability & Discrimination

1. any actual or alleged violation of the Organized Crime Control Act of 1970 (commonly
known as Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act or RICO), as amended; 

2. any actual or alleged acts, errors or omissions related to any of the Insured
Organization’s pension, healthcare, welfare, profit sharing, mutual or investment
plans, funds or trusts;

3. any employer-employee relations, policies, practices, acts or omissions, or any actual
or alleged refusal to employ any person, or misconduct with respect to employees; or

4. any actual or alleged discrimination;

but this exclusion will not apply to coverage under the Breach Response insuring agreement
or parts 1., 2. or 3. of the Data & Network Liability insuring agreement that results from a
Data Breach; provided no member of the Control Group participated or colluded in such
Data Breach;   

Sale or Ownership of Securities & Violation of Securities Laws

1 the ownership, sale or purchase of, or the offer to sell or purchase stock or other
securities; or 

2 an actual or alleged violation of a securities law or regulation;

Criminal, Intentional or Fraudulent Acts

any criminal, dishonest, fraudulent, or malicious act or omission, or intentional or knowing
violation of the law, if committed by an Insured, or by others if the Insured colluded or
participated in any such conduct or activity; but this exclusion will not apply to:

1. Claims Expenses incurred in defending any Claim alleging the foregoing until there is
a final non-appealable adjudication establishing such conduct; or
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2. with respect to a natural person Insured, if such Insured did not personally commit,
participate in or know about any act, error, omission, incident or event giving rise to
such Claim or Loss.

For purposes of this exclusion, only acts, errors, omissions or knowledge of a member of the
Control Group will be imputed to the Insured Organization;

Patent, Software Copyright, Misappropriation of Information

1. infringement, misuse or abuse of patent or patent rights; 

2. infringement of copyright arising from or related to software code or software products
other than infringement resulting from a theft or Unauthorized Access or Use of
software code by a person who is not a past, present or future employee, director,
officer, partner or independent contractor of the Insured Organization; or

3. use or misappropriation of any ideas, trade secrets or Third Party Information (i) by,
or on behalf of, the Insured Organization, or (ii) by any other person or entity if such
use or misappropriation is done with the knowledge, consent or acquiescence of a
member of the Control Group;

Governmental Actions

a Claim brought by or on behalf of any state, federal, local or foreign governmental entity, in
such entity’s regulatory or official capacity; but this exclusion will not apply to the Regulatory
Defense & Penalties insuring agreement;

Other Insureds & Related Enterprises

a Claim made by or on behalf of:

1. any Insured; but this exclusion will not apply to a Claim made by an individual that is
not a member of the Control Group under the Data & Network Liability insuring
agreement, or a Claim made by an Additional Insured; or

2. any business enterprise in which any Insured has greater than 15% ownership interest
or made by any parent company or other entity which owns more than 15% of the
Named Insured;

Trading Losses, Loss of Money & Discounts

1. any trading losses, trading liabilities or change in value of accounts; 

2. any loss, transfer or theft of monies, securities or tangible property of the Insured or
others in the care, custody or control of the Insured Organization; 

3. the monetary value of any transactions or electronic fund transfers by or on behalf of
the Insured which is lost, diminished, or damaged during transfer from, into or between
accounts; or 

4. the value of coupons, price discounts, prizes, awards, or any other valuable
consideration given in excess of the total contracted or expected amount;

but this exclusion will not apply to coverage under the eCrime insuring agreement;
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Media-Related Exposures

with respect to the Media Liability insuring agreement:

1. any contractual liability or obligation; but this exclusion will not apply to a Claim for
misappropriation of ideas under implied contract;

2. the actual or alleged obligation to make licensing fee or royalty payments;

3. any costs or expenses incurred or to be incurred by the Insured or others for the
reprinting, reposting, recall, removal or disposal of any Media Material or any other
information, content or media, including any media or products containing such Media
Material, information, content or media;  

4. any Claim brought by or on behalf of any intellectual property licensing bodies or
organizations;

5. the actual or alleged inaccurate, inadequate or incomplete description of the price of
goods, products or services, cost guarantees, cost representations, contract price
estimates, or the failure of any goods or services to conform with any represented
quality or performance;

6. any actual or alleged gambling, contest, lottery, promotional game or other game of
chance; or

7. any Claim made by or on behalf of any independent contractor, joint venturer or
venture partner arising out of or resulting from disputes over ownership of rights in
Media Material or services provided by such independent contractor, joint venturer or
venture partner;

First Party Loss

with respect to the First Party Loss insuring agreements:

1. seizure, nationalization, confiscation, or destruction of property or data by order of any
governmental or public authority;

2. costs or expenses incurred by the Insured to identify or remediate software program
errors or vulnerabilities or update, replace, restore, assemble, reproduce, recollect or
enhance data or Computer Systems to a level beyond that which existed prior to a
Security Breach, System Failure, Dependent Security Breach, Dependent System
Failure or Extortion Threat; 

3. failure or malfunction of satellites or of power, utility, mechanical or telecommunications
(including internet) infrastructure or services that are not under the Insured
Organization’s direct operational control; or

4. fire, flood, earthquake, volcanic eruption, explosion, lightning, wind, hail, tidal wave,
landslide, act of God or other physical event.

200 of 221Powered by BoardOnTrack

Contra Costa School of Performing Arts - Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Monday April 11, 2022 at 5:30 PM



F00653
112017 ed.

Page 17 of 23

  LIMIT OF LIABILITY AND COVERAGE

Limits of Liability

The Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability listed in the Declarations (the “Policy Aggregate Limit
of Liability”) is the Underwriters’ combined total limit of liability for all Loss, other than
Breach Response Services, payable under this Policy.

The limit of liability payable under each insuring agreement will be an amount equal to the
Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability unless another amount is listed in the Declarations.
Such amount is the aggregate amount payable under this Policy pursuant to such insuring
agreement and is part of, and not in addition to, the Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability. 

All Dependent Business Loss payable under this Policy is part of and not in addition to the
Business Interruption Loss limit listed in the Declarations.

The Underwriters will not be obligated to pay any Damages, Penalties, PCI Fines,
Expenses and Costs or Claims Expenses, or to defend any Claim, after the Policy
Aggregate Limit of Liability has been exhausted, or after deposit of the Policy Aggregate
Limit of Liability in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Breach Response Limits

Coverage for Breach Response Services under this Policy is in addition to the Policy
Aggregate Limit of Liability.

The Notified Individuals limit listed in the Declarations is the maximum total number of
individuals to whom notification, call center and credit or identity monitoring services will be
provided (or attempted) for all incidents or series of related incidents giving rise to an
obligation to provide Breach Response Services.  

The Legal, Forensic & Public Relations/Crisis Management limit listed in the Declarations is
the aggregate limit of coverage for all services and costs covered under parts 1., 2., 3. and 7.
of the definition of Breach Response Services.

Except as provided in the Additional Breach Response Limits clause below, the Underwriters
will not be obligated to provide any Breach Response Services after the number of
individuals to whom services are provided under part 4. of the definition of Breach Response
Services reaches the Notified Individuals limit listed in the Declarations. If the total number
of individuals to be notified under the Policy exceeds the Notified Individuals limit listed in the
Declarations, the Insured will be responsible for notifying and providing call center services
and credit or identity monitoring services to such additional individuals in accordance with the
processes described in the Information Packet.

Additional Breach Response Limits

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if: 

1. the total number of individuals to whom services described in parts 4., 5. and 6. of the
definition of Breach Response Services are provided exceeds the amount listed in
Notified Individuals limit listed in the Declarations; or

2. the dollar amount of the services described in parts 1., 2., 3. and 7. of the definition of
Breach Response Services provided to the Insured Organization exceeds the Legal,
Forensic & Public Relations/Crisis Management limit listed in the Declarations; 
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this Policy will cover the costs, fees and expenses incurred to provide such Breach
Response Services up to an amount equal to the Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability (the
“Additional Breach Response Limit”).

The Additional Breach Response Limit is part of, and not in addition to, the Policy
Aggregate Limit of Liability and will be reduced and may be exhausted by payments under
either limit. Upon exhaustion of the Additional Breach Response Limit, there will be no
further coverage under this Policy for any costs, fees or expenses covered thereunder.

  RETENTIONS

The Retention listed in the Declarations applies separately to each incident, event or related
incidents or events giving rise to a Claim or Loss. The Retention will be satisfied by monetary
payments by the Named Insured of covered Loss under each insuring agreement. If any Loss
arising out of an incident or Claim is subject to more than one Retention, the Retention for each
applicable insuring agreement will apply to such Loss, provided that the sum of such Retention
amounts will not exceed the largest applicable Retention amount.

The Retention for Breach Response Services listed in the Declarations applies separately to
each incident, event or related incidents or events, giving rise to legal, forensic and public
relations/crisis management services and costs covered under parts 1., 2., 3. and 7. of the
definition of Breach Response Services. The Retention will be satisfied by monetary payments
by the Named Insured for such services and costs.

Coverage for Business Interruption Loss and Dependent Business Loss will apply after the
Waiting Period has elapsed and the Underwriters will then indemnify the Named Insured for all
Business Interruption Loss and Dependent Business Loss sustained during the Period of
Restoration in excess of the Retention.

Satisfaction of the applicable Retention is a condition precedent to the payment of any Loss
under this Policy, and the Underwriters will be liable only for the amounts in excess of such
Retention.  

  OPTIONAL EXTENSION PERIOD

Upon non-renewal or cancellation of this Policy for any reason except the non-payment of premium,
the Named Insured will have the right to purchase, for additional premium in the amount of the
Optional Extension Premium percentage listed in the Declarations of the full Policy Premium
listed in the Declarations, an Optional Extension Period for the period of time listed in the
Declarations. Coverage provided by such Optional Extension Period will only apply to Claims first
made against any Insured during the Optional Extension Period and reported to the Underwriters
during the Optional Extension Period, and arising out of any act, error or omission committed
before the end of the Policy Period. In order for the Named Insured to invoke the Optional
Extension Period option, the payment of the additional premium for the Optional Extension Period
must be paid to the Underwriters within 60 days of the termination of this Policy.

The purchase of the Optional Extension Period will in no way increase the Policy Aggregate
Limit of Liability or any sublimit of liability. At the commencement of the Optional Extension
Period the entire premium will be deemed earned, and in the event the Named Insured
terminates the Optional Extension Period for any reason prior to its natural expiration, the
Underwriters will not be liable to return any premium paid for the Optional Extension Period.
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All notices and premium payments with respect to the Optional Extension Period option will be
directed to the Underwriters through entity listed for Administrative Notice in the Declarations.

  GENERAL CONDITIONS

Notice of Claim or Loss

The Insured must notify the Underwriters of any Claim as soon as practicable, but in no
event later than: (i) 60 days after the end of the Policy Period; or (ii) the end of the Optional
Extension Period (if applicable). Notice must be provided through the contacts listed for
Notice of Claim, Loss or Circumstance in the Declarations.

With respect to Breach Response Services, the Insured must notify the Underwriters of any
actual or reasonably suspected Data Breach or Security Breach as soon as practicable
after discovery by the Insured, but in no event later than 60 days after the end of the Policy
Period. Notice must be provided to the Breach Response Services Team listed in the
Declarations. Notice of an actual or reasonably suspected Data Breach or Security Breach
in conformance with this paragraph will also constitute notice of a circumstance that could
reasonably be the basis for a Claim.

With respect to Cyber Extortion Loss, the Named Insured must notify the Underwriters via
the email address listed in the Notice of Claim, Loss or Circumstance in the Declarations as
soon as practicable after discovery of an Extortion Threat but no later than 60 days after the
end of the Policy Period. The Named Insured must obtain the Underwriters’ consent prior
to incurring Cyber Extortion Loss.

With respect to Data Recovery Costs, Business Interruption Loss and Dependent
Business Loss the Named Insured must notify the Underwriters through the contacts for
Notice of Claim, Loss or Circumstance in the Declarations as soon as practicable after
discovery of the circumstance, incident or event giving rise to such loss. The Named
Insured will provide the Underwriters a proof of Data Recovery Costs, Business
Interruption Loss and Dependent Business Loss, and this Policy will cover the reasonable
and necessary costs, not to exceed USD 50,000, that the Named Insured incurs to contract
with a third party to prepare such proof. All loss described in this paragraph must be reported,
and all proofs of loss must be provided, to the Underwriters no later than 6 months after the
end of the Policy Period.

The Named Insured must notify the Underwriters of any loss covered under the eCrime
insuring agreement as soon as practicable, but in no event later than 60 days after the end of
the Policy Period. Notice must be provided through the contacts listed for Notice of Claim,
Loss or Circumstance in the Declarations.

Any Claim arising out of a Loss that is covered under the Breach Response, First Party Loss
or eCrime insuring agreements and that is reported to the Underwriters in conformance with
the foregoing will be considered to have been made during the Policy Period.

Notice of Circumstance

With respect to any circumstance that could reasonably be the basis for a Claim (other than
a Data Breach or Security Breach noticed under the Breach Response insuring agreement)
the Insured may give written notice of such circumstance to the Underwriters through the
contacts listed for Notice of Claim, Loss or Circumstance in the Declarations as soon as
practicable during the Policy Period. Such notice must include:
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1. the specific details of the act, error, omission or event that could reasonably be the
basis for a Claim;

2. the injury or damage which may result or has resulted from the circumstance; and

3. the facts by which the Insured first became aware of the act, error, omission or event.

Any subsequent Claim made against the Insured arising out of any circumstance reported to
Underwriters in conformance with the foregoing will be considered to have been made at the
time written notice complying with the above requirements was first given to the Underwriters
during the Policy Period.

Defense of Claims

Except with respect to coverage under the Payment Card Liabilities & Costs insuring
agreement, the Underwriters have the right and duty to defend any covered Claim or
Regulatory Proceeding. Defense counsel will be mutually agreed by the Named Insured
and the Underwriters but, in the absence of such agreement, the Underwriters’ decision will
be final.

With respect to the Payment Card Liabilities & Costs insuring agreement, coverage will be
provided on an indemnity basis and legal counsel will be mutually agreed by the Named
Insured and the Underwriters and will be selected from one of the firms listed in the
Information Packet. 

The Underwriters will pay actual loss of salary and reasonable expenses resulting from the
attendance by a corporate officer of the Insured Organization at any mediation meetings,
arbitration proceedings, hearings, depositions, or trials relating to the defense of any Claim,
subject to a maximum of $2,000 per day and $100,000 in the aggregate, which amounts will
be part of and not in addition to the Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability.

Settlement of Claims

If the Insured refuses to consent to any settlement recommended by the Underwriters and
acceptable to the claimant, the Underwriters’ liability for such Claim will not exceed:

1. the amount for which the Claim could have been settled, less the remaining Retention,
plus the Claims Expenses incurred up to the time of such refusal; plus

2. sixty percent (60%) of any Claims Expenses incurred after the date such settlement or
compromise was recommended to the Insured plus sixty percent (60%) of any Damages,
Penalties and PCI Fines, Expenses and Costs above the amount for which the
Claim could have been settled;

and the Underwriters will have the right to withdraw from the further defense of such Claim. 

The Insured may settle any Claim where the Damages, Penalties, PCI Fines, Expenses
and Costs and Claims Expenses do not exceed the Retention, provided that the entire Claim
is resolved and the Insured obtains a full release on behalf of all Insureds from all claimants.

Assistance and Cooperation

The Underwriters will have the right to make any investigation they deem necessary, and the
Insured will cooperate with the Underwriters in all investigations, including investigations
regarding coverage under this Policy and the information and materials provided to the
underwriters in connection with the underwriting and issuance of this Policy. The Insured will
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execute or cause to be executed all papers and render all assistance as is requested by the
Underwriters. The Insured agrees not to take any action which in any way increases the
Underwriters’ exposure under this Policy. Expenses incurred by the Insured in assisting and
cooperating with the Underwriters do not constitute Claims Expenses under the Policy. 

The Insured will not admit liability, make any payment, assume any obligations, incur any
expense, enter into any settlement, stipulate to any judgment or award or dispose of any
Claim without the written consent of the Underwriters, except as specifically provided in the
Settlement of Claims clause above. Compliance with a Breach Notice Law will not be
considered an admission of liability.

Subrogation

If any payment is made under this Policy and there is available to the Underwriters any
of the Insured’s rights of recovery against any other party, then the Underwriters will
maintain all such rights of recovery. The Insured will do whatever is reasonably necessary to
secure such rights and will not do anything after an incident or event giving rise to a Claim or
Loss to prejudice such rights. If the Insured has waived its right to subrogate against a third
party through written agreement made before an incident or event giving rise to a Claim or
Loss has occurred, then the Underwriters waive their rights to subrogation against such third
party. Any recoveries will be applied first to subrogation expenses, second to Loss paid by
the Underwriters, and lastly to the Retention. Any additional amounts recovered will be paid
to the Named Insured.

Other Insurance

The insurance under this Policy will apply in excess of any other valid and collectible
insurance available to any Insured unless such other insurance is written only as specific
excess insurance over this Policy.

Action Against the Underwriters

No action will lie against the Underwriters or the Underwriters' representatives unless and
until, as a condition precedent thereto, the Insured has fully complied with all provisions,
terms and conditions of this Policy and the amount of the Insured’s obligation to pay has
been finally determined either by judgment or award against the Insured after trial, regulatory
proceeding, arbitration or by written agreement of the Insured, the claimant, and the
Underwriters.

No person or organization will have the right under this Policy to join the Underwriters as
a party to an action or other proceeding against the Insured to determine the Insured’s
liability, nor will the Underwriters be impleaded by the Insured or the Insured’s legal
representative.  

The Insured’s bankruptcy or insolvency of the Insured’s estate will not relieve the
Underwriters of their obligations hereunder.

Change of Law, Unavailability of Breach Response Services

If there is a change of law, regulation or enforcement that prevents the Underwriters or its
providers from providing all or part of the Breach Response Services, or if a provider is unable
to or does not provide Breach Response Services, the Underwriters will make reasonable
efforts to procure similar services from other sources. In such event, the maximum the
Underwriters will pay for the costs of procuring and providing all Breach Response Services,
including substitute products and services, will be no more than USD 10,000,000 in the
aggregate for the Policy Period, which amount will be in addition to the Policy Aggregate
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Limit of Liability. If it is not reasonably possible for the Underwriters to procure substitute
products or services, the Underwriters will not be obligated to provide such services.

Entire Agreement

By acceptance of the Policy, all Insureds agree that this Policy embodies all agreements
between the Underwriters and the Insured relating to this Policy. Notice to any agent, or
knowledge possessed by any agent or by any other person, will not effect a waiver or a
change in any part of this Policy or stop the Underwriters from asserting any right under the
terms of this Policy; nor will the terms of this Policy be waived or changed, except by
endorsement issued to form a part of this Policy signed by the Underwriters.   

Mergers or Consolidations

If during the Policy Period the Named Insured consolidates or merges with or is acquired by
another entity, or sells more than 50% of its assets to another entity, then this Policy will
continue to remain in effect through the end of the Policy Period, but only with respect to
events, acts or incidents that occur prior to such consolidation, merger or acquisition. There
will be no coverage provided by this Policy for any other Claim or Loss unless the Named
Insured provides written notice to the Underwriters prior to such consolidation, merger or
acquisition, the Named Insured has agreed to any additional premium and terms of
coverage required by the Underwriters and the Underwriters have issued an endorsement
extending coverage under this Policy.

Assignment 

The interest hereunder of any Insured is not assignable. If the Insured dies or is adjudged
incompetent, such insurance will cover the Insured’s legal representative as if such
representative were the Insured, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Policy. 

Cancellation

This Policy may be canceled by the Named Insured by giving written notice to the
Underwriters through the entity listed for Administrative Notice in the Declarations stating
when the cancellation will be effective.  

This Policy may be canceled by the Underwriters by mailing to the Named Insured at the
address listed in the Declarations written notice stating when such cancellation will be
effective. Such date of cancellation will not be less than 60 days (or 10 days for cancellation
due to non-payment of premium) after the date of notice.   

If this Policy is canceled in accordance with the paragraphs above, the earned premium will
be computed pro rata; but the premium will be deemed fully earned if any Claim, or any
circumstance that could reasonably be the basis for a Claim or Loss, is reported to the
Underwriters on or before the date of cancellation. Payment or tender of unearned premium
is not a condition of cancellation.

Singular Form of a Word

Whenever the singular form of a word is used herein, the same will include the plural when
required by context.
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Headings

The titles of paragraphs, clauses, provisions or endorsements of or to this Policy are intended
solely for convenience and reference, and are not deemed in any way to limit or expand the
provisions to which they relate and are not part of the Policy.

Representation by the Insured

All Insureds agree that the statements contained the information and materials provided to
the Underwriters in connection with the underwriting and issuance of this Policy are true,
accurate and are not misleading, and that the Underwriters issued this Policy, and assume
the risks hereunder, in reliance upon the truth thereof.

Named Insured as Agent

The Named Insured will be considered the agent of all Insureds, and will act on behalf of all
Insureds with respect to the giving of or receipt of all notices pertaining to this Policy, and the
acceptance of any endorsements to this Policy. The Named Insured is responsible for the
payment of all premiums and Retentions and for receiving any return premiums.  
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Beazley’s Cyber Services

With Beazley’s 360° approach, cyber & tech policyholders have access
to a comprehensive set of solutions created to help protect themselves on
all fronts from the dangerous world of cyber risks. These solutions
include pre-breach and risk management services offered through
Beazley Breach Response (BBR) Services. 

Resources available:

• Beazley's current panel of service providers 
• Information on the risk management tools and resources included with your policy, including

Beazley’s in-house risk management portal, www.beazleybreachsolutions.com
• The process for notifying Beazley of a breach and the ability to report a breach or breach incident

online
• Online cyber business interruption guide 

• Beazley's 360° approach to ransomware protection

• A listing of cyber security vendors through which Beazley cyber & tech policyholders can benefit

from discounted rates for anti-phishing tools and training, email security and identity and access

management solutions, cyber risk assessment and testing, and other pre-breach services.

To learn more about Beazley’s cyber services, visit 

www.beazley.com/cyberservices.

The descriptions contained in this communication are for preliminary informational purposes only. The product is available on an admitted basis in
some but not all US jurisdictions through Beazley Insurance Company, Inc., and is available on a surplus lines basis through licensed surplus lines
brokers underwritten by Beazley syndicates at Lloyd’s. The exact coverage afforded by the product described herein is subject to and governed by the
terms and conditions of each policy issued. The publication and delivery of the information contained herein are not intended as a solicitation for the
purchase of insurance on any US risk. Beazley USA Services, Inc. is licensed and regulated by insurance regulatory authorities in the respective states
of the US and transacts business in the State of California as Beazley Insurance Services (License#: 0G55497).
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Operating income increases $3K since previous forecast

2021-22 Forecast Update
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Cash flow drop in spring due to enrollment/ADA decrease

2021-22 Monthly Cash Balance
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Contra Costa School of the Performing Arts
Income Statement
As of Feb FY2022

Yes

Dec Jan Feb Actual YTD
Approved 
Budget v1 

Previous 
Forecast

Current 
Forecast

Previous 
Forecast vs. 

Current 
Forecast

Approved 
Budget v1  vs. 

Current 
Forecast

Current 
Forecast 

Remaining

% Current 
Forecast 

Spent
SUMMARY
Revenue

LCFF Entitlement 179,871        362,161        179,871        1,992,969     4,736,468       4,028,597       4,028,597       -                      (707,871)         2,035,628       49%
Federal Revenue 2,118            22,796          12,044          69,045          253,654          253,459          260,179          6,721              6,526              191,134          27%
Other State Revenues 54,603          165,952        83,659          415,637        880,539          1,017,685       1,017,685       -                      137,146          602,048          41%
Local Revenues 107,491        16,827          327,289        520,120        193,069          236,359          236,359          -                      43,290            (283,761)         220%
Fundraising and Grants 124               6,191            1,255            28,534          159,680          147,280          147,280          -                      (12,400)           118,746          19%
Total Revenue 344,206        573,927        604,118        3,026,305     6,223,411       5,683,381       5,690,101       6,721              (533,310)         2,663,796       53%

Expenses
Compensation and Benefits 314,405        316,522        322,580        2,362,305     3,794,631       3,750,167       3,740,005       10,162            54,626            1,377,700       63%
Books and Supplies 45,781          18,510          12,937          215,000        399,096          248,011          261,226          (13,216)           137,870          46,226            82%
Services and Other Operating Expenditures 169,617        192,959        181,030        1,371,779     2,141,630       2,078,094       2,079,138       (1,043)             62,493            707,359          66%
Depreciation 4,565            4,565            1,985            33,937          47,671            50,133            50,133            -                      (2,462)             16,196            68%
Other Outflows 2,906            15,949          169               28,762          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (28,762)            
Total Expenses 537,273        548,506        518,700        4,011,784     6,383,028       6,126,405       6,130,502       (4,097)             252,526          2,118,718       65%

Operating Income (193,067)       25,421          85,418          (985,478)       (159,617)         (443,025)         (440,401)         2,624              (280,783)         545,078          

Fund Balance
Beginning Balance (Unaudited) 1,069,909       1,158,535       1,158,535       
Audit Adjustment -                      (34,172)           (34,172)           
Operating Income (159,617)         (443,025)         (440,401)         

Ending Fund Balance 910,292          681,338          683,962          
Fund Balance as a % of Expenses 14% 11% 11%

Actual YTD Budget
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KEY ASSUMPTIONS

Enrollment Summary
4-6 95                   83                   83                   -                  (12)                  
7-8 198                 190                 190                 -                  (8)                    
9-12 226                 170                 170                 -                  (56)                  
Total Enrolled 519                 443                 443                 -                  (76)                  

ADA %
4-6 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 0.0% 0.0%
7-8 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 0.0% 0.0%
9-12 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Average ADA % 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 0.0% 0.0%

ADA
4-6 90.25              78.85              78.85              -                  (11.40)             
7-8 188.10            180.50            180.50            -                  (7.60)               
9-12 214.70            161.50            161.50            -                  (53.20)             
Total ADA 493.05            420.85            420.85            -                  (72.20)             
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REVENUE

LCFF Entitlement
8011 Charter Schools General Purpose Entitlement - State Aid 179,871        179,871        179,871        1,099,209     2,287,977       1,958,528       1,958,528       -                  (329,448)         859,319          56%
8012 Education Protection Account Entitlement -                21,835          -                43,670          98,610            84,170            84,170            -                  (14,440)           40,500            52%
8096 Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes -                160,455        -                850,090        2,349,881       1,985,899       1,985,899       -                  (363,983)         1,135,809       43%

SUBTOTAL - LCFF Entitlement 179,871        362,161        179,871        1,992,969     4,736,468       4,028,597       4,028,597       -                  (707,871)         2,035,628       49%
 

Federal Revenue  
8181 Special Education - Entitlement -                -                -                -                    57,500            57,500            64,221            6,721              6,721              64,221            0%
8220 Child Nutrition Programs -                -                -                -                    24,134            20,600            20,600            -                  (3,534)             20,600            0%
8291 Title I -                -                -                -                    35,433            38,414            38,414            -                  2,981              38,414            0%
8292 Title II 2,118            -                -                2,118            8,112              8,470              8,470              -                  358                 6,352              25%
8294 Title IV -                -                2,500            5,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            -                  -                  5,000              50%
8297 PY Federal - Not Accrued -                -                9,544            19,088          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (19,088)            
8299 All Other Federal Revenue -                22,796          -                42,839          118,475          118,475          118,475          -                  -                  75,636            36%

SUBTOTAL - Federal Revenue 2,118            22,796          12,044          69,045          253,654          253,459          260,179          6,721              6,526              191,134          27%
 

Other State Revenue  
8319 Other State Apportionments - Prior Years -                7,614            -                7,614            -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (7,614)              
8381 Special Education - Entitlement (State 27,103          27,103          -                165,629        312,781          300,908          300,908          -                  (11,873)           135,279          55%
8382 Special Education Reimbursement (State -                -                -                -                    216,000          216,000          216,000          -                  -                  216,000          0%
8520 Child Nutrition - State -                -                -                -                    1,817              1,551              1,551              -                  (266)                1,551              0%
8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements -                12,554          -                12,554          12,483            12,554            12,554            -                  72                   0                     100%
8560 State Lottery Revenue -                32,257          -                32,257          102,479          100,220          100,220          -                  (2,259)             67,963            32%
8590 All Other State Revenue 27,500          86,424          83,659          197,583        234,980          386,453          386,453          -                  151,473          188,870          51%

SUBTOTAL - Other State Revenue 54,603          165,952        83,659          415,637        880,539          1,017,685       1,017,685       -                  137,146          602,048          41%
 

Local Revenue  
8634 Food Service Sales -                -                26,571          26,571          60,894            51,977            51,977            -                  (8,917)             25,406            51%
8660 Interest -                -                -                -                    4                     4                     4                     -                  -                  4                     0%
8693 Field Trips 1,443            3,214            -                8,472            73,438            16,834            16,834            -                  (56,604)           8,362              50%
8699 All Other Local Revenue 100,043        654               968               138,513        28,734            137,545          137,545          -                  108,811          (968)                101%
8701 8701 - Student Production/Event Revenue 2,502            10,839          1,579            20,189          30,000            30,000            30,000            -                  -                  9,811              67%
8999 Uncategorized Revenue 3,502            2,120            298,171        326,376        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (326,376)          

SUBTOTAL - Local Revenue 107,491        16,827          327,289        520,120        193,069          236,359          236,359          -                  43,290            (283,761)         220%
 

Fundraising and Grants  
8802 8802 - Donations - Private (Foundation Grants) -                -                -                -                    75,000            75,000            75,000            -                  -                  75,000            0%
8803 8803 - Fundraising (school Site) 124               6,191            1,255            28,534          84,680            72,280            72,280            -                  (12,400)           43,746            39%

SUBTOTAL - Fundraising and Grants 124               6,191            1,255            28,534          159,680          147,280          147,280          -                  (12,400)           118,746          19%
 

TOTAL REVENUE 344,206        573,927        604,118        3,026,305     6,223,411       5,683,381       5,690,101       6,721              (533,310)         2,663,796       53%
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EXPENSES  
 

Compensation & Benefits  
 

Certificated Salaries  
1100 Teachers Salaries 103,340        103,815        102,305        881,863        1,182,519       1,300,246       1,300,246       -                  (117,727)         418,383          68%
1101 Teacher - Bonus -                -                -                -                    7,000              10,000            10,000            -                  (3,000)             10,000            0%
1103 Teacher - Substitute Pay -                -                -                -                    20,000            -                  -                  -                  20,000            -                   
1148 Teacher - Special Ed 6,522            12,459          12,154          57,822          120,000          115,967          115,967          -                  4,033              58,145            50%
1150 Teacher - Custom 1 28,575          5,819            5,819            41,257          348,001          93,993            93,993            -                  254,008          52,737            44%
1200 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 34,039          23,017          24,264          188,566        395,097          379,035          379,035          -                  16,063            190,468          50%
1300 Certificated Supervisor & Administrator Salaries 41,312          49,042          49,042          343,386        503,916          534,392          534,392          -                  (30,475)           191,006          64%

SUBTOTAL - Certificated Salaries 213,787        194,152        193,583        1,512,894     2,576,533       2,433,632       2,433,632       -                  142,901          920,738          62%
 

Classified Salaries  
2100 Classified Instructional Aide Salaries 25,300          33,780          37,775          187,080        153,481          277,001          267,691          9,310              (114,209)         80,611            70%
2200 Classified Support Salaries 2,537            2,797            4,036            15,170          -                  31,738            31,738            -                  (31,738)           16,568            48%
2300 Classified Supervisor & Administrator Salaries 5,833            5,833            5,624            46,729          -                  46,667            46,667            -                  (46,667)           (62)                  100%
2400 Classified Clerical & Office Salaries 8,775            12,212          13,888          94,074          201,652          162,796          162,796          -                  38,856            68,722            58%
2935 Other Classified - Substitute 1,223            291               434               4,990            -                  20,000            20,000            -                  (20,000)           15,010            25%

SUBTOTAL - Classified Salaries 43,668          54,913          61,757          348,044        355,134          538,202          528,892          9,310              (173,758)         180,848          66%
 

Employee Benefits  
3100 STRS 31,953          31,728          31,912          244,272        426,742          399,251          399,251          -                  27,491            154,979          61%
3300 OASDI-Medicare-Alternative 6,721            7,281            7,805            50,146          67,901            81,048            80,335            712                 (12,434)           30,189            62%
3400 Health & Welfare Benefits 17,348          17,573          24,371          170,080        290,122          210,417          210,417          -                  79,705            40,337            81%
3500 Unemployment Insurance 597               10,544          2,949            18,879          31,136            39,347            39,347            -                  (8,211)             20,468            48%
3600 Workers Comp Insurance -                -                -                15,750          43,975            44,578            44,438            140                 (463)                28,687            35%
3900 Other Employee Benefits 331               331               203               2,240            3,088              3,693              3,693              -                  (605)                1,453              61%

SUBTOTAL - Employee Benefits 56,950          67,458          67,240          501,367        862,964          778,333          777,481          852                 85,483            276,113          64%
 

Books & Supplies  
4200 Books & Other Reference Materials 188               -                404               1,473            3,299              3,299              3,299              -                  -                  1,826              45%
4300 Materials & Supplies 6,961            4,386            3,158            23,835          99,035            25,000            25,364            (364)                73,671            1,529              94%
4315 Custodial Supplies -                -                -                33                 7,396              1,052              1,052              -                  6,344              1,019              3%
4320 Educational Software -                2,595            167               47,315          45,000            47,242            47,482            (240)                (2,482)             167                 100%
4325 Instructional Materials & Supplies 1,582            2,636            642               40,137          61,631            37,631            47,812            (10,181)           13,819            7,675              84%
4410 Classroom Furniture, Equipment & Supplies 12,085          249               114               16,268          47,000            16,376            16,376            -                  30,624            108                 99%
4420 Computers: individual items less than $5k -                -                -                18,030          15,950            20,000            22,431            (2,431)             (6,481)             4,401              80%
4430 Non Classroom Related Furniture, Equipment & Supplies -                100               -                137               6,835              1,000              1,000              -                  5,835              863                 14%
4710 Student Food Services 24,965          8,546            8,453            67,773          112,950          96,410            96,410            -                  16,540            28,637            70%

SUBTOTAL - Books and Supplies 45,781          18,510          12,937          215,000        399,096          248,011          261,226          (13,216)           137,870          46,226            82%
 

Services & Other Operating Expenses  
5200 Travel & Conferences -                -                -                707               20,000            1,000              1,000              -                  19,000            293                 71%
5300 Dues & Memberships -                -                -                14,471          15,000            15,000            15,000            -                  -                  529                 96%
5400 Insurance 8                   -                -                52,802          63,960            63,960            63,960            -                  (0)                    11,158            83%
5515 Janitorial, Gardening Services & Supplies 10,136          10,867          10,053          79,261          94,554            120,000          120,000          -                  (25,446)           40,739            66%
5535 Utilities - All Utilities 7,123            9,511            7,305            73,136          165,000          130,000          130,000          -                  35,000            56,864            56%
5605 Equipment Leases 3,365            1,794            609               8,837            20,000            16,000            16,000            -                  4,000              7,163              55%
5610 Rent 85,885          93,026          85,885          705,867        1,045,944       1,045,944       1,045,944       -                  -                  340,078          67%
5615 Repairs and Maintenance - Building 12,714          3,285            12,758          48,649          30,000            35,800            48,649            (12,849)           (18,649)           -                  100%
5631 Other Space Rental -                3,700            7,790            24,440          20,600            33,150            33,150            -                  (12,550)           8,710              74%
5803 Accounting Fees -                -                -                6,650            10,700            10,700            10,700            -                  -                  4,050              62%
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5809 Banking Fees 47                 35                 35                 323               1,000              1,000              1,000              -                  -                  677                 32%
5812 Business Services 12,024          12,024          12,584          96,753          147,789          146,573          146,573          -                  1,217              49,820            66%
5815 Consultants - Instructional 894               2,810            480               8,876            20,000            15,000            15,000            -                  5,000              6,124              59%
5820 Consultants - Non Instructional - Custom 1 -                -                10,833          13,983          30,000            15,000            15,331            (331)                14,669            1,348              91%
5824 District Oversight Fees -                -                -                1,550            48,865            41,786            41,786            -                  7,079              40,236            4%
5830 Field Trips Expenses 7,947            180               7,258            21,401          91,797            21,043            21,463            (421)                70,334            62                   100%
5839 Fundraising Expenses 5,625            12                 63                 6,961            10,000            10,000            10,000            -                  -                  3,039              70%
5843 Interest - Loans Less than 1 Year -                -                -                -                    2,064              2,064              2,064              -                  -                  2,064              0%
5845 Legal Fees -                10,152          1,539            27,562          100,000          75,000            60,000            15,000            40,000            32,438            46%
5851 Marketing and Student Recruiting 565               3,223            1,738            14,708          30,000            20,000            20,000            -                  10,000            5,292              74%
5857 Payroll Fees 359               339               686               3,186            4,893              4,893              4,893              -                  -                  1,706              65%
5861 Prior Yr Exp (not accrued 8                   -                -                594               -                  594                 594                 -                  (594)                -                  100%
5863 Professional Development -                -                500               28,693          25,000            28,193            30,061            (1,868)             (5,061)             1,368              95%
5869 Special Education Contract Instructors 15,845          12,402          15,164          52,986          20,000            97,000            97,000            -                  (77,000)           44,014            55%
5872 Special Education Encroachment -                -                -                -                    11,108            10,752            10,954            (202)                155                 10,954            0%
5881 Student Information System 2,643            20,693          1,083            29,837          16,500            35,000            35,000            -                  (18,500)           5,163              85%
5887 Technology Services 4,400            6,517            4,400            37,317          70,000            55,000            55,000            -                  15,000            17,683            68%
5898 Bad Debt Expense -                787               -                787               -                  787                 787                 -                  (787)                -                  100%
5900 Communications 16                 1,573            154               11,070          26,856            26,856            26,856            -                  -                  15,786            41%
5915 Postage and Delivery 13                 31                 113               373               -                  -                  373                 (373)                (373)                0                     100%

SUBTOTAL - Services & Other Operating Exp. 169,617        192,959        181,030        1,371,779     2,141,630       2,078,094       2,079,138       (1,043)             62,493            707,359          66%
 

Capital Outlay & Depreciation  
6900 Depreciation 4,565            4,565            1,985            33,937          47,671            50,133            50,133            -                  (2,462)             16,196            68%

SUBTOTAL - Capital Outlay & Depreciation 4,565            4,565            1,985            33,937          47,671            50,133            50,133            -                  (2,462)             16,196            68%
 

Other Outflows  
7438 Long term debt - Interest 14                 12                 7                   198               -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (198)                 
7999 Uncategorized Expense 2,892            15,937          162               28,564          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (28,564)            

SUBTOTAL - Other Outflows 2,906            15,949          169               28,762          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (28,762)            

TOTAL EXPENSES 537,273        548,506        518,700        4,011,784     6,383,028       6,126,405       6,130,502       (4,097)             252,526          2,118,718       65%
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Contra Costa School of the Performing Arts
Monthly Cash Forecast
As of Feb FY2022

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Forecast Remaining
Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Balance

Beginning Cash 1,222,950     1,037,941     1,131,664     1,404,113     1,365,253     1,338,741     1,082,687     1,150,905     1,434,931     1,306,547     1,145,123     977,260        

REVENUE
LCFF Entitlement -                221,369        342,811        363,628        343,260        179,871        362,161        813,478        305,948        325,606        305,948        305,948        4,028,597     158,570          
Federal Revenue -                -                20,043          -                12,044          2,118            22,796          24,580          1,717            30,467          15,938          1,717            260,179        128,761          
Other State Revenue 15,057          15,057          27,103          27,103          27,103          54,603          165,952        51,069          121,705        30,288          58,037          154,870        1,017,685     269,739          
Other Local Revenue 1,109            21,442          13,215          10,074          22,673          107,491        16,827          (26,450)         1,754            1,754            1,754            1,754            236,359        62,961            
Fundraising & Grants 1,903            12,198          3,847            1,000            2,016            124               6,191            24,000          24,000          24,000          24,000          24,000          147,280        -                  

TOTAL REVENUE 18,069          270,066        407,020        401,804        407,096        344,206        573,927        886,676        455,124        412,115        405,677        488,290        5,690,101     620,031          

EXPENSES
Certificated Salaries 80,652          209,811        212,236        213,263        195,412        213,787        194,152        248,499        248,499        248,499        248,499        255,999        2,433,632     (135,676)         
Classified Salaries 17,270          37,209          40,239          45,504          47,485          43,668          54,913          59,061          51,951          51,951          51,951          51,951          528,892        (24,262)           
Employee Benefits 59,092          60,163          69,987          65,199          55,278          56,950          67,458          83,492          83,492          77,201          77,201          60,011          777,481        (38,044)           
Books & Supplies 19,354          23,880          45,982          35,691          12,865          45,781          14,870          15,164          16,843          16,843          16,843          16,843          261,226        (19,731)           
Services & Other Operating Expenses 127,326        160,920        233,516        147,303        159,108        169,617        191,029        231,004        186,813        183,135        183,135        177,805        2,079,138     (71,572)           
Capital Outlay & Depreciation 4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            1,469            4,178            4,178            4,178            4,178            50,133          -                  
Other Outflows 893               1,359            1,398            5,687            401               2,906            21,521          (34,165)         -                -                -                -                -                -                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 309,151        497,905        607,923        517,213        475,113        537,273        548,506        604,524        591,775        581,807        581,807        566,788        6,130,502     (289,284)         

Operating Cash Inflow (Outflow) (291,082)       (227,839)       (200,903)       (115,409)       (68,017)         (193,067)       25,421          282,153        (136,651)       (169,692)       (176,131)       (78,498)         (440,401)       909,315          

Revenues - Prior Year Accruals 73,417          328,834        438,923        27,287          -                21,874          2,510            6,290            -                -                -                -                
Other Assets 29,485          -                (4,373)           -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Fixed Assets 4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            4,565            1,469            4,178            4,178            4,178            4,178            
Expenses - Prior Year Accruals -                (45,803)         (2,211)           -                -                (21,874)         -                (9,975)           -                -                -                -                
Accounts Payable - Current Year (71,016)         (12,305)         -                100               44                 (98,434)         -                -                -                -                -                -                
Summerholdback for Teachers (37,888)         6,633            5,143            4,957            5,592            (423)              4,416            4,090            4,090            4,090            4,090            4,090            -                
Loans Payable (Long Term) -                -                (8,333)           -                (8,333)           (8,333)           (8,333)           -                -                -                -                -                
Other Liabilites 107,510        39,639          39,638          39,639          39,639          39,639          39,639          -                -                -                -                -                

Ending Cash 1,037,941     1,131,664     1,404,113     1,365,253     1,338,741     1,082,687     1,150,905     1,434,931     1,306,547     1,145,123     977,260        907,029        

2021-22
Actuals & Forecast
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Contra Costa School of the Performing Arts
Balance Sheet
As of Feb FY2022

Jun FY2021 Feb FY2022
ASSETS

Cash Balance 1,222,950         1,272,116         
Accounts Receivable 954,975            62,131              
Other Current Assets 2,515                2,515                
Prepaids 29,485              4,373                
Fixed Assets, Net 82,131              48,194              
Due From Others 3,809                3,809                
TOTAL ASSETS 2,295,866         1,393,137         

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Accounts Payable 240,248            44,147              
Deferred Revenue 202,528            224,153            
Current Loans and Other Payables 644,547            977,610            
Long-Term Loans and Other Liabilities 50,008              8,343                
Beginning Net Assets 500,958            1,124,363         
Net Income (Loss) to Date 657,576            (985,478)           
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,295,866         1,393,138         
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